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EXPLANATORY NOTE

On July 1, 2024 (the “Closing Date”), Six Flags Entertainment Corporation (formerly known as
CopperSteel HoldCo, Inc.) (the “Combined Company”) completed the previously announced merger of
equals transaction contemplated by the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of November 2, 2023
(the “Merger Agreement”), by and among the Combined Company (then, CopperSteel HoldCo, Inc.),
Cedar Fair, L.P. (“Cedar Fair’), Six Flags Entertainment Corporation (“Former Six Flags”) and
CopperSteel Merger Sub, LLC (“Copper Merger Sub”). Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, (i) Copper
Merger Sub was merged with and into Cedar Fair (the “Cedar Fair First Merger”), with Cedar Fair
continuing as the surviving entity (the “Cedar Fair Surviving Entity”) and a direct subsidiary of the
Combined Company, (ii) the Cedar Fair Surviving Entity was subsequently merged with and into the
Combined Company (the “Cedar Fair Second Merger” and together with the Cedar Fair First Merger,
the “Cedar Fair Mergers”), with the Combined Company continuing as the surviving corporation, and
(iii) Former Six Flags merged with and into the Combined Company (the “Six Flags Merger” and
together with the Cedar Fair Mergers, the “Mergers”), with the Combined Company continuing as the
surviving corporation. Upon the consummation of the Mergers, the separate legal existences of each of
Copper Merger Sub, Cedar Fair and Former Six Flags ceased, and the Combined Company changed
its name to “Six Flags Entertainment Corporation”. The Combined Company trades on the New York
Stock Exchange under the ticker symbol “FUN”.

The Six Flags Merger was accounted for as a business combination under Accounting Standards
Codification 805, Business Combinations, using the acquisition method of accounting, and Cedar Fair
has been determined to be the accounting acquirer and the predecessor for financial statement
purposes. Accordingly, financial results and disclosures referring to periods prior to the Closing Date
include only Cedar Fair’s results before giving effect to the Mergers, including the financial results and
disclosures as of December 31, 2023 and for the years ended December 31, 2023 and December 31,
2022. The results of Former Six Flags are included in the Combined Company’s results from the
Closing Date forward. Accordingly, financial results and disclosures for the year ended December 31,
2024 reflect combined operations for only July 1, 2024, through December 31, 2024, and include only
Cedar Fair’s results before giving effect to the Mergers for the first six months of 2024.

For purposes of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, references to the “Combined Company” and the
“Company” are to Cedar Fair, Former Six Flags and Copper Merger Sub after giving effect to the
Mergers. References to “Cedar Fair,” “Former Cedar Fair,” or the “Partnership” are to Cedar Fair prior
to the Mergers.
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PARTI
ITEM 1. BUSINESS.

The Combined Company is North America’s largest regional amusement park operator with 27 amusement parks,
15 separately gated water parks and nine resort properties. Of the 42 amusement and water parks, 38 are located in the
United States, two are located in Mexico and two are located in Canada. The parks are family-oriented, with recreational
facilities for people of all ages, and provide clean and attractive environments with exciting rides and immersive
entertainment. The Combined Company generates revenue from sales of admission to the amusement parks and water
parks, from purchases of food, merchandise and games both inside and outside the parks, from the sale of
accommodations and other extra-charge products, and other revenue sources. The Combined Company purchases rides
and attractions, inventory, operating supplies, and services from a variety of suppliers both domestic and abroad.

The Combined Company’s operations are seasonal. In a typical year at Former Six Flags and Cedar Fair, approximately
70% of annual attendance and revenue occurred during the second and third quarters of each year. As a result, a
substantial portion of the Combined Company’s revenues are expected to be generated from Memorial Day through Labor
Day with the major portion concentrated during the peak vacation months of July and August.

The demographic groups that are most important to the business are families and young people ages 12 through 24.
Families are believed to be attracted by a combination of rides, live entertainment and the clean, wholesome atmosphere.
Young guests are believed to be attracted by the action-packed rides. The Combined Company conducts active
advertising campaigns in its major market areas geared toward these two groups. The Combined Company’s U.S. parks
serve each of the top 10 designated market areas, as determined by a survey of television households within designated
market areas published by A.C. Nielsen Media Research in spring 2024.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PARKS

Year
Developed/

Park Acquired Location Designated Operating Area and Rank*
Cedar Point Cleveland (36)
Cedar Point Shores (1) 1870  Sandusky, Ohio Detroit (14)
Valleyfair 1978  Shakopee, Minnesota Minneapolis-St. Paul (15)
Dorney Park Philadelphia (9)

1992  Allentown, Pennsylvania  New York (1)
Worlds of Fun (2) 1995  Kansas City, Missouri Kansas City (34)

Knott’s Berry Farm
Knott’s Berry Farm Soak City (3) 1997  Buena Park, California Los Angeles (2)

Michigan’s Adventure 2001 Muskegon, Michigan Grand Rapids (69)
California’s Great America San Jose (40)
(4) 2006  Santa Clara, California San Francisco (5) Sacramento (29)
Canada’s Wonderland 2006  Vaughan, Ontario, Canada N/A
Carowinds Charlotte, N. Carolina and Charlotte (20)
(5) 2006 Fort Mill, S. Carolina Greensboro (47) Greenville (57)
Kings Dominion Richmond (51) Baltimore (22)
(6) 2006 Doswell, Virginia Norfolk (46) Washington, D.C. (8)
Kings Island Cincinnati (33) Louisville (58)
2006 Mason, Ohio Columbus (37) Indianapolis (38)
Schlitterbahn Waterpark and San Antonio (25)
Resort New Braunfels (7) 2019 New Braunfels, Texas Austin (28)




Year

Developed/
Park Acquired Location Designated Operating Area and Rank*
Schlitterbahn Waterpark
Galveston 2019  Galveston, Texas Houston (6)
Frontier City

Six Flags Hurricane Harbor

Oklahoma City 2024  Oklahoma City, Oklahoma Oklahoma City (49)
La Ronde Montreal, Quebec,
2024  Canada N/A
Six Flags America Washington, D.C. (8)
2024 Bowie, Maryland Baltimore (22)
Six Flags Darien Lake (8) 2024  Corfu, New York Buffalo (59)
Six Flags Discovery Kingdom
Six Flags Hurricane Harbor Vallejo, California San Francisco (5)
Concord (9) 2024  Concord, California Sacramento (29)
Six Flags Fiesta Texas San Antonio (25)
2024  San Antonio, Texas Austin (28)
Six Flags Great Adventure
Six Flags Hurricane Harbor
New Jersey New York City (1)
Wild Safari Adventure (10) 2024  Jackson, New Jersey Philadelphia (9)
Six Flags Great America
Six Flags Hurricane Harbor Chicago (3)
Chicago 2024  Gurnee, lllinois Milwaukee (43)
Six Flags Great Escape
Resort (11) 2024  Queensbury, New York Albany (67)
Six Flags Hurricane Harbor
Phoenix 2024  Glendale, Arizona Phoenix (13)
Six Flags Hurricane Harbor Chicago (3)
Rockford 2024  Cherry Valley, lllinois Milwaukee (43)
Six Flags Hurricane Harbor
Splashtown 2024  Spring, Texas Houston (6)
Six Flags Magic Mountain
Six Flags Hurricane Harbor
Los Angeles 2024  Valencia, California Los Angeles (2)
Six Flags Mexico Mexico City, Mexico
Six Flags Hurricane Harbor Oaxtepec, Morelos,
Oaxtepec 2024 Mexico N/A
Six Flags New England Boston (10)
2024  Agawam, Massachusetts Hartford (55) Providence (45)
Six Flags Over Georgia Austell, Georgia
Six Flags White Water (12) 2024 Marietta, Georgia Atlanta (7)
Six Flags Over Texas
Six Flags Hurricane Harbor
Arlington (12) 2024  Arlington, Texas Dallas-Fort Worth (4)
Six Flags St. Louis 2024 Eureka, Missouri St. Louis (24)

Separately gated water parks are italicized.



Based on a 2024 survey of radio market population with designated market areas published by A.C. Nielsen Media
Research.

(1) Cedar Point also features four hotels, three marinas, an upscale campground, and the nearby Cedar Point Sports
Center which features both indoor and outdoor sports facilities. Cedar Point’s four hotels include: Hotel Breakers,
Castaway Bay Indoor Waterpark Resort, Cedar Point’s Express Hotel and Sawmill Creek Resort.

(2) Worlds of Fun also features Worlds of Fun Village, an upscale campground.
(3) Knott’s Berry Farm also features the Knott’s Hotel.

(4) On June 27, 2022, Former Cedar Fair sold the land at California’s Great America. Concurrently with the sale,
Cedar Fair entered into a lease contract that allows the Combined Company to operate the park during a six-year
term, and the Combined Company has an option to extend the term for an additional five years. The lease is subject
to early termination by the buyer with at least two years’ prior notice.

(5) Carowinds also features Camp Wilderness Resort, an upscale campground, and a SpringHill Suites by Marriott hotel
located adjacent to the park entrance. The SpringHill Suites is a Marriott franchise operated by the Combined
Company and is open year-round.

(6) Kings Dominion also features Kings Dominion KOA Campground, an upscale campground.

(7) Schlitterbahn Waterpark & Resort New Braunfels also features The Resorts at Schlitterbahn New Braunfels, which
includes hotel rooms, suites, cabins, luxury suites and vacation homes.

(8) Six Flags Darien Lake also features Six Flags Darien Lake Hotel & Campground.
(9) Six Flags Discovery Kingdom also features marine and land animal exhibits.

(10) Six Flags Great Adventure also features Savannah Sunset Resort & Spa, an upscale campground with spa
services.

(11) Six Flags Great Escape Resort also features Six Flags Great Escape Lodge & Indoor Water Park.

(12) Six Flags Over Georgia, including Six Flags White Water Atlanta, and Six Flags Over Texas are not wholly owned.
See Note 7 for further information.

The Combined Company has also entered into international agreements to assist a third party in the planning, design,
development and operation of a Six Flags-branded amusement park and water park in Saudi Arabia to be named
Six Flags Qiddiya City and Aquarabia Water Theme Park, respectively. The Combined Company receives fees under the
agreements during the design and development period for the parks, as well as ongoing remuneration after the parks
open to the public as compensation for exclusivity, brand licensing rights, and design, development and management
services. The agreements do not require the Combined Company to make any capital investments in the parks. As of the
date of this Form 10-K filing, the Saudi Arabia parks are expected to open in late 2025.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

The Combined Company believes annual park attendance is influenced by annual investments in the parks, including new
attractions and infrastructure, among other factors. Capital expenditures are planned on a seasonal basis with most
expenditures made prior to the beginning of the peak operating season. Capital expenditures made in a calendar year
may differ materially from amounts identified with a particular operating season because of timing considerations such as
weather conditions, site preparation requirements and availability of ride components, which may result in accelerated or
delayed expenditures around calendar year-end.

COMPETITION

The Combined Company competes for discretionary spending with all aspects of the recreation industry within its primary
market areas, including other destination and regional amusement parks. The Combined Company also competes with
other forms of entertainment and recreational activities, including movies, sporting events, restaurants, vacation travel and
family entertainment centers.



The principal competitive factors in the amusement park industry include the uniqueness and perceived quality of the
rides and attractions in a particular park, proximity to metropolitan areas, the atmosphere and cleanliness of the park, and
the quality and variety of the food and immersive entertainment available. The Combined Company’s parks feature a
variety of high-quality rides, attractions and restaurants with a family atmosphere to make them highly competitive with
other parks and forms of entertainment.

MARKETING AND PROMOTION

The Combined Company attracts its guests through multichannel marketing and promotional programs at each of the
parks, which are designed to increase market penetration. These programs are tailored to the unique characteristics of
each market and to maximize the impact of specific park attractions and product introductions. Marketing and promotional
programs are updated each season.

The Combined Company also seeks to develop long-term corporate sponsorships and co-marketing relationships with
well-known national and regional brands that align with its values and strategy. This results in the development of
strategic alliances with mutually beneficial advertising programs.

LICENSES

The Combined Company holds exclusive long-term theme park usage rights in the U.S. (except for the Las Vegas
metropolitan area and the state of Florida), Canada and Mexico to certain Warner Bros. and DC Comics animated
characters. The Combined Company also has exclusive amusement and water park usage rights in the U.S. and Canada
to the Peanuts comic strip characters. These license agreements require annual license fees and royalty fees on
inventory sold that uses the licensed characters, which are subject to periodic scheduled adjustments, including CPI
increases in some cases. The license agreements also include rights of the counterparty to terminate the agreements
under certain circumstances.

GOVERNMENT REGULATION

The Combined Company’s operations are subject to regulatory requirements, such as those relating to employment
practices, environmental requirements, and other regulatory matters. The Combined Company is subject to extensive
federal and state employment laws and regulations, including wage and hour laws and other pay practices and employee
record-keeping requirements. The Combined Company may be required to incur costs to comply with these requirements,
and the costs of compliance, investigation, remediation, litigation, and resolution of regulatory matters could be
substantial.

The Combined Company is also subject to federal, state and local environmental laws and regulations such as those
relating to water resources; discharges to air, water and land; the handling and disposal of solid and hazardous waste;
and the cleanup of properties affected by regulated materials. Under these laws and regulations, the Combined Company
may be required to investigate and clean up hazardous or toxic substances or chemical releases from current or formerly
owned or operated facilities or to mitigate potential environmental risks. Environmental laws typically impose cleanup
responsibility and liability without regard to whether the relevant entity knew of or caused the presence of the
contaminants. The costs of investigation, remediation or removal of regulated materials may be substantial, and the
presence of those substances, or the failure to remediate a property properly, may impair the ability to use, transfer or
obtain financing with respect to the Combined Company’s property.

Currently, management believes the Combined Company is in substantial compliance with applicable requirements under
these laws and regulations. However, such requirements have generally become stricter over time, and there can be no
assurance that new requirements, changes in enforcement policies or newly discovered conditions relating to the parks or
operations will not require significant expenditures in the future.

The Combined Company acquires rides, attractions, inventory, and supplies from foreign countries. Changes in import
tariffs and trade policies may result in increased costs and potential market disruptions that could result in the inability to
acquire certain goods timely or at all. Many of the Combined Company’s rides and attractions require specialized
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manufacturing. In addition, the Combined Company’s seasonal workforce includes foreign employees under certain visa
programs. The Combined Company may be unable to recruit and hire adequate personnel if these visa programs become
unavailable.

MAINTENANCE AND INSPECTION

All rides are inspected daily by both maintenance and ride operations personnel before being placed into operation for
guests. The parks are also periodically inspected by the Combined Company’s insurance carrier and inspected by either
state or county ride-safety inspectors or hired third party inspectors that submit the third-party report to the respective
state agencies. Additionally, all parks have added ride maintenance and operation inspections completed by third party
qualified inspectors to make sure the Combined Company’s standards are being maintained.

HUMAN CAPITAL

As of December 31, 2024, the Combined Company employed approximately 5,000 full-time employees. This represents a
reduction of approximately 3% compared to the combined number of full-time employees at Former Cedar Fair and
Former Six Flags as of December 31, 2023. Throughout 2024, Former Cedar Fair, Former Six Flags and the Combined
Company employed approximately 93,000 seasonal and part-time employees, many of whom are high school and college
students. Some seasonal employees are housed in owned dormitories at Cedar Point, Kings Island, Carowinds, Kings
Dominion and Valleyfair. From time-to-time, rented dormitories are also utilized at both Former Cedar Fair and Former Six
Flags parks. As of December 31, 2024, approximately 2,275 of employees were represented by labor unions.
Management believes it maintains good relations with its employees.

The Combined Company’s employee guidelines and policies are founded on its cornerstones of safety, service and
cleanliness and its core values of integrity, courtesy and inclusiveness. Management'’s highest priority continues to be the
safety and well-being of all guests and employees. The Combined Company is committed to equal opportunity
employment and prohibits harassment or discrimination of any kind. Management has adopted an open door policy to
encourage an honest employer-employee relationship, which includes a confidential hotline available to all employees. As
part of its core values, Former Cedar Fair published two Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) Strategy
Reports, with the most recent report issued in 2023. Prior to the Mergers, Former Cedar Fair established an enterprise-
wide ESG framework which includes the prioritization of five key strategic pillars: Safety, Associate Happiness,
Community, Environment, and Operations and Governance. As part of the Safety pillar, the Cedar Fair Safety Model was
established, which enhances the Company’s longstanding commitment to workplace safety. The Cedar Fair Safety Model
emphasizes employee accountability for safety, conducting safety risk assessments, implementing best practices,
training, credentialing safety employees, and assessing mitigation tactics. The safety initiatives have been advanced by
focusing on better data systems, improving existing safety training, and launching the Safety Grants Initiative, which is a
supplemental source of funding to encourage innovation in safety. As part of the Associate Happiness pillar, the Associate
Happiness Model was established, which frames the efforts to provide a positive employee experience using the
components of authenticity, diversity, equity and inclusion. The Associate Happiness initiatives have been advanced by
launching a series of new awards and recognitions, launching and streamlining training programs, and implementing an
awareness month program.

The Combined Company maintains training programs for new employees, including safety training specific to job
responsibilities. The Combined Company participates in the J-1 Visa and H-2B Visa programs providing cultural and
educational exchange opportunities for its employees. The Combined Company also has partnered with Bowling Green
State University to create the Six Flags Resort and Attraction Management program (formerly known as the Cedar Fair
Resort and Attraction Management Program), a bachelor's degree program, which is housed in downtown Sandusky,
Ohio in a facility jointly owned by the Combined Company and a third party developer. The bachelor's degree program
prepares students for management careers at the Combined Company’s parks or similar establishments. Management
encourages a promote-from-within policy.



AVAILABLE INFORMATION

Copies of this annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, and current reports on Form 8-K and all
amendments to those reports as filed or furnished with the SEC are available without charge upon written request to the
Investor Relations Office or at investors.sixflags.com.

The website investors.sixflags.com is used as a channel of distribution of information. The information posted through this
channel may be deemed material. Accordingly, investors should monitor this channel, in addition to following news
releases, SEC filings, and public conference calls and webcasts. The contents of the website, including without limitation
the ESG Strategy Report referenced above, shall not be deemed to be incorporated herein by reference.

The SEC maintains an Internet site at http://www.sec.gov that contains the Combined Company’s reports, proxy
statements and other information.




SUPPLEMENTAL ITEM. Information about Executive Officers

Name

Age

Position(s)

Richard Zimmerman

Selim Bassoul

Brian Witherow

Tim Fisher

Brian Nurse

64

68

58

65

53

Mr. Zimmerman serves as the President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
Prior to the Mergers, Mr. Zimmerman most recently served as the President and Chief
Executive Officer of Cedar Fair since January 2018 and a member of the board of
directors of Cedar Fair since April 2019. Prior to becoming Chief Executive Officer,
Mr. Zimmerman served as President and Chief Operating Officer of Cedar Fair from
October 2016 to December 2017 and served as Chief Operating Officer of Cedar Fair
from October 2011 to October 2016. Prior to that, he was appointed as Executive Vice
President of Cedar Fair in November 2010 and as Regional Vice President of Cedar Fair
in June 2007. He has been with Cedar Fair since 2006, when it acquired Kings
Dominion. Mr. Zimmerman was Vice President and general manager of Kings Dominion
from 1998 through 20086.

Mr. Bassoul serves as the Executive Chairman of the Board. Prior to the Mergers,
Mr. Bassoul served as President and Chief Executive Officer of Former Six Flags since
November 2021 and was the Chairman of the board of directors of Former Six Flags
from February 2021 to November 2021. Mr. Bassoul served as President and Chief
Executive Officer, and Chairman of The Middleby Corporation, a manufacturer of food
service and processing equipment, from 2001 to 2019. Mr. Bassoul previously served
on the boards of Diversey Holdings, Ltd. as a director and non-executive chairman,
1847 Goedeker Corporation, Confluence Outdoor, Piper Aircraft, Inc., and Scientific
Protein Laboratories LLC.

Mr. Witherow serves as the Chief Financial Officer of the Company. Prior to the
Mergers, Mr. Witherow served as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
of Cedar Fair since January 2012. Mr. Witherow began his career with public accounting
firm Arthur Andersen. He left public accounting in 1995 to join Cedar Fair as Corporate
Director of Investor Relations. He was promoted to Corporate Treasurer in 2004 and
named Vice President and Corporate Controller the following year.

Mr. Fisher serves as Chief Operating Officer of the Company. Prior to the Mergers,
Mr. Fisher served as Chief Operating Officer of Cedar Fair since joining Cedar Fair in
December 2017. Prior to joining Cedar Fair, he served as Chief Executive Officer of
Village Roadshow Theme Parks International, an Australian-based theme park operator,
since March 2017. Prior to this appointment with Village Roadshow Theme Parks
International, Mr. Fisher served as Chief Executive Officer of Village Roadshow Theme
Parks since 2009.

Mr. Nurse serves as Chief Legal & Compliance Officer and Corporate Secretary of the
Company. Mr. Nurse joined Cedar Fair as Executive Vice President, Chief Legal Officer
and Secretary in November 2021. Prior to joining Cedar Fair, he served as Senior Vice
President, General Counsel and Secretary for World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc.
(WWE), an integrated media and entertainment company, from September 2018 to
November 2020. Prior to joining WWE, Mr. Nurse served as Vice President, Associate
General Counsel and Secretary at Nestle Waters North America, Inc., a former division
of Nestle S.A. which is a multinational food and drink corporation, from 2012 to 2018.
Prior to that, he was Senior Legal Counsel for North American beverage/soft drink
brands at PepsiCo, Inc., a multinational food, snack and beverage corporation, from
2003 to 2012.
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Name

Age

Position(s)

Christian Dieckmann

David Hoffman

Ty Tastepe

Monica Sauls

Robert White

47

56

62

45

65

Mr. Dieckmann serves as Chief Strategy Officer of the Company. Mr. Dieckmann served
as Cedar Fair's Chief Strategy Officer from 2023 and joined Cedar Fair in 2014 in a role
focused on strategic growth, business development and innovation. Prior to joining
Cedar Fair, he began his career at GE Capital, the former financial services division of
General Electric, including roles in the company’s Financial Management Program and
Internal Audit teams in both the U.S. and Europe. He later worked at Bain & Company
where he advised Fortune 500 and private equity clients on strategy, M&A, merger
integration and performance improvement. Mr. Dieckmann also served as Chief
Strategy Officer at Liminal Space, an early-stage technology company in the immersive
entertainment industry.

Mr. Hoffman serves as Chief Accounting Officer of the Company. Mr. Hoffman served
as Senior Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer of Cedar Fair from 2012 until the
consummation of the Mergers. Prior to that, he served as Vice President of Finance and
Corporate Tax since 2010. He served as Vice President of Corporate Tax from 2006
through 2010. Prior to joining Cedar Fair, Mr. Hoffman served as a business advisor
with Ernst & Young from 2002 through 2006.

Mr. Tastepe serves as Chief Digital and Technology Officer of the Company.
Mr. Tastepe served as Chief Information Officer at Cedar Fair since 2021. Prior to
joining Cedar Fair, Mr. Tastepe served for over two years as Senior Vice President,
Chief Information and Digital Officer for Altar'd State, a women'’s clothing retailer. Prior
to that, Mr. Tastepe spent nearly two decades delivering large-scale digital
transformation programs at global entertainment and hospitality brands such as
Universal Parks and Resorts, Hilton Worldwide, and Walt Disney Parks and Resorts.
From 2001 to 2011, Mr. Tastepe held technology leadership roles at Disney Parks that
included worldwide sales and travel operations, revenue management and marketing.

Ms. Sauls serves as Chief Human Resources, People & Culture Officer of the Company.
Ms. Sauls joined Cedar Fair as Senior Vice President and Chief Human Resources
Officer in March 2023. Prior to joining Cedar Fair, she served as Senior Vice President
and Chief People Officer of Bojangles, a regional chain of fast-food restaurants, from
2020 through March 2023. Prior to that, Ms. Sauls served as Senior Human Resources
Strategic Business Solutions Leader for Duke Energy, an electric power and natural gas
holding company, from 2018 to 2020. From 2014 to 2018, she served as Senior
Executive and Leadership Development Director for Boeing, a global aerospace
company and manufacturer. From 2009 to 2014, she served as Human Resources and
Talent Management Manager for Walgreens, a national pharmacy store chain.

Mr. White serves as Chief Commercial Officer of the Company. Mr. White served as
SVP, Chief Commercial Officer at Cedar Fair since 2023. Mr. White joined Cedar Fair in
2018 and served as Senior Vice President of Business Intelligence and Regional Vice
President responsible for operations at eight of Cedar Fair's theme parks. Prior to
joining Cedar Fair, Mr. White served as Chief Operating Officer at Village Roadshow
Theme Parks from 2011 until 2018.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS.

Risks Related to the Integration of the Combined Company

The Combined Company may be unable to integrate the businesses of Former Six Flags and Former Cedar Fair
successfully or realize the anticipated benefits of the Mergers.

On July 1, 2024, the previously announced Mergers between Former Six Flags and Former Cedar Fair as contemplated
by the Merger Agreement were completed. The combination of two independent companies and businesses is complex,
costly and time consuming, and requires significant management attention and resources to integrate the business
practices and operations of Former Six Flags and Cedar Fair. Potential difficulties that the Combined Company may
encounter as part of the integration process include the following:

+ the inability to successfully combine the businesses of Former Six Flags and Former Cedar Fair in a manner that
permits the Combined Company to achieve, on a timely basis, or at all, the enhanced growth opportunities and
cost savings and other benefits anticipated to result from the Mergers;

+ complexities associated with managing the combined businesses, including difficulty addressing possible
differences in operational philosophies and the challenge of integrating complex systems, technology, networks
and other assets of each of the companies in a seamless manner that minimizes any adverse impact on guests,
employees, suppliers, concessionaires, other third-party business partners and other constituencies;

« difficulties in achieving anticipated cost savings, synergies, business opportunities and growth prospects from
combining the businesses of Former Six Flags and Former Cedar Fair in the highly competitive out-of-home
entertainment industry;

- difficulties in the integration of operations, standards, systems, controls, procedures and/or personnel;

- difficulties in managing the expanded operations of a larger and more complex company, including continuing to
retain and attract guests to the Combined Company’s amusement and water parks;

« the disruption of, or the loss of momentum in, ongoing businesses;
« the assumption of contractual obligations with less favorable or more restrictive terms; and

«  potential unknown liabilities and unforeseen increased expenses resulting from the Mergers.

Any of these issues could adversely affect the Combined Company’s ability to maintain relationships with guests,
employees, suppliers, concessionaires, vendors, other third-party business partners and other constituencies or achieve
the anticipated benefits of the Mergers, or could adversely affect the Combined Company’s results of operation or cash
flows, decrease or delay any accretive effect of the transactions and negatively impact the price of the Combined
Company’s common stock.

Further, many of the aforementioned issues are outside of the Combined Company’s control and any of them could result
in increased costs, decreases in the amount of expected revenues and diversion of management’s time and energy,
which could materially impact the business, financial condition or results of operations of the Combined Company. In
addition, even if the operations of the businesses of Former Six Flags and Former Cedar Fair are integrated successfully,
the Combined Company may not realize the full benefits of the Mergers, including the targeted cost savings, workforce
efficiencies, scale, or sales and growth opportunities. Some of the anticipated synergies are also not expected to occur for
a period of time following the closing of the Mergers and may involve unanticipated costs and require significant capital
expenditures in the near term to be fully realized. Even if the Combined Company is able to integrate the two previous
companies successfully, the anticipated benefits of the Mergers, including the expected synergies, may not be realized
fully or at all and may take longer to realize than expected. If the Combined Company is not able to realize the anticipated
benefits and synergies expected from the Mergers within the anticipated timeframe or at all, it could adversely affect the
Combined Company’s earnings or otherwise adversely affect its business and financial results.

Due to the Mergers, the Combined Company'’s future ability to use net operating losses (“NOLs”) to offset future
taxable income may be restricted and these net operating losses could expire or otherwise be unavailable.

As a result of the Mergers, the Combined Company’s ability to use NOLs to offset future taxable income may be restricted
and these NOLs could expire or otherwise be unavailable. In general, under Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code
and corresponding provisions of state law, a corporation that undergoes an “ownership change” is subject to limitations on
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its ability to utilize its pre-change NOLs to offset future taxable income. For these purposes, an ownership change
generally occurs where the aggregate stock ownership of one or more shareholders or groups of shareholders who owns
at least 5% of a corporation’s stock increases its ownership by more than 50 percentage points over its lowest ownership
percentage within a specified testing period. Prior to the Mergers, some of Former Six Flags’ existing NOLs were subject
to limitations. Following the Mergers, the Combined Company’s ability to use NOLs may be subject to further limitations,
and the Combined Company may not be able to fully use these NOLs to offset future taxable income. There is also a risk
that, due to regulatory changes or for other unforeseen reasons, existing NOLs could expire or otherwise be unavailable
to offset future income tax liabilities. In addition, the U.S. Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017 (the “Tax Act”) resulted in a
reduction in the economic benefit of the NOLs and other deferred tax assets available to us. Under the Tax Act, U.S.
federal NOLs generated after December 31, 2017 will not be subject to expiration.

Risks Related to the Business

Instability in economic conditions could impact the business, including its results of operations and financial
condition.

Uncertain or deteriorating economic conditions, including during inflationary and recessionary periods, may adversely
impact attendance figures and guest spending patterns at the Combined Company’s parks (the “parks”) as uncertain
economic conditions affect guests’ levels of discretionary spending. Both attendance and spending at the parks are key
drivers of revenues and profitability, and reductions in either can directly and negatively affect revenues and profitability. A
decrease in discretionary spending due to a decline in consumer confidence in the economy, an economic slowdown or
deterioration in the economy could adversely affect the frequency with which guests choose to attend the parks and the
amount that guests spend on products when they visit.

Periods of inflation or economic downturn could also impact the Combined Company’s ability to obtain supplies and
services and increase its operating costs. Inflationary effects and supply chain disruptions may continue or worsen.
Changes in import tariffs and trade policies may result in increased costs and potential market disruptions. In addition, the
existence of unfavorable general economic conditions may also hinder the ability of those with which the Combined
Company does business, including vendors, concessionaires, customers, manufacturers of rides and other third parties,
to satisfy their obligations. Changes in exchange rates for foreign currencies could also reduce international demand for
the Combined Company’s products, increase its labor and supply costs in non-U.S. markets, reduce the U.S. dollar value
of revenue earned in other markets, and expose the Combined Company to translation risk associated with converting
foreign subsidiary financial statements to the Combined Company’s currency. The materialization of these risks could lead
to a decrease in revenues, operating income and cash flows.

The high fixed cost structure of amusement park operations can result in significantly lower margins, profitability
and cash flows if attendance levels do not meet expectations.

A significant portion of the Combined Company’s expenses are relatively fixed because the costs for full-time employees,
maintenance, utilities, advertising and insurance do not vary significantly with attendance. These fixed costs may increase
and may not be able to be reduced at a rate proportional with ongoing attendance levels. If cost-cutting efforts are
insufficient or are impractical, the Combined Company could experience a material decline in margins, profitability and
cash flows. Such effects can be especially pronounced during periods of economic contraction or slow economic growth.

Bad or extreme weather conditions can adversely impact attendance at the parks, which in turn would reduce
revenues.

Because most of the attractions at the parks are outdoors, attendance at the parks can be adversely affected by
continuous bad or extreme weather and by forecasts of bad or mixed weather conditions, which would negatively affect
revenues. The ownership of many parks in different geographic locations reduces, but does not completely eliminate, the
effect that adverse weather can have on consolidated results. This risk could be magnified by the effects of climate
change, including more extreme temperatures, excessive precipitation or wind, wildfires and hurricanes.

Insurance coverage may not be adequate to cover all possible losses that the Combined Company could suffer,
and insurance costs may increase.

Although the Combined Company carries liability insurance to cover possible incidents, coverage may not be adequate to
cover liabilities, the Combined Company may not be able to obtain coverage at commercially reasonable rates, and the
Combined Company may not be able to obtain adequate coverage should a catastrophic incident occur at its parks or at
other parks. Companies engaged in the amusement park business may be sued for substantial damages in the event of
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an actual or alleged incident. Incidents occurring at the parks or at competing parks could reduce attendance, increase
insurance premiums and/or retention levels, and negatively impact operating results. Increased self-insurance retention
levels may also result in larger than historical payments related to claims.

Unanticipated construction delays in completing capital improvement projects at the parks and resort facilities,
significant ride downtime, or other unplanned park closures could adversely affect revenues.

A meaningful marketing factor for an amusement or water park is the uniqueness and perceived quality of its rides and
attractions in a particular market area. Accordingly, the regular addition of new rides and attractions is important, and a
key element of revenue growth is strategic capital spending on new rides and attractions. Any construction delays could
adversely affect attendance and the ability to realize revenue growth. Further, when rides, attractions, or an entire park,
have unplanned downtime and/or closures, revenue could be adversely affected.

There is a risk of accidents or other incidents occurring at amusement and water parks, which may reduce
attendance and negatively impact revenues.

The safety of guests and employees is one of the Combined Company’s top priorities. Amusement and water parks
feature thrill rides. There are inherent risks involved with these attractions, and an accident or a serious injury at any of the
parks could result in negative publicity and could reduce attendance and result in decreased revenues. In addition,
accidents or injuries at facilities operated by competitors, including other amusement and water parks, could influence the
general attitudes of patrons and adversely affect attendance at the parks. Other types of incidents such as food borne
illnesses, product recalls on items sold, and disruptive, negative guest behavior which have either been alleged or proved
to be attributable to the parks or competitors could adversely affect attendance and revenues.

Public health concerns or a future pandemic could adversely impact the business, as well as intensify certain
risks.

Consumer behavior and preferences changed in response to the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic, including impacts on
discretionary consumer spending due to economic uncertainty and changing risk tolerances of employees and guests
regarding health matters. Future significant volatility or reductions in demand for, or interest in, the parks could materially
adversely impact attendance, in-park per capita spending and revenue. In addition, the Combined Company could
experience damage to its brand and reputation due to actual or perceived health risks associated with the parks or the
amusement park industry which could have a similar material adverse effect on attendance, in-park per capita spending
and revenue. The Combined Company may also experience operational risks, including limitations on its ability to recruit
and train employees in sufficient numbers to fully staff the parks as a result of changing risk tolerances.

Because amusement and water parks and complementary resort facilities are the primary sources of net income and
operating cash flows, any future mandated or voluntary closures or other operating restrictions related to a future
pandemic could adversely impact the Combined Company’s business and financial results. The parks are geographically
located throughout North America. The duration and severity of a pandemic and the related restrictions at any one
location could result in a potentially disproportionate amount of risk if concentrated amongst the Combined Company’s
largest properties.

Extended disruptions to technology platforms may adversely impact sales and revenues.

A large portion of the Combined Company’s sales are processed online and utilize third party technology platforms.
Increased dependence on these technology platforms may adversely impact sales, and therefore revenues, if key
systems are disrupted for an extended period of time.

Failure to keep pace with developments in technology could adversely affect operations or competitive position.
The amusement and water park industry demands the use of sophisticated technology and systems for operation of the
parks, ticket, membership and season pass sales and management, and labor and inventory management. Information
technology systems continue to evolve and, in order to remain competitive, the Combined Company must implement new
technologies and systems in a timely and efficient manner. The development and maintenance of these technologies may
require significant investment and may not achieve the anticipated benefits from such new developments or upgrades.

Risks Related to Strategy

The Combined Company’s growth strategy may not achieve the anticipated results.
The Combined Company’s future success will depend on its ability to grow the business. The Combined Company grows
the business through acquisitions and capital investments to improve its parks through new rides and attractions, as well

14



as in-park product offerings and product offerings outside of the parks. Growth and innovation strategies require
significant commitments of management resources and investments may not grow revenues at the rate expected or at all.
As a result, the Combined Company may not be able to recover the costs incurred in developing new projects and
initiatives, or to realize their intended or projected benefits, which could have a material adverse effect on its business,
financial condition or results of operations.

The Combined Company competes for discretionary spending and discretionary free time with many other
entertainment alternatives and is subject to factors that generally affect the recreation and leisure industry,
including general economic conditions.

The parks compete for discretionary spending and discretionary free time with other amusement and water parks and with
other types of recreational activities and forms of entertainment, including movies, sporting events, restaurants and
vacation travel. The business is also subject to factors that generally affect the recreation and leisure industries and are
not within the Combined Company’s control. Such factors include, but are not limited to, general economic conditions,
including relative fuel prices, and changes in consumer tastes and spending habits. The principal competitive factors of a
park include location, price, the uniqueness and perceived quality of the rides and attractions, the atmosphere and
cleanliness of the park and the quality of its food and entertainment. There may be a material adverse effect on the
Combined Company’s business, financial condition or results of operations if it is unable to effectively compete with other
entertainment alternatives.

The operating season at most of the parks is of limited duration, which can magnify the impact of adverse
conditions or events occurring within that operating season.

The Combined Company’s operations are seasonal. In a typical year at Former Six Flags and Former Cedar Fair,
approximately 70% of annual attendance and revenue occurred during the second and third quarters of each year. As a
result, a substantial portion of the Combined Company’s revenues are expected to be generated from Memorial Day
through Labor Day with the major portion concentrated during the peak vacation months of July and August.
Consequently, when adverse conditions or events occur during the operating season, particularly during the peak
vacation months of July and August or the important fall season, there is only a limited period of time during which the
impact of those conditions or events can be mitigated. Accordingly, the timing of such conditions or events may have a
disproportionate adverse effect upon revenues.

The Combined Company may be unable to purchase or contract with third parties to manufacture amusement
park or water park rides and attractions.

The Combined Company may be unable to purchase or contract with third parties to build high quality rides and
attractions and to continue to service and maintain those rides and attractions at competitive or beneficial prices, or to
provide the replacement parts needed to maintain the operation of such rides. In addition, if third party suppliers’ financial
condition deteriorates, they go out of business or there is a disruption to the flow of goods due to tariffs or trade policies,
the Combined Company may not be able to obtain the full benefit of manufacturer warranties or indemnities typically
contained in its contracts or may need to incur greater costs for the maintenance, repair, replacement or insurance of
these assets.

The Combined Company may not be able to realize the benefits of its international agreements.

Various external factors, including difficult economic and political conditions throughout the world, could negatively affect
the progress of initiatives to develop new parks outside of North America. These initiatives could be delayed, and the
ultimate success of such parks may be uncertain.

Factors that will be important to the success of international agreement initiatives are different than those affecting
existing parks. Tastes naturally vary by region, and consumers in new international markets into which the Combined
Company expands its brand may not embrace the parks’ offerings to the same extent as consumers in existing markets.
International agreements are also subject to additional risks, including the performance of partners and their ability to
obtain financing and government approvals; the impact of economic fluctuations in economies outside of the U.S,;
difficulties and costs of staffing and managing foreign operations due to distance, language and cultural differences;
changes or uncertainties in economic, legal, regulatory, social and political conditions; the enforceability of intellectual
property and contract rights; and foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations, currency controls, and potentially adverse
tax consequences of overseas operations. If the Combined Company does not realize the benefits of such transactions, it
could have an adverse effect on its financial performance.
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The Combined Company may not be able to renew its leases on acceptable terms or at all and the Combined
Company'’s leases contain default provisions that, if enforced or exercised by the landlord, could significantly
impact the operations at those parks.

Several of the Combined Company’s amusement and water parks are located on properties that are leased and are not
owned. The Combined Company cannot guarantee that the leases will be renewed on acceptable terms or at all. In
addition, certain of the leases permit the landlord to terminate the lease if there is a default under the lease, including, for
example, failure to pay rent, utilities and applicable taxes in a timely fashion or to maintain certain insurance. If a lease
could not be renewed or a landlord were to terminate a lease, it would halt operations at that park and, depending on the
size of the park, could have a negative impact on the Combined Company’s financial condition or results of operations. In
addition, any disputes that may result from such a non-renewal or termination may be expensive to pursue and may divert
money and management’s attention from other operations and adversely affect the Combined Company’s business,
financial condition or results of operations.

Intellectual property rights are valuable, and any inability or material increase in the cost to protect them could
adversely affect the business.

Intellectual property, including trademarks and domain names and other proprietary rights, constitutes a meaningful part
of the Combined Company’s value. To protect intellectual property rights, the Combined Company relies upon a
combination of trademark, trade secret and unfair competition laws of the United States and other countries, as well as
contract provisions and third party policies and procedures governing internet/domain name registrations. However, these
measures may not be successful in any given case, particularly in those countries where the laws do not protect
proprietary rights as fully as in the United States. The Combined Company may be unable to prevent the
misappropriation, infringement or violation of intellectual property rights, breach of any contractual obligations, or
independent development of intellectual property that is similar to its own, any of which could reduce or eliminate any
competitive advantage, adversely affect revenues or otherwise harm the business. In addition, pursuant to license
agreements, the Combined Company has exclusive theme park usage rights in the U.S. (except for the Las Vegas
metropolitan area and the state of Florida), Canada and Mexico to certain Warner Bros. and DC Comics animated
characters. The Combined Company also has exclusive amusement and water park usage rights in the U.S. and Canada
to the Peanuts comic strip characters. These license fees are subject to periodic scheduled adjustments, including CPI
increases in some cases. The license agreements also include rights of the counterparty to terminate the agreements
under certain circumstances. The termination of these licenses, or a material increase in the cost to retain these licenses,
could have a material adverse effect on Combined Company’s business, financial condition or results of operations.

The Combined Company may be subject to claims for infringing the intellectual property rights of others, which
could be costly and result in the loss of intellectual property rights.

It cannot be certain that the Combined Company does not and will not infringe the intellectual property rights of others.
The Combined Company may be subject to litigation and other claims in the ordinary course of business based on
allegations of infringement or other violations of the intellectual property rights of others. Regardless of their merits,
intellectual property claims can divert the efforts of personnel and are often time-consuming and expensive to litigate or
settle. In addition, to the extent claims against the Combined Company are successful, it may have to pay substantial
monetary damages or discontinue, modify, or rename certain products or services that are found to be in violation of
another party’s rights. The Combined Company may have to seek a license (if available on acceptable terms, or at all) to
continue offering products and services, which may increase operating expenses.

Risks Related to Indebtedness and Common Stock

The Combined Company’s amount of indebtedness could adversely affect its ability to raise additional capital to
fund its operations, limit its ability to react to changes in the economy or its industry and prevent the Combined
Company from fulfilling its obligations under its debt agreements.

The Combined Company had $4.96 billion of outstanding indebtedness as of December 31, 2024 (before reduction of
debt issuance costs and acquisition fair value layers). This amount of indebtedness could have important consequences.
For example, it could:

« limit the Combined Company’s ability to borrow money for working capital, capital expenditures, debt service
requirements, strategic initiatives or other purposes;

« limit flexibility in planning or reacting to changes in the business and future business operations; and/or
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+ make it more difficult to satisfy obligations with respect to indebtedness, and any failure to comply with the
obligations of any debt instruments, including restrictive covenants and borrowing conditions, could result in an
event of default under the agreements governing other indebtedness.

In addition, the Combined Company may not be able to generate sufficient cash flow from operations, or be able to draw
under its revolving credit facility or otherwise, in an amount sufficient to fund liquidity needs, including the payment of
principal and interest on debt obligations. If cash flows and capital resources are insufficient to service indebtedness, the
Combined Company may be forced to reduce or delay capital expenditures, suspend or refrain from declaring dividends,
sell assets, seek additional capital or restructure or refinance indebtedness. These alternative measures may not be
successful and may not permit the Combined Company to meet its scheduled debt service obligations. The ability to
restructure or refinance debt in the future will depend on the condition of the capital and credit markets and the Combined
Company’s financial condition at such time. Any refinancing of debt could be at higher interest rates and may require
compliance with more onerous covenants, which could further restrict business operations. In addition, the terms of
existing or future debt agreements may restrict the Combined Company from adopting some of these alternatives. In the
absence of sufficient operating results and resources, the Combined Company could face substantial liquidity problems
and might be required to dispose of material assets or operations to meet its debt service and other obligations. The
Combined Company may not be able to consummate those dispositions for fair market value or at all. Furthermore, any
proceeds that could be realized from any such dispositions may not be adequate to meet debt service obligations then
due.

Despite the amount of the Combined Company’s indebtedness, it may be able to incur additional indebtedness, which
could further exacerbate the risks associated with the amount of its indebtedness.

The Combined Company’s debt agreements contain restrictions that could limit its flexibility in investing in the
business.

The Combined Company’s credit agreement and the indentures governing its notes contain, and any future indebtedness
will likely contain, a number of covenants that could impose significant financial restrictions, including restrictions on the
ability to, among other things:

+ pay dividends in respect of the Combined Company’s common stock or make other restricted payments,
including stock repurchases;

* incur additional debt or issue certain preferred equity;

* make certain investments;

* sell certain assets;

»  create restrictions on distributions from restricted subsidiaries;
«  create liens on certain assets to secure debt;

« consolidate, merge, amalgamate, sell or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of the Combined Company’s
assets;

. enter into certain transactions with affiliates; and

« designate subsidiaries as unrestricted subsidiaries.

The Combined Company’s ability to comply with these and other provisions of debt agreements is dependent on future
performance, which will be subject to many factors, some of which are beyond the Combined Company’s control including
weather and economic, financial and industry conditions. The breach of any of these covenants or non-compliance with
any of these financial ratios and tests could result in an event of default under debt agreements, which, if not cured or
waived, could result in acceleration of the related debt and the acceleration of debt under other instruments evidencing
indebtedness that may contain cross-acceleration or cross-default provisions. The Combined Company cannot provide
assurance that its liquidity would be sufficient to repay or refinance such indebtedness if it was accelerated upon an event
of default.

Changes in the Combined Company'’s credit ratings could adversely affect the price of its common stock.
The Combined Company receives debt ratings from the major credit rating agencies in the United States. Factors that
may impact its credit ratings include the sizable attendance and revenue generated from its portfolio of geographically
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diversified regional amusement parks and water parks, vulnerability to cyclical discretionary consumer spending, and
seasonality of its operations. A negative change in the Combined Company ratings or the perception such a change might
occur could adversely affect the market price of its common stock.

The Combined Company is a holding company and is dependent on cash flows, including dividends and other
distributions, from its subsidiaries.

The Combined Company is a holding company and substantially all of its operations are conducted through direct and
indirect subsidiaries. As a holding company, it has no significant assets other than its equity interests in its subsidiaries.
Accordingly, the Combined Company is dependent on cash flows, including dividends and other distributions, from its
subsidiaries to meet its obligations, including the obligations under the Combined Company’s debt agreements, and, as
may be determined by the Combined Company’s Board of Directors, to pay dividends on the Combined Company’s
common stock. If these dividends and other distributions are not sufficient for the Combined Company to meets its
financial obligations, or not available to the Combined Company due to restrictions in the instruments governing its
indebtedness, it could cause the Combined Company to default on its debt obligations, which would impair liquidity and
adversely affect the Combined Company’s financial condition and business.

Variable rate indebtedness could subject the Combined Company to the risk of higher interest rates, which could
cause future debt service obligations to increase.

The Combined Company’s credit agreement is and future borrowings may be at variable rates of interest and expose the
Combined Company to interest rate risk. If interest rates continue to increase, annual debt service obligations on any
variable-rate indebtedness would increase even though the amount borrowed remained the same, and net income would
decrease.

Declaration, payment and amounts of dividends, if any, distributed to shareholders of the Combined Company
will be uncertain.

Although Former Six Flags has paid cash dividends and Former Cedar Fair has paid partnership distributions to limited
partners in the past, the Combined Company’s Board of Directors may determine not to declare dividends in the future or
may reduce the amount of dividends paid in the future. Any payment of future dividends will be at the discretion of the
Board of Directors and will depend on the Combined Company’s results of operations, financial condition, cash
requirements, future prospects and other considerations that the Board of Directors deems relevant, including, but not
limited to:

» decisions on whether, when and in which amounts to make any future dividends will remain at all times entirely
at the discretion of the Board of Directors, which could change its dividend practices at any time and for any
reason;

+ the Combined Company’s desire to maintain or improve the credit ratings on its debt;

«  the amount of dividends that the Combined Company may distribute to its shareholders is subject to restrictions
under Delaware law; and

« the agreements governing the Combined Company’s indebtedness.

Combined Company shareholders should be aware that they have no contractual or other legal right to dividends that
have not been declared.

A portion of the Combined Company’s cash flows is required to be used to fund its Partnership Park
arrangements.

The Combined Company has significant financial obligations under its Partnership Park arrangements. See Note 7 for a
detailed discussion. The obligations related to the Partnership Parks continue until 2027, in the case of Six Flags Over
Georgia and White Water Atlanta, and 2028, in the case of Six Flags Over Texas. Such obligations include minimum
annual distributions, minimum capital expenditures, an annual offer to purchase all outstanding limited partnership units,
and either (a) purchasing all of the outstanding limited partnership interests in the Partnership Parks upon the earlier of
the occurrence of specified events and the end of the term of the partnership that hold the Partnership Parks or
(b) causing each of the partnerships that hold the Partnership Parks to have no indebtedness and to meet certain other
financial tests as of the end of the term of such partnership. In December 2024, the Combined Company elected to
purchase all of the outstanding limited partnership interests in Six Flags Over Georgia and White Water Atlanta in 2027.
The Combined Company will be required to make an election regarding Six Flags Over Texas by December 31, 2025. In
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the event of default by the Combined Company under the Partnership Parks arrangements, Time Warner has the right to
take control of the Partnership Parks. In addition, such a default could trigger an event of default under the 2024 Credit
Agreement, as amended.

Anti-takeover provisions in the Combined Company’s organizational documents, debt agreements and Delaware
law could delay or prevent change of control.

Certain provisions in the Combined Company’s certificate of incorporation, bylaws and debt agreements could have the
effect of delaying, deferring or preventing a merger, takeover attempt, or other change of control transaction that a
shareholder might consider in its best interest. The Combined Company is also subject to the anti-takeover provisions of
Delaware law, which could have the effect of delaying or preventing a change of control in some circumstances.

The Combined Company’s certificate of incorporation designates the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware
as the sole and exclusive forum for certain types of actions and proceedings that may be initiated by its
shareholders, which could limit shareholders’ ability to obtain a favorable judicial forum for disputes with the
Combined Company or its directors, officers or other employees.

The Combined Company’s certificate of incorporation provides that, unless the Combined Company consents in writing to
the selection of an alternative forum, the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware (or, if the Court of Chancery does not
have jurisdiction, the federal district court for the District of Delaware) shall, to the fullest extent permitted by law, be the
sole and exclusive forum for (i) any derivative action or proceeding brought on behalf of the Combined Company, (ii) any
action asserting a claim for a breach of a fiduciary duty owed by any director, officer, employee, or agent of the Combined
Company or its shareholders, (iii) any action asserting a claim arising pursuant to any provision of the Delaware General
Corporation Law (“DGCL”) or the Combined Company’s organizational documents, (iv) any action asserting a claim
governed by the internal affairs doctrine or (v) any action asserting an “internal corporate claim” as that term is defined in
Section 115 of the DGCL.

The Combined Company’s certificate of incorporation also provides that, unless the Combined Company consents in
writing to the selection of an alternative forum, the federal district courts of the United States will be the sole and exclusive
forum for any action brought under the Securities Act. Any person or entity purchasing or otherwise acquiring any interest
in shares of capital stock of the Combined Company is deemed to have received notice of and consented to the forum
selection provisions of the Combined Company’s certificate of incorporation. Such provisions may limit shareholders’
ability to bring a claim in a judicial forum that they find favorable for disputes with the Combined Company or its directors,
officers or other employees, which may discourage such lawsuits. Alternatively, if a court were to find the choice of forum
provisions inapplicable to, or unenforceable in respect of, one or more of the specified types of actions or proceedings, the
Combined Company may incur additional costs associated with resolving such matters in other jurisdictions, which could
adversely affect its business, financial condition, prospects or results of operations.

Risks Related to Human Capital

Increased costs of labor and employee health and welfare benefits may impact the Combined Company’s results
of operations.

Labor is a primary component in the cost of operating the business. Increased labor costs, due to competition, inflationary
pressures, increased federal, state or local minimum wage requirements, and increased employee benefit costs, including
health care costs, could adversely impact operating expenses. Former Six Flags and Former Cedar Fair have
experienced meaningful increases in the seasonal labor rate over the past several years. Continued increases to both
market wage rates and the statutory minimum wage rates could also materially impact future seasonal labor rates. It is
possible that these changes could significantly increase labor costs, which would adversely affect operating results and
cash flows.

Additionally, Former Six Flags and Former Cedar Fair contributed to multiple defined benefit multiemployer pension plans
on behalf of collectively bargained employees. If the Combined Company were to cease contributing to or otherwise incur
a withdrawal from any such plans, the Combined Company could be obligated to pay withdrawal liability assessments
based on the underfunded status (if any) of such plans at the time of the withdrawal. The amount of any multiemployer
pension plan underfunding can fluctuate from year to year, and thus there is a possibility that the amount of withdrawal
liability that could be incurred in the future could be material, which could materially adversely affect the Combined
Company’s financial condition.
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The Combined Company depends on a seasonal workforce to meet its operational needs.

The Combined Company’s success depends on its ability to attract, motivate and retain qualified employees, many of
whom are seasonal employees, to keep pace with its needs. If the Combined Company is unable to do so, its results of
operations and cash flows may be adversely affected. The Combined Company employs a significant workforce each
season and seeks to manage seasonal wages and the timing of the hiring process to ensure the appropriate workforce is
in place for peak and low seasons. The Combined Company recruits year-round both domestically and internationally to
fill thousands of staffing positions to ensure the appropriate workforce is in place at the right time. The Combined
Company may be unable to recruit and hire adequate personnel as the business requires or it may experience material
increases in the cost of securing its workforce in the future. These risks may be heightened if certain visa programs are
discontinued.

If the Combined Company loses key personnel, the business may be adversely affected.

The Combined Company’s success depends in part upon a number of key employees, including its senior management
team, whose members have been involved in the leisure and hospitality industries for an average of more than 20 years.
The loss of services of key employees or the inability to replace key employees could cause disruption in important
operational, financial and strategic functions and have a material adverse effect on the business.

Unionization activities or labor disputes may disrupt operations and affect profitability.

Certain of the Combined Company’s domestic full-time and seasonal employees are subject to labor agreements with
local chapters of national unions, and certain of its international full-time and seasonal employees are subject to labor
agreements with local chapters of national unions. There are also collective bargaining agreements in place for certain
employees at several of the parks. New unionization activity or a labor dispute involving employees could disrupt
operations and reduce revenues, and resolution of such activities and disputes could increase costs. Litigation relating to
employment and/or wage and hour disputes could also increase operating expenses. Such disrupted operations, reduced
revenues or increased costs could have a material adverse effect on the Combined Company’s financial condition and
results of operations.

Risks Related to Legal, Regulatory and Compliance Matters

Cyber-security risks and the failure to maintain the integrity of internal or customer data could result in damages
to the Combined Company’s reputation and/or subject it to costs, fines or lawsuits.

In the normal course of business, the Combined Company, or third parties on its behalf, collects and retains large
volumes of internal and customer data, including credit card numbers and other personally identifiable information, which
is used for marketing and promotional purposes, and various information technology systems enter, process, summarize
and report such data. The Combined Company also maintains personally identifiable information about its employees.
Former Six Flags and Former Cedar Fair have experienced, and the Combined Company continues to experience,
cybersecurity threats and vulnerabilities in its systems and those of its third party providers, including cyber-attacks
targeting information technology systems and networks, which could result in a loss of sensitive business or customer
information, systems interruption or the disruption of operations. The integrity and protection of such data is critical to the
business, and guests and employees have a high expectation that the Combined Company will adequately protect their
personal information. The regulatory environment, as well as the requirements imposed by the credit card industry,
governing information, security and privacy laws is increasingly demanding and continues to evolve. Maintaining
compliance with applicable security and privacy regulations may increase operating costs and/or adversely impact the
ability to market the parks, products and services to guests. Furthermore, if a person could circumvent security measures,
he or she could destroy or steal valuable information or disrupt operations. Any security breach could expose the
Combined Company to risks of data loss, which could harm its reputation and result in remedial and other costs, fines or
lawsuits. Although the Combined Company carries liability insurance to cover this risk, its coverage may not be adequate
to cover liabilities, and it may not be able to obtain adequate coverage should a catastrophic incident occur.

Further, implementing a strategy to pursue new initiatives that improve operations and cost structure will result in a larger
technological presence and corresponding exposure to cybersecurity risk. Failure to adequately assess and identify
cybersecurity risks associated with new initiatives would increase vulnerability to such risks. Due to the increased hybrid
workforce, the Combined Company must also increasingly rely on information technology systems that are outside its
direct control. These systems are potentially vulnerable to cyber-based attacks and security breaches.

Even if the Combined Company is fully compliant with legal standards and contractual or other requirements, it still may
not be able to prevent security breaches involving sensitive data. The Combined Company requires certain of its third
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party service providers to have programs in place to detect, contain and respond to data security incidents. However, the
actions and controls that are implemented and continue to be implemented, or which the Combined Company has caused
or seeks to cause third party service providers to implement, may be insufficient to protect the Combined Company’s
systems, information or other intellectual property. In addition, the techniques used to obtain unauthorized access or
interfere with systems change frequently and may be difficult to detect for long periods of time, and the Combined
Company may be unable to anticipate these techniques or implement adequate preventive measures. The sophistication
of efforts by hackers to gain unauthorized access to information technology systems has continued to increase in recent
years. Breaches, thefts, losses or fraudulent uses of customer, employee or company data could cause customers to lose
confidence in the security of the Combined Company’s websites, mobile applications, point of sale systems and other
information technology systems and choose not to purchase from the Combined Company. Such security breaches also
could expose the Combined Company to risks of data loss, business disruption, litigation and other costs or liabilities, any
of which could adversely affect the business.

Data privacy regulation and the Combined Company’s ability to comply could harm the business.

The Combined Company is subject to laws that regulate the collection, use, retention, security, and transfer of its
customer’s data. Data privacy is subject to frequently changing rules and regulations, such as California’s Consumer
Privacy Act (the “CCPA”) that became effective January 1, 2020, which provides a private right of action for data breaches
and requires companies that process information on California residents to make certain disclosures to consumers about
their data collection, use and sharing practices and allow consumers to opt out of certain data sharing with third parties.
Compliance with the CCPA, and other current and future applicable privacy and related laws can be costly and time-
consuming, and violations of privacy-related laws can result in significant damages and penalties. These laws continue to
evolve in ways that cannot be predicted, both through regulatory and legislative action and judicial decisions, and may
harm the business.

The Combined Company’s privacy policies and practices concerning the collection, use and disclosure of user data are
available on its website. Any failure, or perceived failure, by the Combined Company to comply with its posted privacy
policies or with any regulatory requirements or orders or other privacy or consumer protection-related laws and
regulations, including the CCPA, could result in proceedings or actions against the Combined Company by governmental
entities or others (e.g., class action privacy litigation), subject the Combined Company to significant penalties and
negative publicity, require the Combined Company to change its business practices, increase its costs and adversely
affect the business. Data collection, privacy and security have become the subject of increasing public concern. If internet
and mobile users were to reduce their use of the Combined Company’s websites, mobile platforms, products, and
services as a result of these concerns, the business could be harmed.

The Combined Company’s operations, its workforce and its ownership of property subject it to various laws and
regulatory compliance, which may create uncertainty regarding future expenditures and liabilities.

The Combined Company may be required to incur costs to comply with regulatory requirements, such as those relating to
employment practices, environmental requirements, and other regulatory matters, and the costs of compliance,
investigation, remediation, litigation, and resolution of regulatory matters could be substantial. The Combined Company
may also be required to incur additional costs and commit management resources to comply with proposed regulatory
requirements that may become effective in the near future, including ESG initiatives, which continue to be a focus for
investors and other stakeholders. Any ESG initiatives entered into by the Combined Company may not realize their
intended or projected benefits.

The Combined Company is subject to extensive federal and state employment laws and regulations, including wage and
hour laws and other pay practices and employee record-keeping requirements. Former Six Flags and Cedar Fair
periodically have had to, and the Combined Company may have to, defend against lawsuits asserting non-compliance.
Such lawsuits can be costly, time consuming and distract management, and adverse rulings in these types of claims could
negatively affect the Combined Company’s business, financial condition or results of operations.

The Combined Company also is subject to federal, state and local environmental laws and regulations such as those
relating to water resources; discharges to air, water and land; the handling and disposal of solid and hazardous waste;
and the cleanup of properties affected by regulated materials. Under these laws and regulations, the Combined Company
may be required to investigate and clean up hazardous or toxic substances or chemical releases from current or formerly
owned or operated facilities or to mitigate potential environmental risks. Environmental laws typically impose cleanup
responsibility and liability without regard to whether the relevant entity knew of or caused the presence of the
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contaminants. The costs of investigation, remediation or removal of regulated materials may be substantial, and the
presence of those substances, or the failure to remediate a property properly, may impair the ability to use, transfer or
obtain financing regarding the Combined Company’s property.

Adverse litigation judgments or settlements resulting from legal proceedings in which the Combined Company
may be involved in the normal course of business could adversely affect its business, financial condition or
results of operations.

The Combined Company is subject to allegations, claims and legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business,
which may include claims by third parties, including guests who visit the parks, employees or regulators. The outcome of
these proceedings cannot be predicted. If any of these proceedings is determined adversely, or if the Combined Company
receives a judgment, a fine or a settlement involving a payment of a material sum of money, or injunctive relief is issued
against the Combined Company, its business, financial condition or results of operations could be materially adversely
affected. Litigation can also be expensive, lengthy and disruptive to normal business operations, including to management
due to the increased time and resources required to respond to and address the litigation.

Additionally, from time to time, animal activist and other third party groups may make negative public statements about the
Combined Company or bring claims before government agencies or lawsuits against it. Such claims and lawsuits could be
based on allegations that the Combined Company does not properly care for some of its featured animals. On other
occasions, such claims and/or lawsuits could be specifically designed to change existing law or enact new law in order to
impede the Combined Company’s ability to retain, exhibit, acquire or breed animals. While the Combined Company seeks
to comply with all applicable federal and state laws and will vigorously defend itself in any lawsuits, the outcome of future
claims and lawsuits that could be brought against it is uncertain. An unfavorable outcome in any legal proceeding could
have a material adverse effect on the Combined Company’s business, financial condition or results of operations. In
addition, associated negative publicity could adversely affect its reputation, business, financial condition or results of
operations.

General Risk Factors

Other factors, including local events, natural disasters, other effects of climate change, pandemics, and terrorist
activities, or threats of these events, could adversely impact park attendance and revenues.

Natural disasters, other effects of climate change, public heath crises, epidemics, pandemics, terrorist activities, power
outages or other events outside the control of the Combined Company could disrupt its operations, impair critical systems,
damage its properties or reduce attendance at the parks or require temporary park closures. Damage to the Combined
Company’s properties could take a long time to repair and there is no guarantee that the Combined Company would have
adequate insurance to cover the costs of repair or the expense of the interruption to the business. Furthermore, natural
disasters such as fires, earthquakes or hurricanes may interrupt or impede access to affected properties or require
evacuations and may cause attendance at affected properties to decrease for an indefinite period. The occurrence of such
events could have a material adverse effect on the Combined Company’s business, financial condition or results of
operations. In addition, since some of the parks are near major urban areas and appeal to teenagers and young adults,
there may be disturbances at one or more parks that could negatively affect the Combined Company’s reputation or
brand. This may result in a decrease in attendance at the affected parks and could adversely impact the Combined
Company’s results of operations. The frequency, duration or severity of these activities and the effect that they may have
on the Combined Company’s business, financial condition or results of operations cannot be predicted.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS.

None.

ITEM 1C. CYBERSECURITY.

As described under Item 1A in this Form 10-K, the Combined Company is subject to risks from cybersecurity threats,
including risks relating to maintaining customer and employee data. Cybersecurity is a key focus at multiple levels of the
organization, and management has developed policies and procedures to assess, identify and manage risks from
cybersecurity threats.

+ Board of Directors — Enterprise risk management (“ERM”) process: As part of the ERM process, executive
management and the Board of Directors regularly review an assessment related to cybersecurity and data
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protection risks to identify material risk areas, assess processes to mitigate those risks, and identify process and
procedure improvements to alleviate identified risks, including allocating appropriate resources. Cybersecurity
and data protection focus areas of ERM include phishing, malware, data breaches, outdated software, staffing
levels for key information technology positions, and risks associated with the use of third parties.

Audit and Finance Committee of the Board of Directors: The Audit and Finance Committee is responsible for
discussing the Combined Company’s major information technology risk exposures, including cybersecurity, and
the steps management has taken to monitor and control such exposures. The Audit and Finance Committee
dedicates attention to and provides oversight of certain cybersecurity risks. The Chief Digital and Technology
Officer and Corporate Vice President, IT Infrastructure Operations and Security, meet with the Audit and Finance
Committee regularly to assess management’s progress on implementing process and procedure improvements
related to cybersecurity. The Audit and Finance Committee also provides guidance on long-term and short-term
cybersecurity strategies.

Executive Management — Technology Governance Committee: The Technology Governance Committee
consists of certain members of executive management, including the Chief Accounting Officer, Chief Digital and
Technology Officer, Chief Commercial Officer, Chief Strategy Officer, and Corporate Vice President, IT
Infrastructure Operations and Security. This committee evaluates projects involving information technology,
including reviewing best practices and change management needs and communicating a company-wide
approach. Therefore, the information technology department is aware of system and application implementations
prior to execution to facilitate proper application and infrastructure security both during implementation and after
implementation. Internal audit is notified of system and application implementations as part of this process as
well. The internal audit department works with the information technology department to review information
technology projects to ensure key projects are appropriately planned, designed, developed, tested, deployed and
maintained, including verifying proper security both during and after implementation.

Information Technology Department: The information technology department consists of employees with
extensive cybersecurity experience, including the Chief Digital and Technology Officer and Corporate Vice
President, IT Infrastructure Operations and Security, as well as a team of compliance and security associates.
Cybersecurity experience within the information technology department includes prior work experience and
bachelor’s degrees or higher in technology related fields. In addition to internal resources, management engages
a cyber insurance carrier with comprehensive data privacy and security risk management services; a managed
security service provider with comprehensive security solutions, including continuous network monitoring,
reporting and assistance with investigation; and an information security consulting company that consists of
cybersecurity experts and information security practitioners to provide additional cybersecurity support.
Management also maintains a system of information technology controls and procedures, including controls and
procedures related to authentication and access, recovery plans and secured backups of data, the design of
applications and selection of packaged software, and testing of significant changes in applications and
infrastructure technology. Management also provides training to its employees about cybersecurity, performs
penetration testing at least annually, performs security incident preparedness activities at least annually, and
performs an annual Payment Card Industry (“PCI”) attestation. Third party providers involving information
technology are identified as part of the contract review process. System and Organizational Controls (“SOC”)
reports are reviewed annually for third party providers. The information technology department continuously
monitors for cybersecurity threats in order to detect if a cybersecurity incident has occurred. The department
uses endpoint detection and response (“EDR”) and security information and event management (“SIEM”) with
the assistance of a managed security service provider and internal analysts to detect and identify threats. Lastly,
management follows the National Institute of Standards and Technology (“NIST”) Framework, which enables
management to compare the Company against the industry and manage dynamic cybersecurity risks.

If a cybersecurity incident were to occur, including a cybersecurity incident associated with a third-party provider,
management has developed an incident response plan to align responsibilities throughout the organization to facilitate an
efficient and effective response, as well as an appropriate investigation of each incident. The incident response plan is led
by executive management, the Chief Digital and Technology Officer, the Corporate Vice President, IT Infrastructure
Operations and Security, and the information technology department and includes a further delegation of incident
responsibility to key internal stakeholders, including the legal, investor relations, human resources, and internal audit
departments. Upon identification of an incident, each incident is assigned an incident materiality rating based on both
quantitative and qualitative considerations. Qualitative considerations include the presence of ransomware, operational
degradation or interruption, operational loss, and sensitive or confidential data loss. Based on the severity of each
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incident, the incident response is escalated. Cybersecurity incidents, regardless of materiality, are investigated by the
information technology department led by Corporate Vice President, IT Infrastructure Operations and Security and are
communicated to the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Legal Officer, Chief Digital and Technology
Officer, the Executive Chairman of the Board of Directors, Lead Independent Director and the Chair of the Audit and
Finance Committee. The entire Board of Directors is notified of material or high-risk incidents.

Risks from cybersecurity threats could materially affect the Combined Company’s business strategy, results of operations

or financial condition as described under Item 1A in this Form 10-K. There are no known risks from cybersecurity incidents
that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect the registrant as of the date of this filing.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES.

OWNED ACREAGE:
Approximate Approximate Approximate
Total Developed Undeveloped
Park Location Acreage Acreage Acreage
Canada’s Wonderland Vaughan, Ontario, Canada 295 295 —
Carowinds Charlotte, N. Carolina and
Fort Mill, S. Carolina 400 300 100

Cedar Point
Cedar Point Shores Sandusky, Ohio 860 725 135
Dorney Park Allentown, Pennsylvania 210 180 30
Kings Dominion Doswell, Virginia 740 280 460
Kings Island Mason, Ohio 650 330 320
Knott’s Berry Farm
Knott’s Berry Farm Soak City Buena Park, California 175 175 —
Michigan’s Adventure Muskegon, Michigan 260 120 140
Schlitterbahn Waterpark and Resort New

Braunfels New Braunfels, Texas 90 75 15
Six Flags America Bowie, Maryland 523 223 300
Six Flags Discovery Kingdom Vallejo, California 127 127 —
Six Flags Fiesta Texas San Antonio, Texas 218 218 —
Six Flags Great Adventure
Six Flags Hurricane Harbor New Jersey
Wild Safari Adventure Jackson, New Jersey 2,107 1,740 367
Six Flags Great America
Six Flags Hurricane Harbor Chicago Gurnee, lllinois 303 273 30
Six Flags Great Escape Resort Queensbury, New York 372 372 —
Six Flags Hurricane Harbor Arlington Arlington, Texas 46 46 —
Six Flags Magic Mountain
Six Flags Hurricane Harbor Los Angeles Valencia, California 255 255 —
Six Flags New England Agawam, Massachusetts 281 281 —
Six Flags St. Louis Eureka, Missouri 316 299 17
Valleyfair Shakopee, Minnesota 190 110 80
Worlds of Fun Kansas City, Missouri 350 255 95

Separately gated water parks are italicized.

Each property in the Owned Acreage table is owned in fee simple and is encumbered by the Combined Company’s credit
agreement and outstanding secured notes, with the exceptions of the land at the location of the Six Flags Resort and
Attraction Management program and portions of the six-mile public highway that serves as secondary access route to
Cedar Point.

25



LEASED ACREAGE:

Approximate

Total Lease

Park Location Acreage Lessor Expiration
California’s Great America (1) Santa Clara, California 175 Prologis Inc. 2028
Frontier City
Six Flags Hurricane Harbor

Oklahoma City (2) Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 132 EPR Parks, LLC 2037
La Ronde Montreal, Quebec, Canada 146 City of Montreal 2065
Schlitterbahn Waterpark

Galveston Galveston, Texas 40 City of Galveston 2049
Six Flags Darien Lake (2) Corfu, New York 988 EPR Parks, LLC 2037
Six Flags Hurricane Harbor

Concord (2) Concord, California 24 EPR Parks, LLC 2035
Six Flags Hurricane Harbor Oaxtepec, Morelos, Mexican Social Security

Oaxtepec Mexico 67 Institute 2036
Six Flags Hurricane Harbor

Phoenix (2) Glendale, Arizona 33 EPR Parks, LLC 2033
Six Flags Hurricane Harbor

Rockford Cherry Valley, lllinois 43 Rockford Park District 2029
Six Flags Hurricane Harbor

Splashtown (2) Spring, Texas 46 EPR Parks, LLC 2037
Six Flags Mexico Mexico City, Mexico Federal District of

110 Mexico City 2034

Six Flags Over Georgia Austell, Georgia
Six Flags White Water (3) Marietta, Georgia 360 Georgia Partnership 2027
Six Flags Over Texas (3) Arlington, Texas 217 Texas Partnership 2028

Separately gated water parks are italicized.

(1) Former Cedar Fair sold the land at California’s Great America on June 27, 2022. Concurrently with the sale of the
land, Cedar Fair entered into a lease contract that allows the Combined Company to operate the park during a
six-year term, and the Combined Company has an option to extend the term for an additional five years. The lease is
subject to early termination by the buyer with at least two years’ prior notice; see Note 11.

(2) The leases with EPR Parks, LLC include capital expenditure commitments, see Note 11.

(3) Six Flags Over Georgia, Six Flags White Water and Six Flags Over Texas are leased from the limited partner of the
partnerships that own these parks. Upon lease expiration, the Combined Company has the option to acquire all of the
interests of the respective limited partner; see Note 7.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.
The Combined Company is a party to a number of lawsuits arising in the normal course of business. In the opinion of

management, none of these matters are expected to have a material effect in the aggregate on the consolidated financial
statements with the exception of the lawsuits described herein.

Putative Securities Class Action Lawsuit

In February 2020, two putative securities class action complaints were filed against Former Six Flags and certain of its
former executive officers (collectively, the “defendants”) in the U.S. District Court for the Northern District of Texas. On
March 2, 2020, the two cases were consolidated in an action captioned Electrical Workers Pension Fund Local
103 I.LB.E.W. v. Six Flags Entertainment Corp., et al., Case No. 4:20-cv-00201-P (N.D. Tex.) (the “Electrical Workers
litigation”), and an amended complaint was filed on March 20, 2020. On May 8, 2020, Oklahoma Firefighters Pension and
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Retirement System (“Oklahoma Firefighters”) and Electrical Workers Pension Fund Local 103 I.B.E.W. were appointed as
lead plaintiffs, Bernstein Litowitz Berger & Grossman LLP was appointed as lead counsel, and McKool Smith PC was
appointed as liaison counsel. On July 2, 2020, lead plaintiffs filed a consolidated complaint. The consolidated complaint
alleges, among other things, that the defendants made materially false or misleading statements or omissions regarding
Former Six Flags’ business, operations and growth prospects, specifically with respect to the development of Six Flags
branded parks in China and the financial health of its former partner, Riverside Investment Group Co. Ltd., in violation of
the federal securities laws. The consolidated complaint seeks an unspecified amount of compensatory damages and
other relief on behalf of a putative class of purchasers of Former Six Flags’ publicly traded common stock during the
period between April 24, 2018 and February 19, 2020. On August 3, 2020, defendants filed a motion to dismiss the
consolidated complaint. On March 3, 2021, the district court granted defendants’ motion, dismissing the complaint in its
entirety and with prejudice.

On August 25, 2021, Co-Lead Plaintiff Oklahoma Firefighters filed a notice of appeal to the U.S. Court of Appeals for the
Fifth Circuit (the “Fifth Circuit”) from the district court’s decisions granting defendants’ motion to dismiss, denying plaintiffs’
motion to amend or set aside judgment, and denying plaintiffs’ motion for leave to file a supplemental brief. The appeal
was fully briefed as of December 15, 2021, and oral argument was held on March 7, 2022. On January 18, 2023, the Fifth
Circuit reversed the dismissal and remanded the case to the district court for further proceedings. On February 9, 2023,
the Fifth Circuit mandate issued to the district court. On March 7, 2023, the district court entered a scheduling order
governing pre-trial proceedings. On April 18, 2023, Oklahoma Firefighters filed a motion for leave to file an amended
complaint that would add a new named plaintiff, remove former Co-Lead Plaintiff Electrical Workers Pension Fund Local
103 I.B.E.W., and modify the case caption. On May 2, 2023, defendants filed an opposition to that motion and a motion for
judgment on the pleadings. On June 2, 2023, the district court granted defendants’ motion for judgment on the pleadings,
dismissing the case with prejudice, and denied Oklahoma Firefighters’ motions. On June 30, 2023, plaintiffs filed a notice
of appeal to the Fifth Circuit from the district court’s decisions. The appeal was fully briefed as of December 4, 2023, and
oral argument was held on March 4, 2024. On April 18, 2024, the Fifth Circuit reversed the dismissal and remanded the
case to the district court. On May 31, 2024, the district court entered a scheduling order setting the case for trial on
December 8, 2025. On September 3, 2024, the parties entered into a settlement agreement, subject to court approval,
resolving the claims. The Combined Company will pay $40.0 million to settle the claims, an amount that will be fully
funded by the Combined Company’s insurance carriers. On September 23, 2024, the District Court granted the plaintiffs’
motion for preliminary approval of the settlement and scheduled a final fairness hearing for January 25, 2025. On
January 28, 2025, the court entered its order and judgement of final approval of the settlement.

Shareholder Derivative Lawsuits

On February 16, 2023, a putative shareholder derivative lawsuit was filed on behalf of nhominal defendant Former Six
Flags by John Hancock in Texas state court against certain of its former executive officers and directors (the “individual
defendants”) in an action captioned Hancock v. Roedel, et al., Case No. 348-340304-23 (348th Dist. Ct., Tarrant Cty.,
Tex.). Plaintiff refers to and makes many of the same allegations as are set forth in the Electrical Workers litigation,
claiming that, among other things, the individual defendants caused Former Six Flags to make false and misleading
statements and omissions about the status of construction of Six Flags branded parks in China and the financial health of
its former partner, Riverside Investment Group Co. Ltd. Plaintiff asserts breach of fiduciary duty and unjust enrichment
claims. Plaintiff seeks an unspecified amount of monetary damages and equitable relief including, but not limited to,
disgorgement. On September 7, 2023, the individual defendants and Former Six Flags filed a motion to stay pending
resolution of a duplicative federal derivative action, captioned Dela Cruz v. Reid-Anderson, et al, Case No.
3:23-CV-0396-D (N.D. Tex), and described below. On September 15, 2023, the court granted the motion to stay and
ordered the action stayed until 30 days after a ruling by the federal court on the motions to dismiss pending in Dela Cruz
v. Reid-Anderson. On March 6, 2024, the parties jointly stipulated to stay the action pending resolution of the appeal in
Dela Cruz v. Reid-Anderson, which the court approved. On July 8, 2024, Plaintiff filed a Notice of Nonsuit Without
Prejudice, which the court ordered on July 9, 2024.

On February 22, 2023, a putative shareholder derivative lawsuit was filed on behalf of nominal defendant Former Six
Flags by Antonio Dela Cruz in the U.S. District Court for the Northern District of Texas against certain of its current and
former executive officers and directors (the “individual defendants”) in an action captioned Cruz v. Reid-Anderson, et al.,
Case No. 3:23-CV-0396-D (N.D. Tex.). Plaintiff refers to and makes many of the same allegations as are set forth in the
Electrical Workers litigation, claiming that, among other things, the individual defendants caused Former Six Flags to
make false and misleading statements and omissions about the status of construction of Six Flags branded parks in China
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and the financial health of its former partner, Riverside Investment Group Co. Ltd. Plaintiff asserts contribution, breach of
fiduciary duty, and unjust enrichment claims. Plaintiff seeks an unspecified amount of monetary damages and equitable
relief including, but not limited to, disgorgement. On September 12, 2023, Former Six Flags and the individual defendants
filed motions to dismiss the amended complaint. On January 12, 2024, the district court granted defendants’ motions,
dismissing the complaint in its entirety and with prejudice. On February 7, 2024, Plaintiffs filed a Notice of Appeal of the
district court’s decision. The appeal was fully briefed as of May 29, 2024. On July 2, 2024, Plaintiff fled an Unopposed
Motion to Withdraw Appeal. On July 8, 2024, the Fifth Circuit dismissed the appeal.

Securities and Exchange Commission Investigation

The Securities and Exchange Commission is conducting an investigation into Former Six Flags’ disclosures and reporting
made in 2018 through February 2020 related to its business, operations and growth prospects of its Six Flags branded
parks in China and the financial health of its former business partner, Riverside Investment Group Co. Ltd. Former Six
Flags received a document subpoena in February 2020 and subsequently certain current and former executives received
subpoenas in connection with this matter and they continue to provide responsive information. The involved parties are
fully cooperating and are committed to continuing to cooperate fully with the SEC in this matter. The length, scope or
results of the investigation, or the impact, of the investigation on results of operations, business or financial condition
cannot be predicted.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES.

Not applicable.
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PART Il

ITEMS5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED SHAREHOLDER MATTERS AND
ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES.

Six Flags Entertainment Corporation is listed for trading on The New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “FUN”. As of
February 21, 2025, there were approximately 3,210 registered holders of Six Flags Entertainment Corporation common
stock. Item 12 in this Form 10-K includes information regarding equity incentive plans, which is incorporated herein by
reference.

The 2024 Credit Agreement, as amended, and fixed rate note agreements include restricted payment provisions, which
could limit the Combined Company’s ability to pay dividends. See Note 6 for additional information.

Shareholder Return Performance Graph

The graph below shows a comparison of the cumulative total return for Six Flags Entertainment Corporation common
stock, the S&P 500 Index, the S&P MidCap 400 Index, the S&P SmallCap 600 Index, the S&P Movies and Entertainment
Index and the S&P Leisure Facilities Index, assuming investment of $100 on July 2, 2024, the first trading day of the
Combined Company’s common stock. The S&P SmallCap 600 Index and the S&P Leisure Facilities Index were added in
the current year as these indexes more closely align with the Combined Company’s size and industry. These indexes will
replace the S&P MidCap 400 Index and the S&P Movies and Entertainment Index, respectively, in future disclosures.

$130 - -
—&— Six Flags Entertaiment

$120 /. Corporation

—l— S&P 500 Index

sto % —4— S&P MidCap 400 Index
$100 —3%— S&P SmallCap 600 Index
$90 —¥— S&P Movies and Entertainment

e Index

—@— S&P Leisure Facilities Index

$80 T T
July 2, 2024 December 31, 2024
Return
Base Period December 31,
July 2, 2024 2024
Six Flags Entertainment Corporation $100.00 $ 87.79
S&P 500 Index 100.00 107.48
S&P MidCap 400 Index 100.00 108.02
S&P SmallCap 600 Index 100.00 109.98
S&P Movies and Entertainment Index 100.00 125.73
S&P Leisure Facilities Index 100.00 110.36

ITEM 6. RESERVED.

ITEM7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS
OF OPERATIONS.

Merger Agreement with Former Six Flags

On July 1, 2024, the previously announced merger of equals transaction contemplated by the Merger Agreement, by and
among CopperSteel HoldCo, Inc., Cedar Fair, Former Six Flags and Copper Merger Sub, was completed. Upon the
consummation of the Mergers, the separate legal existences of each of Copper Merger Sub, Cedar Fair and Former Six
Flags ceased, and the Combined Company changed its name to “Six Flags Entertainment Corporation”. The Combined
Company trades on the New York Stock Exchange under the ticker symbol “FUN”. References to the “Partnership,”

29



“Cedar Fair,” or “Former Cedar Fair’ are to Cedar Fair prior to the Mergers, and references to the “Combined Company”
and the “Company” are to Cedar Fair, Former Six Flags and Copper Merger Sub after giving effect to the Mergers. The
Mergers were entered into to create a leading amusement park operator with an expanded and diversified property
portfolio, improved guest experience utilizing the complementary operating capabilities of Cedar Fair and Former Six
Flags, and the opportunity for accelerated investment in the Cedar Fair and Former Six Flags properties with the cash
flows of the Combined Company. For additional information, see the Explanatory Note in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K and Note 2.

The Six Flags Merger was accounted for as a business combination using the acquisition method of accounting. Former
Cedar Fair has been determined to be the accounting acquirer and the predecessor for financial statement purposes.
Accordingly, unless indicated otherwise, financial results and disclosures within this Management’s Discussion and
Analysis referring to periods prior to the Closing Date include only Former Cedar Fair’s results before giving effect to the
Mergers, including financial results and disclosures for the year ended December 31, 2023. The results for Former Six
Flags are included in the Combined Company’s results from the Closing Date forward. Accordingly, financial results and
disclosures for the year ended December 31, 2024 reflect combined operations for only July 1, 2024, through
December 31, 2024, and include only Former Cedar Fair's results before giving effect to the Mergers for the first six
months of 2024.

Business Overview

The Combined Company is North America’s largest regional amusement park operator with 27 amusement parks,
15 separately gated water parks and nine resorts. Of the 42 amusement and water parks, 38 are located in the United
States, two are located in Mexico and two are located in Canada. The parks generate revenues from sales of
(1) admission to amusement parks and water parks, (2) food, merchandise and games both inside and outside the parks,
and (3) accommodations, extra-charge products, and other revenue sources. The Combined Company’s principal costs
and expenses, which include salaries and wages, operating supplies, maintenance, insurance, advertising and lease
payments, are relatively fixed for a typical operating season and do not vary significantly with attendance. The Combined
Company’s principal costs and expenses have recently been impacted by increased wage rates, driven both by market
rates and statutory rates, higher insurance costs, and general inflation affecting the costs of inventory, services and
supplies.

The Combined Company’s operations are seasonal. In a typical year at Former Six Flags and Cedar Fair, approximately
70% of annual attendance and revenue occurred during the second and third quarters of each year. As a result, a
substantial portion of the Combined Company’s revenues are expected to be generated from Memorial Day through Labor
Day with the major portion concentrated during the peak vacation months of July and August. The fall and winter seasons
have also become more important to the Combined Company’s operations due to the popularity of fall and winter events.
Consequently, when adverse conditions or events occur during the operating season, particularly during the peak
vacation months of July and August or the important fall season, there is only a limited period of time during which the
impact of those conditions or events can be mitigated. Accordingly, the timing of such conditions or events can have a
disproportionate adverse effect upon revenues.

Each of the parks is overseen by a general manager or park president and operates autonomously. Management reviews
operating results, evaluates performance and makes operating decisions, including allocating resources, on a
park-by-park basis. Discrete financial information and operating results are prepared at the individual park level for use by
the CEO, who is the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM), as well as by the Chief Financial Officer, the Chief
Operating Officer, Senior Vice Presidents and the general managers or park presidents of the parks. The Combined
Company operates within a single reportable segment of amusement/water parks with accompanying resort facilities.

The following operational measures are key performance metrics in the Combined Company’s managerial and operational
reporting. They are used as major factors in significant operational decisions as they are the primary drivers of financial
and operational performance, measuring demand, pricing and consumer behavior. In-park revenues, in-park per capita
spending and out-of-park revenues are non-GAAP measures.

Attendance is defined as the number of guest visits to amusement parks and separately gated outdoor water parks.
Attendance is driven by various factors, including pricing, new rides and product offerings, guest satisfaction, weather,
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advertising programs, perceived safety of the parks and economic conditions. Major attendance categories include
single-day attendance related to a single-day ticket, including sales to groups, season pass attendance related to season
passes that are valid for an operating season, and membership attendance related to memberships that are valid for a
12-month non-cancelable period and until the guest cancels thereafter.

In-park per capita spending is calculated as revenues generated within the amusement parks and separately gated
outdoor water parks along with related parking revenues and online transaction fees charged to customers (in-park
revenues), divided by total attendance. In-park per capita spending is driven by similar factors to attendance and is also
impacted by the length of stay of the Combined Company’s guests. Major in-park per capita spending categories include
admission, food and beverage, retail, games and extra-charge products. Extra-charge products include premium benefit
offerings such as front-of-line products.

Out-of-park revenues are defined as revenues from resorts, out-of-park food and retail locations, sponsorships,
international agreements and all other out-of-park operations. Out-of-park revenues are primarily driven by attendance to
the parks and can increase length of stay at the Combined Company’s properties as guests purchase hotel rooms and
visit out-of-park food and retail locations. In addition, higher attendance levels enable the Combined Company to develop
long-term corporate sponsorships and co-marketing relationships with well-known national and regional brands.

The following table presents net revenues disaggregated by in-park revenues and out-of-park revenues less amounts
remitted to outside parties under concessionaire arrangements (concessionaire remittance) for the periods presented. The
results for the year ended December 31, 2024 include the results of Former Six Flags operations since the Closing Date
of the Mergers (see Note 2). Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified from out-of-park revenues to in-park
revenues following completion of the Mergers (see Note 1).

Years Ended December 31,

(In thousands) 2024 2023 2022
In-park revenues $2,553,486 $1,658,912 $1,692,329
Out-of-park revenues 232,415 192,257 180,191
Concessionaire remittance (76,975) (52,501) (55,137)

Net revenues $2,708,926 $1,798,668 $1,817,383

Strategy and Project Accelerate

Following the Mergers, the Combined Company has introduced Project Accelerate as its strategy to enhance shareholder
value. The key objectives of Project Accelerate are to: (1) enhance the guest experience by delivering a stronger price-
value proposition that drives demand; (2) identify and activate operating efficiencies that generate cost synergies and
drive margin expansion; (3) maintain a disciplined approach to the prioritization and activation of capital investments to
realize the full market potential of each park, while maximizing free cash flow efficiency; (4) integrate technology stacks
with a focus on harmonizing systems, eliminating redundancies, and enhancing the guest-facing digital experience; and
(5) evaluate the potential divestiture of non-core assets.

The Combined Company plans to meet these objectives by driving revenue growth through higher levels of attendance,
in-park per capita spending and out-of-park revenues, investing approximately a combined $1.0 billion in capital
expenditures during 2025 and 2026, and achieving cost synergies that began in 2024 and will continue through 2025.
Management plans to increase attendance by providing an improved guest experience, new marketable rides and
attractions, modified operating calendars, improving its marketing strategy and focusing on increasing season pass visits
through average visits per season pass and renewal rates. Management plans to increase in-park per capita spending by
expanding the use of revenue management tools to drive dynamic pricing, refreshing food and beverage facilities to
improve efficiency and quality of offerings, improving seasonal staffing to increase guest satisfaction and spending, and
increasing attendance levels which leads to higher demand for premium products and a longer length of stay.
Management plans to increase out-of-park revenues by upgrading and expanding resort offerings, improving revenue
management capabilities to drive dynamic pricing and increased occupancy, and leveraging the Six Flags brand to
increase sponsorship opportunities. Management plans to fund deferred investment needs and growth opportunities with
the approximate $1.0 billion in planned capital expenditures over the next two years. Management plans to achieve cost
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synergies through operating cost reductions, organizational restructurings and elimination of duplicative overhead costs,
including redundant processes and technologies.

Critical Accounting Estimates

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations is based upon the consolidated
financial statements, which were prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. These principles require management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions during the
normal course of business that affect the amounts reported in the Consolidated Financial Statements and related notes.
The following discussion addresses critical accounting estimates, which are those that are most important to the portrayal
of the Combined Company’s financial condition and operating results or involve a higher degree of judgment and
complexity (see Note 1 for a complete discussion of significant accounting policies). Application of the critical accounting
policies described below involves the exercise of judgment and the use of assumptions as to future uncertainties, and as
a result, actual results could differ from these estimates and assumptions.

Business Combinations

Business combinations are accounted for under the acquisition method of accounting. The amounts assigned to the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed in connection with acquisitions are based on estimated fair values as
of the date of the acquisition, with the remainder, if any, recorded as goodwill. The fair values are determined by
management, taking into consideration information supplied by the management of the acquired entities, valuations
supplied by independent appraisal experts and other relevant information. The determination of fair values requires
significant judgment by management.

During the measurement period, which may be up to one year from the acquisition date, adjustments to the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed may be recorded with the corresponding offset to goodwill. Upon the measurement
period’s conclusion or final determination of the values of assets acquired or liabilities assumed, whichever comes first,
any subsequent adjustments are recorded to the consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive (loss) income.
Adjustments during the measurement period could have a material effect on the Combined Company’s financial position
and results of operations in future periods. Acquisition-related expenses are recognized separately from the business
combination and expensed as incurred.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets, including property and equipment, are reviewed for impairment upon the occurrence of events or
changes in circumstances that would indicate that the carrying value of the assets may not be recoverable. In order to
determine if an asset has been impaired, assets are grouped and tested at the lowest level for which identifiable,
independent cash flows are available. A significant amount of judgment is involved in determining if an indicator of
impairment has occurred. Such indicators may include, among others: a significant decrease in the market price of a long-
lived asset; a significant adverse change in the extent or manner in which a long-lived asset is being used or in its
physical condition; a significant adverse change in legal factors or in the business climate; an accumulation of costs
significantly in excess of the amount originally expected for the acquisition or construction of a long-lived asset; past,
current or future operating or cash flow losses that demonstrate continuing losses associated with the use of a long-lived
asset; and a current expectation that a long-lived asset will be sold or disposed significantly before the end of its
previously estimated useful life. An impairment loss may be recognized when estimated undiscounted future cash flows
expected to result from the use of the asset, including disposition, are less than the carrying value of the asset. The
measurement of the impairment loss to be recognized is based on the difference between the fair value and the carrying
amounts of the assets. Fair value is generally determined using a combination of a cost and market approach. Significant
factors considered in the cost approach include replacement cost, reproduction cost, depreciation, physical deterioration,
functional obsolescence and economic obsolescence of the assets. The market approach estimates fair value by utilizing
market data for similar assets.

The determination of whether an indicator of impairment has occurred and the estimation of undiscounted cash flows

requires management to make significant estimates and consider an anticipated course of action as of the balance sheet
date. Subsequent changes arising from changes in anticipated actions could impact the determination of whether

32



impairment exists, the estimation of undiscounted cash flows and whether the effects could materially impact the
consolidated financial statements.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangible assets, including trade-names, are reviewed for impairment annually, or
more frequently if indicators of impairment exist. A significant amount of judgment is involved in determining if an indicator
of impairment has occurred. Such indicators may include, among others: a significant decline in expected future cash
flows; a sustained, significant decline in equity price and market capitalization; a significant adverse change in legal
factors or in the business climate; unanticipated competition; the testing for recoverability of a significant asset group
within a reporting unit; and slower growth rates. The fair value of a reporting unit is established using a combination of an
income (discounted cash flow) approach and market approach. The income approach uses a reporting unit’s projection of
estimated operating results and discounted cash flows using a weighted-average cost of capital that reflects current
market conditions. Estimated operating results are established using management’s best estimates of economic and
market conditions over the projected period including growth rates in revenues and costs, estimates of future expected
changes in operating margins and cash expenditures. Other significant estimates and assumptions include terminal value
growth rates, future estimates of capital expenditures and changes in future working capital requirements. A market
approach estimates fair value by applying cash flow multiples to the reporting unit’s operating performance. The multiples
are derived from comparable publicly traded companies with similar operating and investment characteristics of the
reporting units.

It is possible that assumptions about future performance, as well as the economic outlook and related conclusions
regarding valuation, could change adversely, which may result in additional impairment that would have a material effect
on the Combined Company’s financial position and results of operations in future periods.

Self-Insurance Reserves

Self-insurance reserves are recorded for the estimated amounts of guest and employee claims and related expenses
incurred each period. Reserves are established for both identified claims and incurred but not reported (“IBNR”) claims
and are recorded when claim amounts become probable and estimable. Reserves for identified claims are based upon
historical claim experience and third-party estimates of settlement costs. Reserves for IBNR claims are based upon claims
data history. Self-insurance reserves are periodically reviewed for changes in facts and circumstances and adjustments
are made as necessary. The ultimate cost for identified claims can be difficult to predict due to the unique facts and
circumstances associated with each claim. In addition, management has observed a pattern of increasing litigation and
settlement costs in recent years.

Revenue Recognition

Revenues are generated from sales of (1) admission to amusement parks and water parks, (2) food, merchandise and
games both inside and outside the parks, and (3) accommodations, extra-charge products, and other revenue sources.
Most revenues are recognized on a daily basis based on actual guest spend at the parks. Revenues from multi-use
products, including season-long products for admission, dining, beverage and other products, as well as the first 12-month
period for membership products, are recognized over the estimated number of uses expected for each type of product.
The estimated number of uses is reviewed and may be updated periodically during the operating season prior to the ticket
or product expiration. The number of uses is estimated based on historical usage adjusted for current period trends. In
order to calculate revenue recognized on season-long products and the first 12-month period for membership products,
management makes significant estimates regarding the estimated number of uses expected for season-long products,
including during interim periods. Actual usage could materially differ from these estimates which could potentially result in
an inappropriate amount of revenue recognized in a given period.

Income Taxes

The Combined Company accounts for income taxes under the asset and liability method. Accordingly, deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognized for the future book and tax consequences attributable to temporary differences between the
financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are determined using enacted tax rates expected to apply in the year in which those temporary differences
are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax law is
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recognized in income at the time of enactment of such change in tax law. Any interest or penalties due for payment of
income taxes are included in the provision for income taxes.

A valuation allowance is recorded if, based on the weight of available evidence, it is more likely than not that some
portion, or all, of a deferred tax asset will not be realized. The need for this allowance is based on several factors including
the ten-year carryforward period allowed for excess foreign tax credits, experience to date of foreign tax credit limitations,
carryforward periods of state net operating losses, and management’s long-term estimates of domestic and foreign source
income.

There is inherent uncertainty in the estimates used to project the amount of foreign tax credit and state net operating loss
carryforwards that are more likely than not to be realized. It is possible that our future income projections, as well as the
economic outlook and related conclusions regarding valuation allowances could change, which may result in additional
valuation allowance being recorded or may result in additional valuation allowance reductions, and which may have a
material negative or positive effect on our reported financial position and results of operations in future periods.

Results of Operations

The Results of Operations section includes a discussion and comparison of 2024 and 2023 results. For a discussion
regarding 2022 results, including comparisons of 2023 results to 2022 results, see “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” within Cedar Fair's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2023, filed with the SEC on February 16, 2024.

2024 vs. 2023

The results for the year ended December 31, 2024 are not directly comparable with the results for the year ended
December 31, 2023 because the year ended December 31, 2024 included the results of Former Six Flags operations from
the Closing Date of the Mergers forward (see Note 2).

The year ended December 31, 2024 included 4,369 operating days compared with 2,365 operating days for the year
ended December 31, 2023, an increase of 2,004 operating days. There were 2,129 operating days in the year ended
December 31, 2024 at Former Six Flags parks following the completion of the Mergers. This increase was partially offset
by 125 fewer operating days at Former Cedar Fair parks driven by fewer planned early season operating days at several
seasonal parks. In particular, Carowinds, Kings Dominion and California’s Great America were open additional operating
days in January and February in the prior period that were not planned in the current period.

The following table presents key financial information and operating measures for the years ended December 31, 2024
and December 31, 2023:

Increase (Decrease)

December 31, December 31,

2024 2023 $ %
(Amounts in thousands, except for per capita and
operating days)

Net revenues $2,708,926 $1,798,668  $910,258 50.6%
Operating costs and expenses 2,019,781 1,316,442 703,339 53.4%
Depreciation and amortization 318,113 157,995 160,118 101.3%
Loss on retirement of fixed assets, net 18,064 18,067 (3) N/M
Loss on impairment of goodwiill 42,462 — 42,462 N/M
Operating income $ 310,506 $ 306,164 $ 4,342 1.4%
Other Data:
Attendance 41,649 26,665 14,984 56.2%
In-park per capita spending $ 61.31 $ 62.21 $ (0.90) (1.4)%
Out-of-park revenues $ 232,415 $ 192,257 $ 40,158 20.9%
Operating days 4,369 2,365 2,004 84.7%
Net (loss) income margin (1) (7.6)% 6.9% (14.5)%

N/M Not meaningful due to the nature of the expense line-item.

(1) Net (loss) income margin is calculated as net (loss) income divided by net revenues.
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For the year ended December 31, 2024, net revenues increased $910.3 million compared with 2023. The increase in net
revenues reflected $882.0 million in net revenues contributed by Former Six Flags operations during the six months
ended December 31, 2024 and a $28.3 million increase in net revenues contributed by Former Cedar Fair operations
during the year ended December 31, 2024 compared to the prior year. The increase in net revenues reflected the impact
of a 15.0 million-visit increase in attendance and a $40.2 million increase in out-of-park revenues, partially offset by the
impact of a $0.90, or 1.4% decrease in in-park per capita spending. The 15.0 million-visit increase in attendance included
a 14.2 million-visit increase resulting from attendance at Former Six Flags parks during the six months ended
December 31, 2024 with the remaining increase driven by higher season pass sales at Former Cedar Fair parks,
improved weather, and increased demand at Former Cedar Fair's parks with significant marketable new rides and
attractions. These factors were partially offset by the impact of fewer planned operating days at Former Cedar Fair. The
$0.90 decrease in in-park per capita spending, which included a $0.04 increase related to the impact of in-park per capita
spending at the Former Six Flags parks during the six months ended December 31, 2024, was due to a planned decrease
in average season pass pricing and a higher mix of season pass visitation at the Former Cedar Fair parks, partially offset
by improved in-park per capita spending for food and beverage and extra-charge products at the Former Cedar Fair
parks, including Fast Lane. The $40.2 million increase in out-of-park revenues was due primarily to $35.0 million
contributed by Former Six Flags operations during the six months ended December 31, 2024, with the remaining increase
largely attributable to increased revenues from the Knott's Hotel following a recent renovation. The increase in net
revenues was partially offset by a $3.3 million unfavorable impact of foreign currency exchange rates.

Operating costs and expenses for the year ended December 31, 2024 increased $703.3 million compared with 2023. The
increase in operating costs and expenses was the result of a $426.5 million increase in operating expenses, a
$204.1 million increase in selling, general, and administrative (“SG&A”) expenses, and a $72.7 million increase in cost of
goods sold. The $426.5 million increase in operating expenses included a $424.8 million increase related to Former Six
Flags operations during the six months ended December 31, 2024 and a $21.1 million increase in self-insurance reserves
at Former Cedar Fair (see Note 1). Excluding these factors, operating expenses decreased in relation to Former Cedar
Fair operations largely as a result of a planned reduction in labor costs totaling $16.0 million, including declines in
seasonal wage rates, full-time head count, and related benefits, and a planned reduction in operating supplies, particularly
for live entertainment. The $204.1 million increase in SG&A expenses included $107.9 million of additional expenses
related to Former Six Flags operations during the six months ended December 31, 2024 and $61.5 million of increased
transaction and integration costs incurred as the accounting acquirer in the Mergers. Excluding these factors, SG&A
expenses increased at Former Cedar Fair due to higher full-time wages of $25.3 million, including equity compensation
and bonuses, and to a lesser extent, higher advertising and information technology costs. Cost of goods sold as a
percentage of food, merchandise and games revenue decreased 10 basis points (“bps”). The 10 bps decrease consisted
of a a 40 bps decrease driven by a combination of planned cost reductions and higher pricing at Former Cedar Fair offset
by a 30 bps increase as a result of the Mergers. The increase in operating costs and expenses was partially offset by a
$1.8 million favorable impact of foreign currency exchange rates.

Depreciation and amortization expense for the year ended December 31, 2024 increased $160.1 million compared with
2023, which was primarily due to $152.3 million of depreciation expense attributable to the Mergers. The loss on
retirement of fixed assets for both periods was due to retirement of assets in the normal course of business, which
includes $5.5 million of retirements at the Former Six Flags parks in the current period and included the retirement of two
specific Former Cedar Fair assets in the prior period. During the third quarter of 2024, management tested the
Schlitterbahn reporting unit’s fair value due to a decline in estimated future cash flows as a result of shifting investment
priorities at those locations following the Mergers. Management concluded the estimated fair value of the Schlitterbahn
reporting unit no longer exceeded its carrying value. Therefore, a $42.5 million impairment of the goodwill related to the
Schlitterbahn reporting unit was recorded during the third quarter of 2024.

After the items above, operating income for 2024 totaled $310.5 million compared to $306.2 million for 2023. The amount
for 2024 included $122.8 million of operating income attributable to the Former Six Flags operations during the six months
ended December 31, 2024.

Net interest expense for 2024 increased $95.8 million as a result of $78.6 million of interest incurred on debt acquired in
the Mergers, as well as refinancing events during 2024, including the full redemption of the 2025 senior notes which were
refinanced with a $1.0 billion senior secured term loan facility, and additional revolving borrowings in 2024. The
refinancing events also resulted in a loss on early debt extinguishment of $8.0 million during 2024. Other expense
(income), net primarily represented the remeasurement of U.S. dollar denominated notes to an entity’s functional
currency.
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For 2024, a provision for income taxes of $240.8 million was recorded compared with $48.0 million for 2023. The increase
in the provision for income taxes was primarily attributable to the non-cash tax effects of the change in tax status from a
partnership to a corporation of Former Cedar Fair as a part of the Mergers, and of a lower-tier partnership as part of an
internal restructuring completed on December 31, 2024 offset partially by lower pre-tax income relative to the comparable
period.

After the items above and net loss attributable to non-controlling interests, net loss attributable to Six Flags Entertainment
Corporation for 2024 totaled $231.2 million, or $3.22 per diluted share of common stock. The net loss included
$6.1 million of net income relating to the Former Six Flags operations during the six months ended December 31, 2024.
Net income for 2023 totaled $124.6 million, or $2.42 per diluted limited partner unit. Net income margin decreased largely
due to the $192.8 million increase in provision for taxes and a $95.8 million increase in net interest expense, both of which
were primarily as a result of the Mergers.

Modified EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA

Modified EBITDA represents earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, amortization, other non-cash items, and
adjustments as defined in the Combined Company’s credit agreement. Adjusted EBITDA represents Modified EBITDA
less net income attributable to non-controlling interests. Both measures have been included to disclose the effect of
non-controlling interests. Prior to the Mergers, Former Cedar Fair did not have net income attributable to non-controlling
interests. Modified EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA are not measurements of operating performance computed in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) and should not be considered as a substitute for
operating income, net income or cash flows from operating activities computed in accordance with GAAP. Management
believes Modified EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA are meaningful measures of park-level operating profitability, and uses
them for measuring returns on capital investments, evaluating potential acquisitions, determining awards under incentive
compensation plans, and calculating compliance with certain loan covenants. Adjusted EBITDA is widely used by
analysts, investors and comparable companies in the industry to evaluate operating performance on a consistent basis,
as well as more easily compare results with those of other companies in the industry. These measures are provided as
supplemental measures of the Combined Company’s operating results and may not be comparable to similarly titled
measures of other companies.

The table below sets forth a reconciliation of Modified EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA to net (loss) income for the years
ended December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023. The results for the year ended December 31, 2024 include the
results of Former Six Flags operations from the Closing Date of the Mergers forward (see Note 2).

Years Ended December 31,

(In thousands) 2024 2023
Net (loss) income $(206,665) $124,559
Interest expense, net 234,770 138,952
Provision for taxes 240,843 48,043
Depreciation and amortization 318,113 157,995
EBITDA 587,061 469,549
Loss on early debt extinguishment 7,974 —
Non-cash foreign currency loss (gain) 30,557 (5,594)
Non-cash equity compensation expense 63,809 22,611
Loss on retirement of fixed assets, net 18,064 18,067
Loss on impairment of goodwill 42,462 —
Costs related to the Mergers 118,336 22,287
Self-insurance adjustment (2 14,865 —
Other ©® 16,662 752
Modified EBITDA 899,790 527,672
Net income attributable to non-controlling interests 24,499 —
Adjusted EBITDA $ 875,291 $527,672
Modified EBITDA margin 4 33.2% 29.3%
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(1) Consists of third-party legal and consulting transaction costs, as well as integration costs related to the Mergers.
Integration costs include third-party consulting costs, contract termination costs, retention bonuses, severance related
to the Mergers, integration team salaries and benefits, maintenance costs to update Former Six Flags parks to Cedar
Fair standards, onboarding of new advertising firms, and travel costs. See Note 2 for additional information related to
the Mergers. These costs are added back to net (loss) income to calculate Modified EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA
as defined in the Combined Company’s credit agreement.

(2) During the third quarter of 2024, an actuarial analysis of Former Cedar Fair’s self-insurance reserves resulted in a
change in estimate that increased the incurred but not reported (“IBNR”) reserves related to these self-insurance
reserves by $14.9 million. The increase was driven by an observed pattern of increasing litigation and settlement
costs. See Note 1 for additional information.

(3) Consists of certain costs as defined in the Combined Company’s credit agreement. These costs are added back to
net (loss) income to calculate Modified EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA and include enacted cost savings initiatives
related to overhead and administrative costs incurred by Former Six Flags, specifically for insurance premiums, legal
costs and information technology costs; repairs for unusual weather events; certain legal and consulting expenses;
Mexican VAT taxes on intercompany activity; severance and related benefits; payments related to the Partnership
Parks; cost of goods sold recorded to align inventory standards following the Mergers; and contract termination costs.
This balance also includes unrealized gains and losses on pension assets and short-term investments.

(4) Modified EBITDA margin (Modified EBITDA divided by net revenues) is not a measurement computed in accordance
with GAAP and may not be comparable to similarly titled measures of other companies. Modified EBITDA margin is
provided because management believes the measure provides a meaningful metric of operating profitability. Modified
EBITDA margin has been disclosed as opposed to Adjusted EBITDA margin because management believes Modified
EBITDA margin more accurately reflects the park-level operations of the Combined Company as it does not give
effect to distributions to non-controlling interests.

For 2024, Adjusted EBITDA increased $347.6 million and Modified EBITDA margin increased 390 bps compared with
2023. The increase in Adjusted EBITDA included $319.6 million as a result of the Mergers and $28.0 million due to
Former Cedar Fair operations. The increase in Modified EBITDA margin included a 280 bps increase as a result of the
Mergers and 110 bps due to Former Cedar Fair operations. The $28.0 million increase in Adjusted EBITDA and 110 bps
increase in Modified EBITDA margin from Former Cedar Fair operations was primarily due to the impact of higher
attendance on net revenues in 2024.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Combined Company’s principal sources of liquidity include cash from operating activities, funding from long-term debt
obligations and existing cash on hand. Due to the seasonality of the business, pre-opening operations are funded with
revolving credit borrowings, which are reduced with positive cash flow during the seasonal operating period. Primary uses
of liquidity include operating expenses, capital expenditures, interest payments, and income tax obligations. With the
Combined Company’s revolving credit facility and cash on hand, the Combined Company has sufficient liquidity to satisfy
existing cash obligations at least through the first quarter of 2026. The Combined Company’s capital allocation priorities
include reducing outstanding debt and reinvesting in the business. As such, the Combined Company has not declared a
dividend and has no immediate plans to do so.

Capital expenditures for the Combined Company are expected to total between $475 million and $500 million in 2025.
Capital expenditures will include the opening of new high-thrill roller coasters at Cedar Point, Six Flags Great America,
Canada’s Wonderland, Six Flags New England, Kings Dominion, Six Flags Great Adventure and Six Flags Over Georgia;
two new family-friendly attractions at Carowinds; water park renovations at Kings Island, Hurricane Harbor Los Angeles
and Hurricane Harbor Arlington; and upgraded and expanded food and beverage facilities across the park portfolio. Cash
interest payments for the Combined Company are expected to range from $305 million to $315 million in 2025. Cash
payments for income taxes for the Combined Company are expected to range from $105 million to $115 million in 2025.

As of December 31, 2024, deferred revenue totaled $308.3 million, including non-current deferred revenue. This
represented an increase of $116.6 million compared with total deferred revenue as of December 31, 2023, of which
$122.8 million was attributable to Former Six Flags. The decrease in the remaining total deferred revenue was largely
attributable to the amortization of prepaid lease payments for a portion of the California’s Great America parking lot, the
termination of transaction fees in California due to new regulations, and lower season-long product sales for the upcoming
season.
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Cash Flows

The following table presents key cash flow information for the years ended December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023:

Years Ended December 31,

2024 2023
(Amounts in thousands)
Net cash from operating activities $ 373,412 $ 325,675
Net cash for investing activities (472,616) (220,422)
Net cash from (for) financing activities 117,973 (143,001)
Effect of exchange rate on cash and cash equivalents (1,083) 2,047
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents $ 17,686 $ (35,701)

Net cash from operating activities in 2024 totaled $373.4 million, an increase of $47.7 million compared with 2023. The
increase was primarily due to the inclusion of operations of Former Six Flags operations since the Closing Date of the
Mergers offset by higher merger-related costs.

Net cash for investing activities in 2024 totaled $472.6 million, an increase of $252.2 million compared with 2023. The
increase was due to net cash consideration paid for the Mergers and the inclusion of capital expenditures of Former Six
Flags operations since the Closing Date of the Mergers.

Net cash from financing activities in 2024 totaled $118.0 million, an increase of $261.0 million compared with net cash for
financing activities in 2023. The variance was primarily attributable to $315 million of revolving credit facility borrowings
outstanding and $1.0 billion of senior secured term loan facility borrowings, both of which were somewhat offset by
$1.1 billion of redeemed senior notes in the current period.

For a discussion regarding 2022 cash flows, including comparisons of 2023 results to 2022 cash flows, see
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” within Cedar Fair's Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023 filed with the SEC on February 16, 2024.

Contractual Obligations

As of December 31, 2024, the Combined Company’s primary contractual obligations consisted of outstanding long-term
debt agreements and related interest, certain obligations pertaining to the Partnership Parks (see Note 7), and various
commitments under lease agreements (see Note 11). The Combined Company has also committed to capital
expenditures between $175 million to $225 million, most of which will be paid in 2025, and license commitments of
approximately $10 million per year through 2030 and $6.5 million per year from 2031 through 2035. Before reduction for
debt issuance costs, the Combined Company’s long-term debt agreements as of December 31, 2024 consisted of the
following:

«  $995 million of senior secured term debt, maturing in May 2031 under the 2024 Credit Agreement, as amended.
Amortization payments of $10 million per year, paid in equal quarterly installments, are required to be made on
the term debt. The term debt bears interest at a rate equal to Term Secured Overnight Financing Rate (“SOFR”)
plus a margin of 200 bps per annum or base rate plus a margin of 100 bps per annum. There was $10.0 million
of current maturities outstanding and payable within the next twelve months as of December 31, 2024 related to
the senior secured term debt facility.

e $500 million of 5.375% senior unsecured notes, maturing in April 2027. Interest is payable under the 2027 senior
notes semi-annually in April and October.

«  $300 million of 6.500% senior unsecured notes, maturing in October 2028. Interest is payable under the 2028
senior notes semi-annually in April and October.

«  $500 million of 5.250% senior unsecured notes, maturing in July 2029. Interest is payable under the 2029 senior
notes semi-annually in January and July.

«  $200 million of 7.000% senior secured notes, maturing in July 2025. Interest is payable under the 2025 Six Notes
semi-annually in January and July.
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¢ $500 million of 5.500% senior unsecured notes, maturing in April 2027. Interest is payable under the 2027 Six
Notes semi-annually in April and October.

¢ $800 million of 7.250% senior unsecured notes, maturing in May 2031. Interest is payable under the 2031 Six
Notes semi-annually in May and November.

¢ $850 million of 6.625% senior secured notes, maturing in May 2032. Interest is payable under the 2032 Six
Notes semi-annually in May and November.

¢ $315 million of borrowings under the $850 million senior secured revolving credit facility under the 2024 Credit
Agreement, as amended. The revolving credit facility bears interest at Term SOFR or Term Canadian Overnight
Repo Rate Average plus a margin of 200 bps per annum, or base rate or Canadian prime rate plus a margin of
100 bps per annum; matures on July 1, 2029, following the amendment to the 2024 Credit Agreement and
subject to a springing maturity date on the date that is 91 days prior to the final maturity of certain indebtedness
in an aggregate outstanding principal amount greater than $200 million on such date; and requires a commitment
fee of 50 bps per annum on the unused portion of the revolving credit facility, which is subject to decrease to
37.5 bps upon achievement of a 3.5x Net First Lien Leverage Ratio (as defined in the 2024 Credit Agreement, as
amended). The 2024 Credit Agreement also provides for the issuance of documentary and standby letters of
credit. After letters of credit of $40.6 million as of December 31, 2024, the Combined Company had
$494.4 million of availability under the former revolving credit facility. Letters of credit are primarily in place to
backstop insurance arrangements.

During the third quarter of 2024, $165 million of the outstanding balance of the 2025 Six Notes was paid on July 1, 2024
and the remaining $56.9 million outstanding balance of the 4.875% senior unsecured notes due July 2024 of Former Six
Flags was paid on July 31, 2024.

With respect to the revolving credit facility only, the 2024 Credit Agreement, as amended, includes a maximum Net First
Lien Leverage Ratio (as defined in the 2024 Credit Agreement) financial maintenance covenant, which is required to be
tested as of the last day of each quarter except for the quarter in which the consummation of the Mergers occurred. The
maximum Net First Lien Leverage Ratio following the consummation of the Mergers is 5.25x beginning with the test period
ending on or about December 31, 2024, with step-downs of 25 bps after every four consecutive quarters, culminating at
4.5x beginning with the test period ending on or about December 31, 2027.

The 2024 Credit Agreement, as amended, and fixed rate note agreements include restricted payment provisions, which
could limit the Combined Company’s ability to pay dividends. Under the 2024 Credit Agreement, as amended, if the pro
forma Net Secured Leverage Ratio (as defined in the 2024 Credit Agreement) is less than or equal to 3.00x, the
Combined Company can make unlimited restricted payments so long as no event of default has occurred and is
continuing. If the pro forma Net Total Leverage Ratio (as defined in the 2024 Credit Agreement) is less than or equal to
5.25x%, the Combined Company can make restricted payments up to the then-available Cumulative Credit (as defined in
the 2024 Credit Agreement), so long as no event of default has occurred and is continuing. Irrespective of any leverage
calculations, the Combined Company can make restricted payments not to exceed the greater of 7.0% of Market
Capitalization (as defined in the 2024 Credit Agreement) and $200 million annually.

Pursuant to the terms of the indenture governing the 2027 senior notes, which includes the most restrictive of the
restricted payments provisions under the terms of the Combined Company’s outstanding notes, even if the pro forma
Total Indebtedness to Consolidated Cash Flow Ratio (as defined in the indenture governing the 2027 senior notes) is
greater than 5.25x, the Combined Company can still make restricted payments of $100 million annually so long as no
default or event of default has occurred and is continuing. If the pro forma Total Indebtedness to Consolidated Cash Flow
Ratio is less than or equal to 5.25x, the Combined Company can make restricted payments up to its restricted payment
pool so long as no default or event of default has occurred and is continuing or would occur as a consequence thereof.
The Combined Company’s pro forma Total Indebtedness to Consolidated Cash Flow Ratio was less than 5.25x as of
December 31, 2024.

On November 9, 2023, Cedar Fair entered into supplemental indentures related to the 2025 senior notes, 2027 senior
notes, 2028 senior notes and 2029 senior notes (the “Amendments”) following receipt of requisite consents from the
holders of the notes. The Amendments enabled Cedar Fair to select November 2, 2023, the date the Merger Agreement
with Former Six Flags was entered into, as the testing date for purposes of calculating, with respect to the Mergers and
related transactions, any and all ratio tests under those notes, each of which was satisfied when tested on November 2,
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2023. To become operative, the Amendments required a payment, which was made upon the consummation of the
Mergers. The payment related to the 2025 senior notes was still required despite the redemption of those notes in May
2024.

Financial and Non-Financial Disclosure About Issuers and Guarantors of Registered Senior Notes

Three tranches of fixed rate senior notes outstanding as of December 31, 2024 were registered under the Securities Act
of 1933: the 2027, 2028 and 2029 senior notes, or the “registered senior notes”. The Combined Company, Canada’s
Wonderland Company (“Cedar Canada”), Magnum Management Corporation (“Magnum”), and Millennium Operations
LLC (“Millennium”) are the co-issuers of the registered senior notes. Substantially concurrently with the closing and in
connection with the Mergers, the Combined Company entered into supplemental indentures to assume all of Former
Cedar Fair's obligations under the indentures governing the registered senior notes. Pursuant to the supplemental
indentures, each of the Former Six Flags subsidiary guarantors under the 2024 Credit Agreement agreed to fully and
unconditionally guarantee the registered senior notes. As a result, the registered senior notes are irrevocably and
unconditionally guaranteed, on a joint and several basis, by each wholly owned subsidiary of the Combined Company
(other than the co-issuers) that guarantees the credit facilities under the 2024 Credit Agreement, as amended. A full listing
of the issuers and guarantors of the registered senior notes can be found within Exhibit 22.

The registered senior notes each rank equally in right of payment with all of each issuer’s existing and future senior
unsecured debt. However, the registered senior notes rank effectively junior to any secured debt to the extent of the value
of the assets securing such debt, including under the 2024 Credit Agreement, the 2025 Six Notes and the 2032 Six Notes.

In the event that the co-issuers (except for the Combined Company) or any subsidiary guarantor is released from its
obligations under the 2024 Credit Agreement, such entity will also be released from its obligations under the 2027 and
2029 senior notes and from its guarantee under the 2028 senior notes. In addition, the co-issuers (except for the
Combined Company) or any subsidiary guarantor can be released from its obligations under the registered senior notes
under the following circumstances, assuming the associated transactions are in compliance with the applicable provisions
of the indentures governing the registered senior notes: i) in the case of co-issuers (other than the Combined Company),
any direct or indirect sale, conveyance or other disposition of the capital stock of such entity following which the entity
ceases to be a direct or indirect subsidiary of the Combined Company or a sale or disposition of all or substantially all of
the assets of such entity made in accordance with the applicable indenture; ii) if such entity is dissolved or liquidated; iii) if
an entity is designated as an Unrestricted Subsidiary (as defined in each indenture); iv) in the case of the 2027 and 2029
senior notes, upon transfer of such entity in a qualifying transaction if following such transfer the entity ceases to be a
direct or indirect Restricted Subsidiary (as defined in each indenture) of the Combined Company or is a Restricted
Subsidiary that is not a guarantor under any credit facility; or v) in the case of the subsidiary guarantors, upon a discharge
of the indenture or upon any legal defeasance or covenant defeasance of the indenture.

The obligations of each guarantor are limited to the extent necessary to prevent such guarantee from constituting a
fraudulent conveyance or fraudulent transfer under applicable law. This provision may not, however, protect a guarantee
from being voided under fraudulent transfer law, or may reduce the applicable guarantor’s obligation to an amount that
effectively makes its guarantee worthless. If a guarantee were rendered voidable, it could be subordinated by a court to all
other indebtedness of the guarantor, and depending on the amount of such indebtedness, could reduce the guarantee to
zero. Each guarantor that makes a payment or distribution under a guarantee is entitled to a pro rata contribution from
each other guarantor based on the respective net assets of the guarantors.

The following tables provide summarized financial information for each of the co-issuers and guarantors of the registered
senior notes (the “Obligor Group”) as of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023. Each entity that was a co-issuer of
the registered senior notes is presented separately. The subsidiaries that guaranteed the registered senior notes are
presented on a combined basis with intercompany balances and transactions between entities in such guarantor
subsidiary group eliminated. Intercompany balances and transactions between the co-issuers and guarantor subsidiaries
were not eliminated. Certain subsidiaries did not guarantee the credit facilities or senior notes (the “non-guarantor”
subsidiaries). The summarized financial information excludes results of the non-guarantor subsidiaries and does not
reflect investments of the Obligor Group in the non-guarantor subsidiaries. The Obligor Group’s amounts due from,
amounts due to, and transactions with the non-guarantor subsidiaries have not been eliminated and included
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intercompany receivables from non-guarantors
December 31, 2023, respectively.

Summarized Financial Information

of $123.6 million and $14.3 million as of December 31, 2024 and

Six Flags
Entertainment
Corporation
(2024) Cedar
Cedar Fair Magnum Canada Millennium
L.P. (2023) (Co-Issuer (Co-lssuer (Co-lssuer  Guarantor
(In thousands) (Parent) Subsidiary) Subsidiary) Subsidiary) Subsidiaries
Balance as of December 31, 2024
Current Assets $ 214 $ 74710 $ 58,221 $ 147,184 $1,928,466
Non-Current Assets 1,878,531 2,196,232 675,573 2,518,804 6,993,517
Current Liabilities 160,229 1,699,979 20,032 227,100 607,921
Non-Current Liabilities 366,315 10,444 365,239 1,877,375 2,918,671
Balance as of December 31, 2023
Current Assets $ 445 $§ 13,876 $ 46,641 $ 346,820 $1,618,550
Non-Current Assets (269,050) 1,916,183 627,130 2,387,798 1,955,628
Current Liabilities 160,560 1,525,756 188,975 223,098 107,007
Non-Current Liabilities 148,854 2,019 16,985 2,141,096 141,402
Year Ended December 31, 2024
Net revenues $ 98489 $ 489,776 $160,414 $2,007,248 $1,116,695
Operating (loss) income (8,248) (159,791) 54,641 126,476 258,298
Net (loss) income (214,263) 120,777 34,607 — 332,344
Year Ended December 31, 2023
Net revenues $ 87,790 $ 478,478 $173,321 $1,935516 $ 447,639
Operating income (loss) 84,005 (153,697) 67,459 126,165 182,687
Net income 125,284 72,213 98,108 — 263,071

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

The Combined Company is exposed to market risks from fluctuations in interest rates and currency exchange rates on
operations in Canada and Mexico, and from time to time, on imported rides and equipment. The objective of the
Combined Company’s financial risk management is to reduce the potential negative impact of interest rate and foreign
currency exchange rate fluctuations to acceptable levels. Market risk sensitive instruments are not acquired for trading
purposes.

Interest rate risk is typically managed using a combination of fixed-rate long-term debt, interest rate swaps that fix
variable-rate long-term debt, and variable-rate borrowings under a revolving credit facility. Translation exposures with
regard to Canadian and Mexican operations are not hedged.

As of December 31, 2024, variable rate debt included $995 million of senior secured term loan facility borrowings and
borrowings under an $850 million revolving credit facility under the 2024 Credit Agreement, as amended. Assuming the
outstanding senior secured term loan facility borrowings and the daily average balance over the past twelve months on
revolving credit borrowings of approximately $166.8 million, a hypothetical 100 bps increase in 30-day SOFR on the
variable-rate debt would lead to an increase of approximately $11.6 million in cash interest costs over the next twelve
months.

A uniform 10% strengthening of the U.S. dollar relative to the Canadian dollar and Mexican peso would have resulted in a
$7.8 million decrease in operating income for the Combined Company’s six months ended December 31, 2024.

Forward Looking Statements

Some of the statements contained in this report (including the “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations” section) that are not historical in nature are forward-looking statements within the
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meaning of the federal securities laws, including Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, including statements as to management’s expectations, beliefs,
goals and strategies regarding the future. Words such as “anticipate,” “believe,” “create,” “expect,” “future,” “guidance,”
“‘intend,” “plan,” “potential,” “seek,” “synergies,” “target,” “will,” “would,” similar expressions, and variations or negatives of
these words identify forward-looking statements. However, the absence of these words does not mean that the
statements are not forward-looking. Forward-looking statements by their nature address matters that are, to different
degrees, uncertain. These forward-looking statements may involve current plans, estimates, expectations and ambitions
that are subject to risks, uncertainties and assumptions that are difficult to predict, may be beyond the Combined
Company’s control and could cause actual results to differ materially from those described in such statements. Although
management believes that the expectations reflected in such forward-looking statements are reasonable, they can give no
assurance that such expectations will prove to be correct, that the Combined Company’s growth and operational
strategies will achieve the target results. Important risks and uncertainties that may cause such a difference and could
adversely affect attendance at the Combined Company’s parks, future financial performance, and/or the Combined
Company’s growth strategies, and could cause actual results to differ materially from expectations or otherwise to
fluctuate or decrease, include, but are not limited to: failure to realize the anticipated benefits of the Mergers, including
difficulty in integrating the businesses of Former Six Flags and Cedar Fair; failure to realize the expected amount and
timing of cost savings and operating synergies related to the mergers; general economic, political and market conditions;
the impacts of pandemics or other public health crises, including the effects of government responses on people and
economies; adverse weather conditions; competition for consumer leisure time and spending; unanticipated construction
delays; changes in capital investment plans and projects; anticipated tax treatment, unforeseen liabilities, future capital
expenditures, revenues, expenses, earnings, synergies, economic performance, indebtedness, financial condition, losses,
future prospects, business and management strategies for the management, expansion and growth of the Combined
Company’s operations; legislative, regulatory and economic developments and changes in laws, regulations, and policies
affecting the Combined Company; acts of terrorism or outbreak of war, hostilities, civil unrest, and other political or
security disturbances; and other risks and uncertainties, including those listed under Item 1A in this Form 10-K and in the
other filings made from time to time with the SEC. Readers are urged not to place undue reliance on these forward-
looking statements, which speak only as of the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and are based on information
currently and reasonably known to management. The Combined Company does not undertake any obligation to publicly
update or revise any forward-looking statements to reflect future events, information or circumstances that arise after the
filing date of this report.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK.
The information appearing under the subheading “Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk” under the

heading “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” of this report is
incorporated herein by reference.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Shareholders and the Board of Directors of
Six Flags Entertainment Corporation

Opinions on the Financial Statements and Internal Control over Financial Reporting

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Six Flags Entertainment Corporation and subsidiaries
(the “Company”) as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the related consolidated statements of operations and
comprehensive (loss) income, equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2024,
and the related notes (collectively referred to as the “financial statements”). We also have audited the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2024, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated
Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Company as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2024, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. Also, in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2024, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework
(2013) issued by COSO.

As described in Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, management excluded from its
assessment the internal control over financial reporting at Former Six Flags, which was acquired through the Mergers on
July 1, 2024, and whose financial statements constitute 75% of total assets, and 33% of net revenues of the consolidated
financial statement amounts as of and for the year ended December 31, 2024. Accordingly, our audit did not include the
internal control over financial reporting at Former Six Flags.

Basis for Opinions

The Company’s management is responsible for these financial statements, for maintaining effective internal control over
financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the
accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements and an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on
our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States) (PCAOB) and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S.
federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the
PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement, whether due to error or fraud, and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained
in all material respects.

Our audits of the financial statements included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures to respond to those risks. Such procedures
included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our
audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

Definition and Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
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generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Critical Audit Matters

The critical audit matters communicated below are matters arising from the current-period audit of the financial statements
that were communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that (1) relate to accounts or
disclosures that are material to the financial statements and (2) involved our especially challenging, subjective, or complex
judgments. The communication of the critical audit matters does not alter in any way our opinion on the financial
statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by communicating the critical audit matters below, providing separate
opinions on the critical audit matters or on the accounts or disclosures to which they relate.

Merger — Valuation of intangible asset — Trade names — Refer to Notes 2 and 5 in the consolidated financial
statements

Critical Audit Matter Description

On July 1, 2024, the merger of equals transaction by and among the Combined Company, Cedar Fair, Former Six Flags,
and Copper Merger Sub, was completed. Upon consummation of the mergers, the separate legal existences of each
Copper Merger Sub, Cedar Fair and Former Six Flags ceased, and the Combined company changed its name to “Six
Flags Entertainment Corporation.” The Six Flags Merger has been accounted for as a business combination under
Accounting Standards Codification 805, Business Combinations, using the acquisition method of accounting, and Cedar
Fair has been determined to be the accounting acquirer. Accordingly, the Company allocated the purchase price, on a
preliminary basis, to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair value and recorded
$850 million of intangible asset attributed to the Six Flags trade name. Management estimated the fair value of the
intangible asset utilizing an income approach. The determination of the fair value using the income approach requires
management to make significant assumptions related to the forecasts of future revenues, terminal growth rate, discount
rate and royalty rate.

We identified the acquired Six Flags trade name intangible asset as a critical audit matter because of the significant
estimates and assumptions made by management in determining the fair value of the Six Flags trade name. This required
a high degree of auditor judgment and an increased extent of effort, including the need to involve our fair value specialists,
when performing audit procedures to evaluate the reasonableness of management’s forecasts of future revenues and the
selection of the terminal growth rate, discount rate, and royalty rate for the Six Flags trade name intangible asset.

How the Critical Audit Matter Was Addressed in the Audit
Our audit procedures related to the forecasts of future revenues and the selection of the terminal growth rate, discount

rate, and royalty rate for the Six Flags trade name intangible asset included the following, among others:

* We tested the effectiveness of controls over the valuation of the Six Flags trade name intangible asset acquired,
including management’s controls over forecasts of future revenues and selection of the terminal growth rate,
discount rate, and royalty rate.

+  We evaluated the reasonableness of management’s forecasts of future revenues by comparing the projections to
historical results and certain peer companies.
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+ With the assistance of our fair value specialists, we evaluated the reasonableness of the terminal growth rate,
discount rate, and royalty rate, including testing the underlying source information and the mathematical
accuracy of the calculations, and developing ranges of independent estimates and comparing those to the
terminal growth rate, discount rate, and royalty rate selected by management.

Deferred Revenues — Revenue Recognition of Multi-Use Season Long Products for Admission — Refer to Notes 1
and 3 in the consolidated financial statements

Critical Audit Matter Description

The Company defers revenue for its multi-use products, including season-long products for admissions products and
recognizes revenues over the estimated number of uses expected for each type of product. The Company estimates a
redemption rate for each multi-use season long product for admission using historical and forecasted uses at each park.
Revenue is then recognized on a pro-rated basis based on the estimated allocated selling price of the multi-use season
long products for admission and the estimated uses of that product. During the third quarter of 2024, management began
selling multi-use season long products for admission for the 2025 operating season. These products include providing the
customer park access for the remainder of the 2024 operating season, while also providing the customer with admission
for the 2025 operating season.

We identified the evaluation of the estimated redemption rate used to determine the multi-use season long products for
admission for selected parks as a critical audit matter because of significant judgments made by management in
estimating the amount of revenue that should be recognized in each fiscal year, which in turn led to a high degree of
auditor judgment and increased extent of effort.

How the Critical Audit Matter Was Addressed in the Audit

Our audit procedures related to the amount of deferred revenue associated with the multi-use season long products for
admission for selected parks that should be recognized in each fiscal year included the following, among others:

+  We tested the effectiveness of controls over deferred revenue and revenue recognition related to multi-use
season long products for admission for selected parks.

» We performed transaction testing for deferred revenue associated with the multi-use season long products for
admission for selected parks by agreeing the amounts recorded as deferred revenue to source documents and
determined that products sold related to items that are deferred in nature.

+ We tested the completeness of deferred revenue associated with the multi-use season long products for
admission for selected parks by making selections from a reciprocal attendance population from selected days
and determined whether the multi-use attendance product was appropriately recorded as deferred revenue in the
general ledger at period end.

* We developed an independent expectation of the total deferred revenue balances for selected parks and
compared such expectation to the recorded amount for reasonableness.

* We compared actual guest visits in the current year to the estimated redemption rates.
Goodwill — Schlitterbahn Reporting Unit — Refer to Notes 1 and 5 to the consolidated financial statements
Critical Audit Matter Description

The Company’s evaluation of goodwill for impairment involves the comparison of the fair value of each reporting unit to its
carrying value. The Company determines the fair value of its reporting units using a combination of an income (discounted
cash flow) approach and the market approach. The determination of the fair value using the income approach requires
management to make significant estimates and assumptions related to forecasts of future revenues, earnings before
interest, taxes, depreciation, and amortization (EBITDA) margins, terminal growth rate and weighted-average cost of
capital. The determination of the fair value using the market approach requires management to make significant
assumptions related to the selection of comparable publicly traded companies and cash flow multiples to determine the
fair value. The Company determined that the fair value of the Schlitterbahn Waterpark & Resort New Braunfels and the
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Schlitterbahn Waterpark Galveston Reporting Unit (“Schlitterbahn”) was less than its carrying amount. As a result, the
Company recorded an impairment charge of $42.5 million to reduce the carrying amount to be equivalent to the estimated
fair value as of September 29, 2024. As of December 31, 2024, the goodwill balance was $3,296.5 million of which
$50.7 million was allocated to the Schlitterbahn Reporting Unit.

We identified the goodwill impairment evaluation for Schlitterbahn as a critical audit matter because of the significant
estimates and assumptions made by management when determining the fair value of Schlitterbahn. This required a high
degree of auditor judgment and an increased extent of effort, including the need to include our fair value specialists, when
performing audit procedures to evaluate the reasonableness of management’s estimates and assumptions related to
forecasts of future revenues and EBITDA margins, and the selection of the terminal growth rate, weighted-average cost of
capital, comparable publicly traded companies, and cash flow multiples.

How the Critical Audit Matter was Addressed in the Audlit

Our audit procedures for the Schlitterbahn reporting unit related to the forecasts of future revenues and EBITDA margins
and the selection of the terminal growth rate, weighted-average cost of capital, comparable publicly traded companies and
cash flow multiples included the following, among others:

+ We tested the effectiveness of controls over management’s goodwill impairment evaluation, including those over
the determination of the fair value of Schlitterbahn, such as controls related to management’s forecasts of future
revenues and EBITDA margins and the selection of the terminal growth rate, weighted-average cost of capital,
comparable publicly traded companies, and cash flow multiples.

*  We evaluated the reasonableness of management’s forecasts of future revenues and EBITDA margins by
comparing the projections to historical results and certain peer companies.

+ With the assistance of our fair value specialists, we evaluated the terminal growth rate and weighted-average
cost of capital, including testing the underlying source information and the mathematical accuracy of the
calculations, and developing ranges of independent estimates and comparing those to the terminal growth rate
and weighted-average cost of capital selected by management.

+  With the assistance of our fair value specialists, we evaluated the selected comparable publicly traded
companies and cash flow multiples, including testing the underlying source information and mathematical
accuracy of the calculations, and comparing the multiples selected by management to its comparable publicly
traded companies.

Is| DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Cleveland, Ohio
March 3, 2025

We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2004.
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SIX FLAGS ENTERTAINMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In thousands)

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Inventories
Prepaid insurance
Other current assets

Property and equipment, gross
Accumulated depreciation

Property and equipment, net
Goodwill

Other intangibles, net
Right-of-use asset

Other assets

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current Liabilities:

Current maturities of long-term debt

Accounts payable

Deferred revenue

Accrued interest

Accrued taxes

Accrued salaries, wages and benefits

Self-insurance reserves

Other accrued liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Lease liabilities

NCI call option liability

Other liabilities

Long-term debt:
Revolving credit loans
Term debt
Notes

Commitments and Contingencies (Note 1)
Redeemable non-controlling interests
Equity:
Former Cedar Fair, L.P. Partners Deficit:
Special L.P. interests
General partner
Limited partners, 51,013 units outstanding as of December 31, 2023
Six Flags Entertainment Corporation Shareholders’ Equity
Common stock, 100,350 shares outstanding as of
December 31, 2024
Additional paid-in-capital
Accumulated deficit
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

$ 83,174
164,861
71,104
19,333
61,398

399,870
6,916,761
(2,619,806)

4,296,955
3,296,523
897,834
227,284
12,050

$ 9,130,516

$ 210,000
107,056
302,326

54,342
41,021
51,030
36,630
124,272

926,677
542,583
230,443
290,390
133,672

296,953
966,712
3,459,407

4,723,072
241,816

1,004
2,207,410

(164,271)

(2,280)
2,041,863

$9,130516

$ 65488
79,513
41,048

4,925
17,866

208,840

4,004,195

(2,368,862)

1,635,333
264,625
49,062
81,173
1,500

$ 2,240,533

$ —
37,595
183,689
32,587
45,296
37,421
30,784
35,354

402,726

63,403
71,951

9,964

2,275,451

2,275,451

5,290
(602,947)

14,701

(582,962)
$ 2,240,533

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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SIX FLAGS ENTERTAINMENT CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) INCOME

(In thousands, except per share and per unit amounts)

Years Ended December 31,

2024 2023 2022

Net revenues:

Admissions $1,403,932 $ 925,734 $ 959,049

Food, merchandise and games 898,175 613,969 602,603

Accommodations, extra-charge products and other 406,819 258,965 255,731

2,708,926 1,798,668 1,817,383

Costs and expenses:

Cost of food, merchandise and games revenues 232,556 159,830 164,246

Operating expenses 1,376,061 949,527 948,567

Selling, general and administrative 411,164 207,085 176,329

Depreciation and amortization 318,113 157,995 153,274

Loss on retirement of fixed assets, net 18,064 18,067 10,275

Loss on impairment of goodwill 42,462 — —

Gain on sale of land — — (155,250)

2,398,420 1,492,504 1,297,441

Operating income 310,506 306,164 519,942
Interest expense, net 234,770 138,952 148,319
Net effect of swaps — — (25,641)
Loss on early debt extinguishment 7,974 — 1,810
Other expense (income), net 33,584 (5,390) 23,797
Income before taxes 34,178 172,602 371,657
Provision for taxes 240,843 48,043 63,989
Net (loss) income (206,665) 124,559 307,668
Net income attributable to non-controlling interests 24,499 — —
Net (loss) income attributable to Six Flags Entertainment Corporation $ (231,164) $ 124,559 307,668
Net (loss) income $ (206,665) $ 124,559 307,668
Other comprehensive (loss) income (net of tax):

Foreign currency translation (16,975) (908) 6,666

Defined benefit retirement plan (6) — —
Other comprehensive (loss) income (net of tax) (16,981) (908) 6,666
Comprehensive (loss) income (223,646) 123,651 314,334
Comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling interests 24,499 — —
Comprehensive (loss) income attributable to Six Flags Entertainment Corporation $ (248,145) $ 123,651 $ 314,334
Weighted average shares of common stock / LP units outstanding (See Note 1)

Basic 75,256 50,938 55,825

Diluted 75,256 51,508 56,414
(Loss) income attributable to Six Flags Entertainment Corporation per share of

common stock / LP unit outstanding (See Note 1)
Net (loss) income per share of common stock / LP unit - basic $ (3.22) $ 245 §$ 5.51
Net (loss) income per share of common stock / LP unit - diluted $ (3.22) $ 242 $ 5.45

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.

49



SIX FLAGS ENTERTAINMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY
(In thousands, except per unit amounts)

Shares of Limited Accumulated
Common  Partnership Additional Limited General Special Other
Stock Units Common  Paid-in-  Accumulated Partners’ Partner's L.P.  Comprehensive Total
Outstanding Outstanding ~ Stock Capital Deficit Deficit Deficit Interests Income Equity
Balance as of December 31, 2021 — 56854 $§ — $ — 3 — §(712,714)  $(7)  $5,290 $ 8943  $ (698,488)
Net income attributable to Six
Flags Entertainment
Corporation — — — — — 307,665 3 — — 307,668
Repurchase of limited
partnership units — (4,539) — — —  (187,381) — — — (187,381)
Partnership distribution
declared ($0.600 per unit) — — — — — (33,455) — — — (33,455)
Equity-based compensation — 248 — — — 15,452 — — — 15,452
Tax effect of units involved in
treasury unit transactions — — — — — (2,064) — — — (2,064)
Foreign currency translation
adjustment, net of tax $2,082 — — — — — — — — 6,666 6,666

Balance as of December 31, 2022 — 52,563 $ — % — $ — §(612,497) $(4) $5,290 $ 15,609 $ (591,602)
Net income attributable to Six
Flags Entertainment

Corporation — — — — — 124,558 1 — — 124,559
Repurchase of limited

partnership units — (1,735) — — — (74,534) (3) — — (74,537)
Partnership distribution

declared ($1.200 per unit) — — — — — (61,106) — — — (61,106)
Equity-based compensation — 185 — — — 19,747 — — — 19,747
Tax effect of units involved in

treasury unit transactions — — — — — 885 — — — 885

Foreign currency translation
adjustment, net of tax $(645) — — — — — — — (908) (908)

Balance as of December 31, 2023 — 51,013 $ — 93 —  $ —  $(602,947) $(6) $5,290 $ 14,701 $ (582,962)
Net loss attributable to Six
Flags Entertainment

Corporation — — — —  (153,250) (77,913) (1) — — (231,164)
Partnership distribution

declared ($0.600 per unit) — — — — — (30,764) — — — (30,764)
Equity-based compensation 115 237 1 43,065 — 9,730 — — — 52,796
Tax effect of units involved in

treasury unit transactions — — — — — (152) — — — (152)

Foreign currency translation
adjustment, net of tax

$(3,316) — — — — — — — — (16,975) (16,975)
Defined benefit retirement plan,

net of tax $(113) — — — — — — — — (6) (6)

Effect of Mergers 48,922 — 489 2,550,736 — — — — — 2,551,225

LP conversion to corporation 51,313 (51,250) 514 (386,391) — 702,046 7 (5,290) — 310,886

Other — — — — (11,021) — — — — (11,021)

Balance as of December 31, 2024 100,350 — $1,004 $2,207,410 $(164,271) $ - & — $ (2,280)  $2,041,863

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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SIX FLAGS ENTERTAINMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net (loss) income

Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to net cash from operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization
Loss on early debt extinguishment
Loss on impairment of goodwill
Non-cash foreign currency loss (gain) on USD notes
Non-cash equity-based compensation expense
Deferred income tax expense (benefit)
Net effect of swaps
Gain on sale of land before cash closing costs
Other non-cash expenses
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in receivables
(Increase) decrease in inventories
(Increase) decrease in other assets
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue
Increase (decrease) in accrued interest
Increase (decrease) in accrued taxes
Increase (decrease) in accrued salaries, wages and benefits
Increase (decrease) in self-insurance reserves
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities

Net cash from operating activities

CASH FLOWS (FOR) FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditures

Acquisitions, net of cash acquired

Proceeds from sale of land

Net cash (for) from investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM (FOR) FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net borrowings on revolving credit loans

Term debt borrowings

Term debt payments

Note payments

Repurchase of limited partnership units

Distributions paid to partners

Payment of debt issuance costs

Payments related to tax withholding for equity compensation
Distributions to non-controlling interests

Other

Net cash from (for) financing activities

EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS

Net increase (decrease) for the year
Balance, beginning of year

Balance, end of year

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
Cash payments for interest
Interest capitalized
Cash payments for income taxes, net of refunds
Capital expenditures in accounts payable

Years Ended December 31,

2024 2023 2022
$ (206,665) $ 124,559 $ 307,668
318,113 157,995 153,274
7,974 — 1,810
42,462 — —
23,596 (5,963) 23,274
63,608 22,611 20,589
180,925 (6,757) 4,385
— —  (25,641)

— —  (159,405)
47606 22,828 16,917
(70)  (8,446)  (9,117)

9,595 1,281  (13,400)
10,738 12,858 5,595
(30,714)  (15,079)  (8,721)
(89,391) 18,587  (23,677)
(1,690) 414 162
(22,018) 9,638 110,511
(5,361)  (15,993) (274)
16,421 2,985 3,291
8,283 4,157 431
373412 325675 407,672
(320,819) (220,422) (183,352)
(151,797) — —
— — 310,000
(472,616) (220,422) 126,648
315,000 — —
1,000,000 — —
(5,000) —  (264,250)
(1,056,867) — —
—  (77,272) (184,646)
(30,764)  (61,106)  (33,455)
(42,480)  (2,643) —
(7,304)  (2,865)  (5,137)
(48,997) — —
(5,615) 885 (2,064)
117,973  (143,001) (489,552)
(1,083) 2,047 (4,698)
17,686  (35,701) 40,070
65488 101,189 61,119

$ 83174 $ 65488 $ 101,189
$ 247,341 $135714 $ 137,694
5,382 4,296 2,825
65,058 44,976  (47,248)
28,981 13,438 14,542

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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SIX FLAGS ENTERTAINMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared from the financial records of the Combined
Company. The Six Flags Merger was accounted for as a business combination under Accounting Standards
Codification 805, Business Combinations, using the acquisition method of accounting, and Former Cedar Fair has been
determined to be the accounting acquirer and the predecessor for financial statement purposes. Accordingly, financial
results and disclosures referring to periods prior to the Closing Date include only Former Cedar Fair’s results before giving
effect to the Mergers, including the financial results and disclosures as of December 31, 2023 and for the years ended
December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022. The results of Former Six Flags are included in the Combined Company’s
results from the Closing Date forward. Accordingly, financial results and disclosures for the year ended December 31,
2024 reflect combined operations for only July 1, 2024, through December 31, 2024, and include only Former Cedar
Fair's results before giving effect to the Mergers for the first six months of 2024. References to the “Combined Company”
and the “Company” are to Former Cedar Fair, Former Six Flags and Copper Merger Sub after giving effect to the Mergers.
References to “Cedar Fair,” “Former Cedar Fair,” or the “Partnership” are to Cedar Fair prior to the Mergers. The Mergers
are described in more detail in Note 2.

(1) Significant Accounting Policies:
The following policies were used in the preparation of the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Combined Company and its subsidiaries, all of which
are wholly owned or the Combined Company is the primary beneficiary. Intercompany transactions and balances are
eliminated in consolidation. Substantially concurrently with the closing and in connection with the Mergers, the Combined
Company assumed certain obligations regarding Six Flags Over Georgia, including Six Flags White Water Atlanta
(“SFOG”), and Six Flags Over Texas (“SFOT”), and together with SFOG, the “Partnership Parks”. The Partnership Parks
are not wholly owned, but the Partnership Parks are consolidated as subsidiaries in the consolidated financial statements
as it has been determined that the Combined Company has the power to direct the activities of those entities that most
significantly impact the entities’ economic performance, and the Combined Company has the obligation to absorb losses
and receive benefits from the entities that can be potentially significant to these entities. The equity interests owned by
non-affiliated parties in the Partnership Parks are reflected in the consolidated balance sheet as redeemable
non-controlling interests. The portion of earnings or loss attributable to non-affiliated parties in the Partnership Parks is
reflected as net income attributable to non-controlling interests in the consolidated statements of operations and
comprehensive (loss) income. The carrying amount of redeemable non-controlling interests is recorded at fair value at the
date of issuance. Changes in the redemption value are recognized immediately as they occur, and the carrying value of
redeemable non-controlling interests is adjusted to equal the redemption value at the end of each reporting period, if
greater than the redeemable non-controlling interest carrying value. Therefore, the amount recorded at the end of the
reporting period equals what it would be if the end of the reporting period was also the redemption date for the
non-controlling interests. An annual review is performed to determine if the fair value of the redeemable units is less than
the redemption amount. A charge to earnings is recorded if the fair value of the redeemable units is less than the
redemption amount. Following the notification of the Combined Company’s intent to exercise the End-of-Term Option for
SFOG, the redeemable non-controlling interests related to SFOG were classified as a non-current liability within “NCI Call
Option Liability” on the consolidated balance sheet. The liability was recorded at the net present value of the call option
price. The difference between the net present value of the call option price and the redemption value was recorded as a
deemed dividend within the consolidated statement of equity. The liability will be accreted to the final purchase price over
the remaining SFOG term.

Foreign Currency

The U.S. dollar is the Combined Company’s reporting currency and the functional currency for most of its operations. The
financial statements of its Canadian and Mexican subsidiaries are measured using the Canadian dollar and the Mexican
peso as their functional currency, respectively. Assets and liabilities are translated into U.S. dollars at the appropriate spot
rates as of the balance sheet date, while income and expenses are translated at average monthly exchange rates.
Translation gains and losses are included as components of accumulated other comprehensive income in equity. Gains or
losses from remeasuring foreign currency transactions from the transaction currency to functional currency are included in
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income. Foreign currency (gains) losses for the periods presented were as follows. The results for the year ended
December 31, 2024 include the results of Former Six Flags operations since the Closing Date of the Mergers (see
Note 2).

Years Ended December 31,

(In thousands) 2024 2023 2022
Loss (gain) on foreign currency related to re-measurement of U.S. dollar denominated

notes held in foreign entities $23,596 $(5,963) $23,274
Loss on other transactions (1) 7,158 438 510
Loss (gain) on foreign currency $30,754 $(5,525) $23,784

(1) Loss on other transactions for the year ended December 31, 2024 included loss on re-measurement of intercompany
balances held in the Combined Company’s acquired Mexican subsidiary.

Segment Reporting

Each of the parks is overseen by a general manager or park president and operates autonomously. Management reviews
operating results, evaluates performance and makes operating decisions, including allocating resources, on a
park-by-park basis. Discrete financial information and operating results are prepared at the individual park level for use by
the CEO, who is the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). All of the parks provide similar products and services
through a similar process to the same class of customer utilizing a consistent method. In addition, the parks share
common economic characteristics, in that they show similar long-term growth trends in key industry metrics such as
attendance, in-park per capita spending, net revenue, operating margin and operating profit. Based on these factors, the
Combined Company has combined its operating segments, which consist of each of the parks’ locations, and operates
within one reportable segment of amusement and water parks with accompanying resort facilities.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during each period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Fair Value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants, or an exit price. Inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value may be observable or
unobservable, and valuation techniques used to measure fair value should maximize the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. Accordingly, a hierarchical disclosure framework ranks the quality
and reliability of information used to determine fair values. The three broad levels of inputs defined by the fair value
hierarchy are as follows:

* Level 1 — inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in
active markets.

* Level 2 — inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active
markets, and inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, for substantially the
full term of the financial instrument.

» Level 3 —inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value measurement.

A financial instrument’s categorization within the valuation hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is
significant to the fair value measurement. Assets and liabilities recognized or disclosed at fair value on a recurring basis
include derivatives, debt and short-term investments.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

All highly liquid instruments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less are considered to be cash
equivalents, including transaction settlements in process from credit card companies.
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Inventories

Inventories primarily consist of purchased products for resale, such as merchandise and food. Inventories are stated at
the lower of cost or net realizable value using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) or average cost methods of accounting.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is recorded at cost. Costs incurred to improve the performance or extend the useful life of
existing assets are capitalized. Costs to maintain such assets in their original operating condition are expensed as
incurred, including repair and maintenance costs for routine and recurring maintenance activities. Depreciation is
computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Depreciation expense totaled
$317.8 million in 2024, $157.7 million in 2023, and $153.0 million in 2022. The results for the year ended December 31,
2024 include the results of Former Six Flags operations since the Closing Date of the Mergers (see Note 2).

The estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

Land improvements Approximately 25 years
Buildings 15 years - 40 years
Rides 10 years - 20 years
Equipment 2 years - 10 years

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets, including property and equipment, are reviewed for impairment upon the occurrence of events or
changes in circumstances that would indicate that the carrying value of the assets may not be recoverable. In order to
determine if an asset has been impaired, assets are grouped and tested at the lowest level for which identifiable,
independent cash flows are available. A significant amount of judgment is involved in determining if an indicator of
impairment has occurred. Such indicators may include, among others: a significant decrease in the market price of a long-
lived asset; a significant adverse change in the extent or manner in which a long-lived asset is being used or in its
physical condition; a significant adverse change in legal factors or in the business climate; an accumulation of costs
significantly in excess of the amount originally expected for the acquisition or construction of a long-lived asset; past,
current or future operating or cash flow losses that demonstrate continuing losses associated with the use of a long-lived
asset; and a current expectation that a long-lived asset will be sold or disposed significantly before the end of its
previously estimated useful life. An impairment loss may be recognized when estimated undiscounted future cash flows
expected to result from the use of the asset, including disposition, are less than the carrying value of the asset. The
measurement of the impairment loss to be recognized is based on the difference between the fair value and the carrying
amounts of the assets. Fair value is generally determined using a combination of a cost and market approach. Significant
factors considered in the cost approach include replacement cost, reproduction cost, depreciation, physical deterioration,
functional obsolescence and economic obsolescence of the assets. The market approach estimates fair value by utilizing
market data for similar assets.

Accounting for Business Combinations

Business combinations are accounted for under the acquisition method of accounting. The amounts assigned to the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed in connection with acquisitions are based on estimated fair values as
of the date of the acquisition, with the remainder, if any, recorded as goodwill. The fair values are determined by
management, taking into consideration information supplied by the management of the acquired entities, valuations
supplied by independent appraisal experts and other relevant information. The determination of fair values requires
significant judgment by management.

During the measurement period, which may be up to one year from the acquisition date, adjustments to the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed may be recorded with the corresponding offset to goodwill. Upon the measurement
period’s conclusion or final determination of the values of assets acquired or liabilities assumed, whichever comes first,
any subsequent adjustments are recorded to the consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive (loss) income.
Acquisition-related expenses are recognized separately from the business combination and expensed as incurred.

55



Goodwill

Goodwill is reviewed annually for impairment, or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may not be recoverable. Goodwill is allocated to reporting units and goodwill impairment tests are performed at the
reporting unit level. The annual goodwill impairment test is as of the first day of the fourth quarter.

Management may elect to first perform a qualitative assessment to determine whether it is more likely than not that a
reporting unit is impaired. If management does not perform a qualitative assessment, or if management determines that it
is not more likely than not that the fair value of the reporting unit exceeds its carrying amount, management calculates the
fair value of the reporting unit. The fair value of a reporting unit is established using a combination of an income
(discounted cash flow) approach and market approach. The income approach uses a reporting unit's projection of
estimated operating results and discounted cash flows using a weighted-average cost of capital that reflects current
market conditions. Estimated operating results are established using management’s best estimates of economic and
market conditions over the projected period including growth rates in revenues and costs, estimates of future expected
changes in operating margins and cash expenditures. Other significant estimates and assumptions include terminal value
growth rates, future estimates of capital expenditures and changes in future working capital requirements. A market
approach estimates fair value by applying cash flow multiples to the reporting unit’s operating performance. The multiples
are derived from comparable publicly traded companies with similar operating and investment characteristics of the
reporting units. If an impairment is identified, an impairment charge is recognized for the amount by which a reporting
unit’s carrying amount exceeds its fair value, not to exceed the carrying amount of goodwiill.

Other Intangible Assets

Finite-lived intangible assets consist primarily of licenses, franchise agreements and the California’s Great America trade
name. These intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over the life of the agreement, ranging from five to
twenty years.

Indefinite-lived intangible assets consist of trade names, other than the California’s Great America trade name which is
finite-lived. Indefinite-lived trade names are reviewed annually for impairment, or more frequently if impairment indicators
arise. Management may elect to first perform a qualitative assessment to determine whether it is more likely than not that
a trade name is impaired. If management does not perform a qualitative assessment, or if management determines that it
is not more likely than not that the fair value of the trade name exceeds its carrying amount, management calculates the
fair value of the trade name using a relief-from-royalty model. Principal assumptions under the relief-from-royalty model
include royalty rates, growth rates in revenues, estimates of future expected changes in operating margins, terminal value
growth rates, and a discount rate based on a weighted-average cost of capital that reflects current market conditions. If an
impairment is identified, an impairment charge is recognized for the amount by which the trade name’s carrying amount
exceeds its fair value. Management assesses the indefinite-lived trade names for impairment separately from goodwill.

Self-Insurance Reserves

Self-insurance reserves are recorded for the estimated amounts of guest and employee claims and related expenses
incurred each period. Reserves are established for both identified claims and incurred but not reported (“IBNR”) claims
and are recorded when claim amounts become probable and estimable. Reserves for identified claims are based upon
historical claim experience and third-party estimates of settlement costs. Reserves for IBNR claims are based upon claims
data history. Self-insurance reserves are periodically reviewed for changes in facts and circumstances and adjustments
are made as necessary. As of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, self-insurance reserves totaled $130.7 million
and $30.8 million, respectively. Of the total self-insurance reserves as of December 31, 2024, $36.6 million was recorded
as current within “Self-insurance reserves” in the consolidated balance sheet, and $94.1 million was recorded as
non-current within “Other liabilities” in the consolidated balance sheet. The liability as of December 31, 2024 also includes
the liability of Former Six Flags operations (see Note 2). Furthermore, during the third quarter of 2024, an actuarial
analysis of Former Cedar Fair’s self insurance reserves resulted in a change in estimate that increased the incurred but
not reported (“IBNR”) reserves related to these self-insurance reserves by $14.9 million, which was recorded within
“Operating expenses” in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive (loss) income. The increase was
driven by an observed pattern of increasing litigation and settlement costs.
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Leases

The Combined Company has commitments under various operating and finance leases. Right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are recognized at the present value of the future lease payments at the lease commencement date. The discount
rate used to determine the present value of the future lease payments is generally the Combined Company’s incremental
borrowing rate as the rate implicit in most leases is not readily determinable. As a practical expedient, a relief provided in
the accounting standard to simplify compliance, the Combined Company does not recognize right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for leases with an original term of one year or less. The current portion of the lease liability is recorded within
“Other accrued liabilities” in the consolidated balance sheets.

Revenue Recognition and Related Receivables and Contract Liabilities

Revenues are generated from sales of (1) admission to amusement parks and water parks, (2) food, merchandise and
games both inside and outside the parks, and (3) accommodations, extra-charge products, and other revenue sources.
Admission revenues include amounts paid to gain admission into the parks, including parking fees, and online transaction
fees charged to customers. Revenues related to extra-charge products, including premium benefit offerings such as
front-of-line products, are included in “Accommodations, extra-charge products and other”. Due to the Combined
Company’s seasonal operations, a substantial portion of its revenues are generated from Memorial Day through Labor
Day. Most revenues are recognized on a daily basis based on actual guest spend at the properties. Revenues from
multi-use products, including season-long products for admission, dining, beverage and other products, as well as the first
12-month period for membership products, are recognized over the estimated number of uses expected for each type of
product. The estimated number of uses is reviewed and may be updated periodically during the operating season prior to
the ticket or product expiration. The number of uses is estimated based on historical usage adjusted for current period
trends. Membership products beginning with the 13th month following purchase are recognized straight-line. For any
bundled products that include multiple performance obligations, revenue is allocated using the retail price of each distinct
performance obligation and any inherent discounts are allocated based on the gross margin and expected redemption of
each performance obligation. The Combined Company does not typically provide for refunds or returns. Sales and other
taxes collected concurrent with revenue-producing activities are excluded from revenue.

In some instances, the Combined Company arranges with outside parties (“concessionaires”) to provide goods to guests,
typically food and merchandise, and the Combined Company acts as an agent, resulting in net revenues recorded within
the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive (loss) income. Concessionaire arrangement revenues are
recognized over the operating season and are variable. Fixed sponsorship revenues and marina revenues, which are
classified as “Accommodations, extra-charge products and other,” are recognized over the park operating season which
represents the period in which the performance obligations are satisfied. Variable sponsorship revenues are based on
achievement of specified operating metrics. Variable revenues are estimated using both historical information and current
trends to determine the amount of revenue that is not probable of a significant reversal.

A portion of deferred revenue is typically classified as non-current during the third quarter related to season-long products
sold in the current season for use in the subsequent season. Season-long products are typically sold beginning in August
of the year preceding the operating season. Season-long products may subsequently be recognized 12 to 16 months after
purchase depending on the date of sale. The number of uses expected outside of the next twelve months for each type of
product are estimated, and the related deferred revenue is classified as non-current in the consolidated balance sheets.

Except for the non-current deferred revenue described above, contracts with customers typically have an original duration
of one year or less. For these short-term contracts, the practical expedient applicable to such contracts is used and the
transaction price for the remaining performance obligations as of the end of each reporting period or when the revenue is
expected to be recognized is not disclosed. Further, incremental costs of obtaining a contract are recognized as an
expense when incurred as the amortization period of the asset would be less than one year. Lastly, consideration for the
effects of significant financing components of our installment purchase plans is not adjusted because the terms of these
plans do not exceed one year.

The Combined Company has entered into international agreements to assist a third party in the planning, design,
development and operation of a Six Flags-branded amusement park and water park in Saudi Arabia to be named Six
Flags Qiddiya City and Aquarabia Water Theme Park. These agreements consist of a brand licensing agreement, project
services agreement, and management services agreement. These agreements are treated as one contract because they
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were negotiated with a single commercial objective. Three distinct performance obligations have been identified within the
agreement with the third party partner: brand licensing, project services and management services. Each of these
performance obligations is distinct, as the third party could benefit from each service on its own with other readily
available resources, and each service is separately identifiable from other services in the context of the contract. Revenue
is recognized under these international agreements over the relevant service period of each performance obligation based
on its relative stand-alone selling price, as determined by management’s best estimate. Management reviews the service
period of each performance obligation on an ongoing basis and revises the service periods as necessary. Revisions to the
relevant service periods of the performance obligations are recognized in the period in which the change is identified and
may result in revisions to revenue recognized in future periods.

Advertising Costs

Production costs of commercials and programming are expensed in the year first aired. All other costs associated with
advertising, promotion and marketing programs are expensed as incurred, or for certain costs, over each park’s operating
season. Certain prepaid costs incurred through year-end for the following year’s advertising programs are included within
“Other current assets” in the consolidated balance sheets. Advertising expense totaled $102.9 million in 2024,
$58.7 million in 2023 and $45.5 million in 2022. The results for the year ended December 31, 2024 include the results of
Former Six Flags operations since the Closing Date of the Mergers (see Note 2).

Equity-Based Compensation

Compensation costs for all equity-based awards are measured at fair value on the date of grant. The fair value of stock
options is estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing valuation model. Compensation cost is recognized straight-line
over the service period. Forfeitures are as recognized as they occur.

Income Taxes

The Combined Company accounts for income taxes under the asset and liability method. Accordingly, deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognized for the future book and tax consequences attributable to temporary differences between the
financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are determined using enacted tax rates expected to apply in the year in which those temporary differences
are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax law is
recognized in income at the time of enactment of such change in tax law. Any interest or penalties due for payment of
income taxes are included in the provision for income taxes.

A valuation allowance is recorded if, based on the weight of available evidence, it is more likely than not that some
portion, or all, of a deferred tax asset will not be realized. The need for this allowance is based on several factors,
including the ten-year carryforward period allowed for excess foreign tax credits, experience to date of foreign tax credit
limitations, carryforward periods of state net operating losses, and management’s long-term estimates of domestic and
foreign source income.

Prior to the Mergers, Former Cedar Fair was subject to publicly traded partnership tax (“PTP tax”) on certain partnership
level gross income (net revenues less cost of food, merchandise, and games revenues), state and local income taxes on
partnership income, U.S. federal, state and local income taxes on income from its corporate subsidiaries and foreign
income taxes on its foreign subsidiary. As such, the total provision (benefit) for taxes prior to the Mergers included
amounts for the PTP tax and federal, state, local and foreign income taxes. The Partnership (Cedar Fair, L.P.) ceased to
exist in connection with the Mergers. Since the Closing Date, the Combined Company has been subject to U.S. federal
income taxes in addition to state and local income taxes as a corporation. Under applicable accounting rules, the total
provision (benefit) for income taxes includes the amount of taxes payable for the current year and the impact of deferred
tax assets and liabilities, which represents future tax consequences of events that are recognized in different periods in
the financial statements than for tax purposes.

Contingencies
The Combined Company is a party to a number of lawsuits in the normal course of business. In the opinion of
management, none of these matters, beyond what has been disclosed in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, are expected

to have a material effect in the aggregate on the consolidated financial statements.
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Putative Securities Class Action Lawsuit

During the third quarter of 2024, the Combined Company entered into a settlement agreement, subject to court approval,
resolving the Putative Securities Class Action Lawsuit described below. The Combined Company will pay $40.0 million to
settle the claims, an amount that will be fully funded by the Combined Company’s insurance carriers. Therefore, the
Combined Company’s consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2024 included a $40.0 million receivable and a
corresponding $40.0 million liability recorded within “Other accrued liabilities”. The court approved the settlement
agreement in January 2025.

In February 2020, two putative securities class action complaints were filed against Former Six Flags and certain of its
former executive officers (collectively, the “defendants”) in the U.S. District Court for the Northern District of Texas. On
March 2, 2020, the two cases were consolidated in an action captioned Electrical Workers Pension Fund Local
103 I.LB.E.W. v. Six Flags Entertainment Corp., et al., Case No. 4:20-cv-00201-P (N.D. Tex.) (the “Electrical Workers
litigation”), and an amended complaint was filed on March 20, 2020. On May 8, 2020, Oklahoma Firefighters Pension and
Retirement System (“Oklahoma Firefighters”) and Electrical Workers Pension Fund Local 103 I.B.E.W. were appointed as
lead plaintiffs, Bernstein Litowitz Berger & Grossman LLP was appointed as lead counsel, and McKool Smith PC was
appointed as liaison counsel. On July 2, 2020, lead plaintiffs filed a consolidated complaint. The consolidated complaint
alleges, among other things, that the defendants made materially false or misleading statements or omissions regarding
Former Six Flags’ business, operations and growth prospects, specifically with respect to the development of Six Flags
branded parks in China and the financial health of its former partner, Riverside Investment Group Co. Ltd., in violation of
the federal securities laws. The consolidated complaint seeks an unspecified amount of compensatory damages and
other relief on behalf of a putative class of purchasers of Former Six Flags’ publicly traded common stock during the
period between April 24, 2018 and February 19, 2020. On August 3, 2020, defendants filed a motion to dismiss the
consolidated complaint. On March 3, 2021, the district court granted defendants’ motion, dismissing the complaint in its
entirety and with prejudice.

On August 25, 2021, Co-Lead Plaintiff Oklahoma Firefighters filed a notice of appeal to the U.S. Court of Appeals for the
Fifth Circuit (the “Fifth Circuit”) from the district court’s decisions granting defendants’ motion to dismiss, denying plaintiffs’
motion to amend or set aside judgment, and denying plaintiffs’ motion for leave to file a supplemental brief. The appeal
was fully briefed as of December 15, 2021, and oral argument was held on March 7, 2022. On January 18, 2023, the Fifth
Circuit reversed the dismissal and remanded the case to the district court for further proceedings. On February 9, 2023,
the Fifth Circuit mandate issued to the district court. On March 7, 2023, the district court entered a scheduling order
governing pre-trial proceedings. On April 18, 2023, Oklahoma Firefighters filed a motion for leave to file an amended
complaint that would add a new named plaintiff, remove former Co-Lead Plaintiff Electrical Workers Pension Fund Local
103 I.B.E.W., and modify the case caption. On May 2, 2023, defendants filed an opposition to that motion and a motion for
judgment on the pleadings. On June 2, 2023, the district court granted defendants’ motion for judgment on the pleadings,
dismissing the case with prejudice, and denied Oklahoma Firefighters’ motions. On June 30, 2023, plaintiffs filed a notice
of appeal to the Fifth Circuit from the district court’s decisions. The appeal was fully briefed as of December 4, 2023, and
oral argument was held on March 4, 2024. On April 18, 2024, the Fifth Circuit reversed the dismissal and remanded the
case to the district court. On May 31, 2024, the district court entered a scheduling order setting the case for trial on
December 8, 2025. On September 3, 2024, the parties entered into a settlement agreement, subject to court approval,
resolving the claims. The Combined Company will pay $40.0 million to settle the claims, an amount that will be fully
funded by the Combined Company’s insurance carriers. On September 23, 2024, the District Court granted the plaintiffs’
motion for preliminary approval of the settlement and scheduled a final fairness hearing for January 25, 2025. On
January 28, 2025, the court entered its order and judgement of final approval of the settlement.

Securities and Exchange Commission Investigation

The Securities and Exchange Commission is conducting an investigation into Former Six Flags’ disclosures and reporting
made in 2018 through February 2020 related to its business, operations and growth prospects of its Six Flags branded
parks in China and the financial health of its former business partner, Riverside Investment Group Co. Ltd. Former Six
Flags received a document subpoena in February 2020 and subsequently certain current and former executives received
subpoenas in connection with this matter and they continue to provide responsive information. The involved parties are
fully cooperating and are committed to continuing to cooperate fully with the SEC in this matter. The length, scope or
results of the investigation, or the impact, of the investigation on results of operations, business or financial condition
cannot be predicted.
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Earnings Per Share

For purposes of calculating the basic and diluted earnings per share of common stock and per limited partner unit, as
applicable, net (loss) income attributable to Six Flags Entertainment Corporation for the year ended December 31, 2024
was adjusted for the deemed dividend recorded as a result of the Combined Company exercising its End-of-Term Option
for SFOG (see Note 7). Net (loss) income attributable to Six Flags Entertainment Corporation for the years ended
December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022 have not been adjusted from the reported amounts. The share amounts
used in calculating the basic and diluted earnings per share of common stock and per limited partner unit, as applicable,
for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

(In thousands, except per share amounts) 2024 2023 2022
Net (loss) income attributable to Six Flags Entertainment Corporation $(231,164) $124,559 $307,668
Deemed dividend upon exercise of the End-of-Term Option of SFOG (11,019) — —
Net (loss) income attributable to Six Flags Entertainment Corporation for EPS $(242,183) $124,559 $307,668
Basic weighted average shares of common stock / LP units outstanding 75,256 50,938 55,825
Effect of dilutive stock / units:
Deferred stock / units (Note 9) — 53 72
Performance stock units / units (Note 9) — 56 29
Restricted stock / units (Note 9) — 461 463
Options (Note 9) — — 25
Diluted weighted average shares of common stock / LP units outstanding 75,256 51,508 56,414
Net (loss) income per share of common stock / LP units - basic $ (322)§ 245 § 551
Net (loss) income per share of common stock / LP units - diluted $ ((322) % 242 $ 545

There were approximately 3.3 million antidilutive shares excluded from the computation of diluted loss per share of
common stock for the year ended December 31, 2024. The 3.3 million antidilutive shares included 2.0 million of
outstanding restricted stock and restricted stock units, 0.8 million of outstanding performance stock units and 0.5 million of
outstanding stock options. The 0.8 million of outstanding performance stock units included all performance stock units
outstanding as of December 31, 2024 at target, or 100%. The maximum payout for the outstanding performance stock
units is 200%. See Note 9 for additional information.

Performance units were included in the calculation of diluted earnings per limited partner unit to the extent that the
performance conditions would have been met at the end of the reporting period if the end of the reporting period were the
end of the performance period. The performance units included in the calculation of diluted earnings per limited partner
unit as of December 31, 2023 included a portion of the 2021-2025 performance-based units awarded in 2021. The 2022-
2024 and 2023-2025 performance-based units awarded in 2022 and 2023, respectively, and the transaction-based units
awarded in connection with the proposed merger in 2023 were excluded from the calculation of diluted earnings per
limited partner unit as the related performance conditions had not been met as of December 31, 2023. The performance
units included in the calculation of diluted earnings per limited partner unit as of December 31, 2022 were limited to
performance-based other units awarded in 2020 to incentivize executive performance in light of the effects of the
COVID-19 pandemic, and which were payable in the first quarter of 2022. All outstanding performance units as of
December 31, 2022 were excluded from the calculation of diluted earnings per limited partner unit as the performance
conditions had not been met as of December 31, 2022.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In November 2023, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (‘FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update
No. 2023-07, Segment Reporting (Topic 280): Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures (“ASU 2023-07").
ASU 2023-07 requires the disclosure of incremental segment information on an annual and interim basis, including the
disclosure of significant segment expense categories. ASU 2023-07 is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2023 and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2024. Early adoption is permitted. The
amendments should be applied retrospectively to all prior periods presented in the financial statements. The amendment
was adopted by the Combined Company in the fourth quarter of 2024, and the related consolidated financial statement
disclosures have been included within this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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New Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2023, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2023-09, Income Taxes (Topic 740):
Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures (“ASU 2023-09”). ASU 2023-09 requires additional income tax disclosures,
including amendments to the rate reconciliation and income taxes paid disclosure. ASU 2023-09 is effective for fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2024. Early adoption is permitted. The amendments should be applied on a
prospective basis, but retrospective application is permitted. Management is in the process of evaluating the effect this
standard will have on the consolidated financial statement disclosures.

In November 2024, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2024-03, Income Statement—Reporting
Comprehensive Income (Subtopic 220-40): Expense Disaggregation Disclosures (“ASU 2024-03"). ASU 2024-03 requires
additional information about specific expense categories in the notes to the financial statements. ASU 2024-03 is effective
for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2026. Early adoption is permitted. The amendments should be applied
either (1) prospectively to financial statements issued after the effective date or (2) retrospectively to all prior periods
presented in the financial statements. Management is in the process of evaluating the effect this standard will have on the
consolidated financial statement disclosures.

Reclassifications

As a result of the Mergers (described in Note 2), the Combined Company made certain reclassification adjustments to
prior period amounts where it adopted the Former Six Flags classification as opposed to the Former Cedar Fair
classification. These reclassifications had no net impact on net revenues, operating income, net (loss) income, cash flows,
or total assets, liabilities and equity.

«  Certain prior year supplies inventory amounts of $3.0 million as of December 31, 2023 have been reclassified
from “Inventories” to “Other current assets” in the consolidated balance sheet to conform with the Combined
Company presentation.

e Certain processing fees charged to customers totaling $31.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2023 and
$33.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2022 have been reclassified from “Accommodations, extra-
charge products and other” to “Admissions” in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive
(loss) income. In addition, the amounts were also reclassified from out-of-park revenues to in-park revenues as
defined within Management’s Discussion and Analysis.

« Certain expenses, including credit card fees, other revenue processing fees and park level technology costs,
totaling $89.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2023 and $84.3 million for the year ended December 31,
2022 have been reclassified from “Selling, general and administrative” to “Operating expenses” in the
consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive (loss) income.

« Interest income totaling $2.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2023 and $3.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2022 have been reclassified from “Other (income) expense, net” to “Interest expense, net” in the
consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive (loss) income.

(2) Mergers:

On July 1, 2024, the previously announced merger of equals transaction contemplated by the Merger Agreement, by and
among the Combined Company, Cedar Fair, Former Six Flags and Copper Merger Sub, was completed. Upon the
consummation of the Mergers, the separate legal existences of each of Copper Merger Sub, Cedar Fair and Former Six
Flags ceased, and the Combined Company changed its name to “Six Flags Entertainment Corporation”. The Combined
Company trades on the New York Stock Exchange under the ticker symbol “FUN”. The Mergers were entered into to
create a leading amusement park operator with an expanded and diversified property portfolio, improved guest
experience utilizing the complementary operating capabilities of Cedar Fair and Former Six Flags, and the opportunity for
accelerated investment in the Cedar Fair and Former Six Flags properties with the cash flows of the Combined Company.
The Six Flags Merger has been accounted for as a business combination under Accounting Standards Codification 805,
Business Combinations, using the acquisition method of accounting, and Cedar Fair has been determined to be the
accounting acquirer and the predecessor for financial statement purposes.

Upon completion of the Mergers, subject to certain exceptions, (i) each issued and outstanding unit of limited partnership
interest in Cedar Fair, including limited partnership interests underlying depositary units representing limited partnership
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interests on deposit (each a “Cedar Fair Unit” and collectively, the “Cedar Fair Units”) (excluding any (a) units held in the
treasury of Cedar Fair or owned by Cedar Fair Management, Inc., the former general partner of Cedar Fair (“Cedar Fair
General Partner”) and (b) restricted units of Cedar Fair, which were converted into restricted shares of Combined
Company Common Stock based on the Cedar Fair Exchange Ratio, as further described below), was converted into the
right to receive one (1) share of common stock, par value $0.01 per share, of the Combined Company (the “Combined
Company Common Stock”) (the “Cedar Fair Exchange Ratio”), together with cash in lieu of fractional shares of Combined
Company Common Stock, without interest and (ii) each issued and outstanding share of common stock, par value $0.025
per share of Former Six Flags (the “Six Flags Common Stock”) (excluding any (a) shares of Six Flags Common Stock
held in treasury of Former Six Flags and (b) restricted shares of Former Six Flags, which were converted into restricted
shares of the Combined Company Common Stock based on the Former Six Flags Exchange Ratio, as further described
below), was converted into the right to receive 0.5800 shares of Combined Company Common Stock (the “Six Flags
Exchange Ratio”), together with cash in lieu of fractional shares of Combined Company Common Stock, without interest.
Following the close of the transaction, the holders of the Cedar Fair Units immediately prior to the closing owned
approximately 51.2% of the outstanding shares of the Combined Company Common Stock and the holders of the Six
Flags Common Stock immediately prior to the closing owned approximately 48.8% of the outstanding shares of the
Combined Company Common Stock. At the time of the Cedar Fair First Merger when each Cedar Fair Unit was converted
into Combined Company Common Stock, the transaction gave rise to certain deferred tax assets which were accounted
for as equity because management concluded the transaction to be amongst shareholders. The adjustment to equity was
recorded within “Additional-Paid-in-Capital” and totaled $312.8 million.

The following table illustrates the computation of the preliminary estimated fair value of consideration transferred. As part
of the Mergers, Cedar Fair paid $205.2 million of outstanding borrowings under Former Six Flags’ revolving credit facility,
inclusive of interest and fees, and paid the $128.2 million Former Six Flags Special Dividend, which is defined and further
described below.

(In thousands) Consideration
Fair value of Combined Company Common Stock issued (1) $2,531,714
Former Six Flags revolving credit facility repaid upon close of the Mergers 205,169
Payment of outstanding pre-merger special dividend per the Merger Agreement 128,161
Fair value of Former Six Flags equity awards converted (2) 19,511
Fair value of purchase consideration transferred 2,884,555
Fair value of redeemable non-controlling interests (3) 545,685
Less: cash acquired 182,914
Total Merger Consideration, net of cash acquired $3,247,326

(1) Reflects Former Six Flags Common Stock outstanding as of July 1, 2024 converted to Combined Company Common
Stock based upon the Six Flags Exchange Ratio.

(2) Reflects the estimated Closing Date fair value of the converted Former Six Flags equity awards for which associated
service has been allocated to the pre-combination period.

(3) Reflects the fair value of Former Six Flags redeemable non-controlling interests as of the Closing Date. The fair value
reflects the consideration that would have been received by the non-controlling interest holders if the Closing Date
was also the redemption date for the non-controlling interests.
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Merger consideration was allocated to tangible and identified intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on
their estimated fair values. The following table summarizes the preliminary purchase price allocation of the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed in the Mergers:

Preliminary Measurement Adjusted

(In thousands) Allocation  Period Adjustments  Allocation
Receivables $ 84,853 $ 2,069 $ 86,922
Inventories 40,580 (163) 40,417
Other current assets 53,000 (8,227) 49,773
Property and equipment, net 3,356,409 (652,061) 2,704,348
Other intangibles, net 850,000 — 850,000
Right-of-use assets 167,074 — 167,074
Other assets 14,688 — 14,688
Total assets acquired 4,566,604 (653,382) 3,913,222
Current maturities of long-term debt 56,867 (284) 56,583
Accounts payable 73,445 353 73,798
Deferred revenue 206,398 3,289 209,687
Accrued interest 23,448 — 23,448
Accrued taxes 15,465 (5,752) 9,713
Accrued salaries, wages and benefits 19,216 466 19,682
Self-insurance reserves 75,670 8,064 83,734
Other accrued liabilities 63,487 (130) 63,357
Deferred tax liabilities 756,211 (133,310) 622,901
Lease liabilities 184,343 — 184,343
Other liabilities 24,497 — 24,497
Long-term debt 2,373,322 — 2,373,322
Total liabilities assumed 3,872,369 (127,304) 3,745,065
Total net assets acquired 694,235 (526,078) 168,157
Goodwill 2,553,091 526,078 3,079,169
Fair Value of Net Assets Acquired $3,247,326 $ — $3,247,326

As of December 31, 2024, the Combined Company recorded a cumulative net measurement period adjustment that
increased goodwill by $526.1 million. The measurement period adjustments were recorded to better reflect facts and
circumstances that existed as of the Closing Date of the Mergers. The property and equipment adjustment, along with
related adjustment to deferred tax liabilities, was due to subsequent valuation adjustments.

The purchase price allocation is subject to any further subsequent valuation adjustments within the measurement period.
Management has not finalized the fair values of assets acquired and liabilities assumed. The estimated fair values of
certain assets and liabilities including, but not limited to, property and equipment, the Six Flags trade name, self-insurance
reserves, contingencies and deferred taxes require judgment and assumptions that increase the likelihood that
adjustments may be made to these estimates during the measurement period, and those adjustments could be material.

Goodwill is primarily attributable to expected synergies from combining the operations of Former Cedar Fair and Former
Six Flags, as well as intangible assets that do not qualify for separate recognition. The majority of Goodwill is not
deductible for tax purposes. Goodwill has been allocated based on the business enterprise values of each of the Former
Six Flags properties.

The fair values of assets acquired includes accounts receivable of $86.9 million that are not purchased financial assets
with credit deterioration. The Combined Company did not recognize an allowance with a corresponding credit loss
expense for the acquired receivables during the period ended December 31, 2024. The allowance for doubtful accounts is
recorded as a reduction of deferred revenue to the extent revenue has not been recognized on the corresponding season-
long products.

Former Six Flags contributed net revenues of $882.0 million and net income of $30.6 million to the Combined Company
from the Closing Date, July 1, 2024, through December 31, 2024.
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The following unaudited pro forma financial information presents combined results of operations for each of the periods
presented, as if the Mergers had occurred as of January 1, 2023, prepared in accordance with ASC 805. The information
below reflects pro forma adjustments based on available information and certain assumptions that management believes
are factual and supportable. The unaudited pro forma information includes adjustments primarily related to stock-based
compensation expense, interest expense for transaction financing, amortization of deferred assets and liabilities, and
depreciation of property, plant and equipment acquired, along with the consequential tax effects, and accounting policy
alignments.

The unaudited pro forma information presented below is for informational purposes only and is not necessarily indicative
of the consolidated results of operations of the combined business had the Mergers actually occurred as of January 1,
2023, or of the results of future operations of the combined business.

Pro Forma (Unaudited)
Twelve Months Ended

(In thousands) December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Net revenues $3,284,971 $3,232,378
Net loss $ (344,416) $ (76,579)

During the year ended December 31, 2024, $71.2 million of merger transaction related costs were incurred. During the
year ended December 31, 2023, $21.1 million of merger transaction related costs were incurred. These amounts primarily
included third-party legal and consulting costs related to the transaction and were recorded within “Selling, general and
administrative” in the consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive (loss) income.

Special Dividend

As previously announced by Former Six Flags, on June 18, 2024, Former Six Flags declared a special dividend, payable
to holders of record of Former Six Flags Common Stock as of the close of business one business day prior to the Closing
Date, June 28, 2024, with a per share amount of $1.53, which is equal to (a) $1.00 plus (b) the product (rounded up to the
nearest whole cent) of (i) the Six Flags Exchange Ratio and (ii) the aggregate amount of distributions per unit declared or
paid by Cedar Fair with respect to a Cedar Fair Unit with a record date following November 2, 2023 and prior to the time
the Six Flags Merger became effective (the “Closing Effective Time”) after giving effect to appropriate adjustments to
reflect the Mergers (the “Special Dividend”), which distributions per Cedar Fair Unit were $0.90 in the aggregate. The
payment of the Special Dividend was completed on or about July 8, 2024 and was included in Merger Consideration.

(3) Revenue Recognition:

As disclosed within the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive (loss) income, revenues are generated
from sales of (1) admission to amusement parks and water parks, (2) food, merchandise and games both inside and
outside the parks, and (3) accommodations, extra-charge products, and other revenue sources. Admission revenues
include amounts paid to gain admission into the parks, including parking fees, and online transaction fees charged to
customers. Revenues related to extra-charge products, including premium benefit offerings such as front-of-line products,
are included in “Accommodations, extra-charge products and other”.

Many products, including season-long products, are sold to customers in advance, resulting in a contract liability
(“deferred revenue”). Deferred revenue is typically at its highest immediately prior to the peak summer season, and at its
lowest at the end of the operating season. Season-long products, including memberships, represent most of the deferred
revenue balance in any given period.

Of the $183.7 million of current deferred revenue recorded as of January 1, 2024, all of the deferred revenue was
recognized by December 31, 2024, except for an immaterial amount of deferred revenue for prepaid products such as gift
cards and prepaid games cards. As of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, $5.9 million and $7.9 million of
non-current deferred revenue was recorded, respectively, which primarily represented prepaid lease payments for a
portion of the California’s Great America parking lot. The prepaid lease payments are being recognized through 2027, or
through the sale-leaseback period for the land under California’s Great America.

Payment is due immediately on the transaction date for most products. The receivable balance includes outstanding
amounts on installment purchase plans which are offered for season-long products, including memberships, and includes
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sales to retailers, group sales and catering activities which are billed. Installment purchase plans vary in length from three
monthly installments to 12 monthly installments. Payment terms for billings are typically net 30 days. Receivables in a
typical operating year are highest in the peak summer months and lowest in the winter months. The Combined Company
is not exposed to a significant concentration of customer credit risk. As of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, a
$9.3 million and $6.3 million allowance for doubtful accounts was recorded, respectively, representing estimated defaults
on installment purchase plans. The default estimate is calculated using historical default rates adjusted for current period
trends. The allowance for doubtful accounts is recorded as a reduction of deferred revenue to the extent revenue has not
been recognized on the corresponding season-long products.

(4) Long-Lived Assets:

As of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, property and equipment was classified as follows:

December 31, December 31,

(In thousands) 2024 2023
Land $ 802,984 $ 288,761
Land improvements 845,950 523,336
Buildings 1,477,595 991,424
Rides and equipment 3,574,808 2,125,726
Construction in progress 215,424 74,948

Property and equipment, gross 6,916,761 4,004,195
Accumulated depreciation (2,619,806) (2,368,862)

Property and equipment, net $ 4,296,955 $ 1,635,333

Property and equipment, net as of December 31, 2024 included $2.7 billion of Former Six Flags assets acquired on
July 1, 2024 (see Note 2).

Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment upon the occurrence of events or changes in circumstances that would
indicate that the carrying value of the assets may not be recoverable. During the third quarter of 2024, management
tested the Schlitterbahn Waterpark & Resort New Braunfels and the Schlitterbahn Waterpark Galveston (“Schlitterbahn”)
long-lived assets for impairment due to a decline in estimated future cash flows as a result of changes in planned capital
allocations across the Combined Company portfolio following the Mergers. The analysis resulted in no impairment. Except
for those losses on disposals or retirements of fixed assets recorded in the ordinary course of business, management
concluded no other indicators of long-lived asset impairment existed during 2024. Management’s conclusions were based
on updated financial performance projections, as well as an updated analysis of macroeconomic and industry-specific
conditions.

On June 27, 2022, Cedar Fair sold the land at California’s Great America for a cash purchase price of $310 million,
subject to customary prorations, which resulted in a $155.3 million gain recorded, net of transaction costs, within “Gain on
sale of land” in the consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive (loss) income during the third quarter of
2022. Concurrently with the sale, Cedar Fair entered into a lease contract that allows the Combined Company to operate
the park during a six-year term; see Note 11. As a result, the estimated useful lives of the remaining property and
equipment at California’s Great America were updated to an approximate 5.5-year period, or through December 31, 2027.
This will result in an approximate $8 million increase in annual depreciation expense over the 5.5-year period.

(5) Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets:

Goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangible assets, including trade names, are reviewed for impairment annually, or
more frequently if indicators of impairment exist. During the third quarter of 2024, management tested the Schlitterbahn
trade name and Schlitterbahn reporting unit’s fair value due to a decline in estimated future cash flows as a result of
changes in planned capital allocations across the Combined Company portfolio following the Mergers. Management
concluded the estimated fair value of the Schlitterbahn reporting unit no longer exceeded its carrying value. Therefore, a
$42.5 million impairment of the goodwill at the Schlitterbahn reporting unit was recorded during the third quarter of 2024.
The impairment charge was equal to the amount by which the carrying amount exceeded the fair value and was recorded
in “Loss on impairment of goodwill” within the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive (loss) income.
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The trade name was deemed not to be impaired. Management concluded no other indicators of impairment existed during
2024 based on updated financial performance projections, as well as an updated analysis of macroeconomic and
industry-specific conditions. Management performed its annual impairment test as of the first days of the fourth quarter in
2024 and 2023, respectively, and concluded there was no impairment of the carrying value of goodwill or other indefinite-
lived intangible assets in either period.

The goodwill acquired in the Mergers has been allocated to the following reporting units: Six Flags Fiesta Texas, Six Flags
Great Adventure (including Six Flags Hurricane Harbor New Jersey and Wild Safari Adventure), Six Flags Great America
(including Six Flags Hurricane Harbor Chicago), Six Flags Magic Mountain (including Six Flags Hurricane Harbor Los
Angeles), Six Flags Mexico (including Six Flags Hurricane Harbor Oaxtepec), Six Flags New England, Six Flags Over
Georgia (including Six Flags White Water), and Six Flags Over Texas (including Six Flags Hurricane Harbor Arlington).
These reporting units’ fair value exceeded their carrying values by less than 10% upon allocation. If future operating
results do not meet expectations, the goodwill assigned to these reporting units may become impaired.

Management makes significant estimates calculating the fair value of reporting units and trade names. Actual results
could materially differ from these estimates.

Changes in the carrying value of goodwill for the years ended December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 were:

Accumulated

Gross Impairment Net
(In thousands) Goodwill Losses Goodwill
Balance as of December 31, 2022 $ 437,003 $(173,797) $ 263,206
Foreign currency translation 1,419 — 1,419
Balance as of December 31, 2023 438,422 (173,797) 264,625
Mergers (Note 2) 3,079,169 — 3,079,169
Impairment — (42,462) (42,462)
Foreign currency translation (4,809) — (4,809)
Balance as of December 31, 2024 $3,512,782  $(216,259) $3,296,523

As of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, other intangible assets consisted of the following:

Weighted
Average Gross Net
Amortization Carrying Accumulated Carrying
(In thousands) Period Amount  Amortization Value
December 31, 2024
Other intangible assets:
Trade names (1) (2) 5.5 years $897,864 $ (317)  $897,547
License / franchise agreements 15.9 years 1,147 (860) 287
Total other intangible assets $899,011 $(1,177)  $897,834
December 31, 2023
Other intangible assets:
Trade names (2) 5.5years $ 48,934 $ (190) $ 48,744
License / franchise agreements 15.1 years 1,249 (931) 318
Total other intangible assets $ 50,183 $(1,121)  $ 49,062

(1) Trade names as of December 31, 2024 included $850 million for the Six Flags trade name acquired on July 1, 2024
(see Note 2). The Six Flags trade name is an indefinite-lived intangible asset.

(2) Trade name amortization represents amortization of the California’s Great America trade name. The gross carrying
amount of the California’s Great America trade name totals $0.7 million. Other trade names are indefinite-lived.

Amortization expense of finite-lived other intangible assets for 2024, 2023 and 2022 was immaterial and is expected to be
immaterial going forward.
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(6) Long-Term Debt:
Long-term debt as of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 consisted of the following:

December 31, December 31,

(In thousands) 2024 2023
Revolving credit facility averaging 7.4% in 2024 $ 315,000 $ —
Term loan averaging 7.1% in 2024 995,000 —
Former Cedar Fair notes 2025 senior secured notes at 5.500% — 1,000,000
2027 senior unsecured notes at 5.375% 500,000 500,000
2028 senior unsecured notes at 6.500% 300,000 300,000
2029 senior unsecured notes at 5.250% 500,000 500,000
Former Six Flags notes (See Note 2) 2025 senior secured notes at 7.000% 200,000 —
2027 senior unsecured notes at 5.500% 500,000 —
2031 senior unsecured notes at 7.250% 800,000 —
2032 senior secured notes at 6.625% 850,000 —
4,960,000 2,300,000
Less current portion (210,000) —
4,750,000 2,300,000
Less debt issuance costs and original issue discount (49,562) (24,549)
Plus acquisition fair value layers 22,634 —

$4,723,072 $2,275,451

Term Debt and Revolving Credit Facilities

On May 1, 2024, Former Cedar Fair entered into a new credit agreement (the “2024 Credit Agreement”), which includes a
$1.0 billion senior secured term loan facility and included a $300 million revolving credit facility. The revolving credit facility
replaced the existing revolving credit facility under Former Cedar Fair's prior credit agreement (the “2017 Credit
Agreement”). Upon consummation of the Mergers, the 2024 Credit Agreement was assumed by the Combined Company,
subsidiaries of Former Six Flags became borrowers and/or guarantors under the 2024 Credit Agreement, and the 2024
Credit Agreement was amended (the “First Amendment”). The facilities provided under the 2024 Credit Agreement are
collateralized by substantially all of the assets of Former Cedar Fair, its wholly owned domestic subsidiaries and its
Canadian subsidiary that is a borrower under the 2024 Credit Agreement, and the subsidiaries of Former Six Flags that
are co-issuers and/or guarantors under the 2025 Six Notes (as defined below) and/or the 2032 Six Notes (as defined
below), subject to customary exceptions set forth in the 2024 Credit Agreement, as amended.

The senior secured term loan facility under the 2024 Credit Agreement, as amended, requires amortization payments of
$10.0 million per year, payable in equal quarterly installments; matures on May 1, 2031; and bears interest at Term SOFR
plus a margin of 200 bps per annum or base rate plus a margin of 100 bps per annum.

Following the First Amendment, the revolving credit facility capacity under the 2024 Credit Agreement, as amended, is
$850 million with a maturity date of July 1, 2029, subject to a springing maturity date on the date that is 91 days prior to
the final maturity of certain indebtedness in an aggregate outstanding principal amount greater than $200 million on such
date. The revolving credit facility bears interest at Term SOFR or Term Canadian Overnight Repo Rate Average plus a
margin of 200 bps per annum, or base rate or Canadian prime rate plus a margin of 100 bps per annum; and requires a
commitment fee of 50 bps per annum on the unused portion of the revolving credit facility, which is subject to decrease to
37.5 bps upon achievement of a 3.5x Net First Lien Leverage Ratio (as defined in the 2024 Credit Agreement, as
amended). Prior to the First Amendment, the then-existing revolving credit facility would have matured on February 10,
2028, subject to a springing maturity date on the date that was 91 days prior to the final maturity of certain indebtedness
in an aggregate outstanding principal amount greater than $200 million on such date.

There was $315 million of outstanding borrowings under the revolving credit facility as of December 31, 2024. The 2024
Credit Agreement, as amended, also provides for the issuance of documentary and standby letters of credit. After letters
of credit totaling $40.6 million, the Combined Company had $494.4 million of availability under its revolving credit facility
as of December 31, 2024.
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The total senior secured revolving credit facility capacity under the 2017 Credit Agreement was $300 million with a
Canadian sub-limit of $15 million. The senior secured revolving credit facility bore interest at SOFR plus 350 bps with a
SOFR adjustment of 10 bps per annum and a floor of zero, required the payment of a 62.5 bps commitment fee per
annum on the unused portion of the revolving credit facility, in each case without any step-downs, and was collateralized
by substantially all of the assets of the Partnership. Under the 2017 Credit Agreement, the senior secured revolving credit
facility would have matured on February 10, 2028, provided that the maturity date would have been (x) January 30, 2025
if at least $200 million of the 2025 senior notes remained outstanding as of that date, or (y) January 14, 2027 if at least
$200 million of the 2027 senior notes remained outstanding as of that date. During 2022, Former Cedar Fair fully repaid
the term loan facility under the 2017 Credit Agreement. As a result, we recognized a $1.8 million loss on early debt
extinguishment during the third quarter of 2022, inclusive of the write-off of debt issuance costs and original issue
discount.

Former Cedar Fair Notes

In April 2017, Former Cedar Fair issued $500 million of 5.375% senior unsecured notes due 2027 (“2027 senior notes”).
Interest is payable under the 2027 senior notes semi-annually in April and October, with the principal due in full on
April 15, 2027. The 2027 senior notes may be redeemed, in whole or in part, at various prices depending on the date
redeemed.

In June 2019, Former Cedar Fair issued $500 million of 5.250% senior unsecured notes due 2029 (“2029 senior notes”).
Interest is payable under the 2029 senior notes semi-annually in January and July, with the principal due in full on July 15,
2029. The 2029 senior notes may be redeemed, in whole or in part, at various prices depending on the date redeemed.

In October 2020, Former Cedar Fair issued $300 million of 6.500% senior unsecured notes due 2028 (“2028 senior
notes”). Interest is payable under the 2028 senior notes semi-annually in April and October with the principal due in full on
October 1, 2028. The 2028 senior notes may be redeemed, in whole or in part, at various prices depending on the date
redeemed.

In April 2020, Former Cedar Fair issued $1.0 billion of 5.500% senior secured notes due 2025 (“2025 senior notes”) in a
private placement. The 2025 senior notes and the related guarantees were secured by first-priority liens on the issuers’
and the guarantors’ assets that secured all the obligations under the 2017 Credit Agreement. Interest was payable under
the 2025 senior notes semi-annually in May and November, with the principal due in full on May 1, 2025. On May 2, 2024,
the net proceeds from the new senior secured term loan facility under the 2024 Credit Agreement and cash on hand were
used to redeem all of the 2025 senior notes. The redemption price was $1.0 billion in aggregate principal amount, plus
accrued interest to the redemption date. As a result of the May 2024 refinancing, an $8.0 million loss on early debt
extinguishment was recognized, inclusive of the write-off of debt issuance costs and the portion of a consent payment
attributable to the 2025 senior notes.

Substantially concurrently with the closing and in connection with the Mergers, the Combined Company entered into
supplemental indentures to assume all of Former Cedar Fair’s obligations under the indentures governing the 2027 senior
notes, 2028 senior notes and 2029 senior notes (collectively, the “Cedar Fair Notes”). In addition, under the supplemental
indentures for the Cedar Fair Notes, each of the Former Six Flags subsidiary guarantors under the 2024 Credit
Agreement, as amended, agreed to fully and unconditionally guarantee the Cedar Fair Notes.

Former Six Flags Notes

Substantially concurrently with the closing and in connection with the Mergers, the Combined Company entered into
supplemental indentures to assume all of Former Six Flags’ obligations under its outstanding notes, including:

+  $56.9 million of 4.875% senior unsecured notes due July 2024 (“2024 Six Notes”). The Combined Company paid
the remaining outstanding balance of the 2024 Six Notes on July 31, 2024.

«  $365.0 million of 7.000% senior secured notes due 2025 (“2025 Six Notes”). Interest is payable under the 2025
Six Notes semi-annually in January and July, with the principal due in full on July 1, 2025. $165 million of the
outstanding balance of the 2025 Six Notes was paid on July 1, 2024.

«  $500.0 million of 5.500% senior unsecured notes due 2027 (“2027 Six Notes”). Interest is payable under the
2027 Six Notes semi-annually in April and October, with the principal due in full on April 15, 2027.
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«  $800.0 million of 7.250% senior unsecured notes due 2031 (“2031 Six Notes”). Interest is payable under the
2031 Six Notes semi-annually in May and November, with the principal due in full on May 15, 2031.

«  $850.0 million of 6.625% senior secured notes due 2032 (“2032 Six Notes”). Interest is payable under the 2032
Six Notes semi-annually in May and November, with the principal due in full on May 1, 2032.

Under the supplemental indenture to the 2032 Six Notes, each of the Cedar Fair co-issuers under the 2024 Credit
Agreement became co-issuers of the 2032 Six Notes and each of the Cedar Fair subsidiary guarantors under the 2024
Credit Agreement became guarantors of the 2032 Six Notes. Under the supplemental indentures for all other Former Six
Flags Notes, each of the Cedar Fair co-issuers and subsidiary guarantors under the 2024 Credit Agreement became
guarantors of the 2024 Six Notes, 2025 Six Notes, 2027 Six Notes, and 2031 Six Notes.

In connection with the execution of the supplemental indentures to the 2025 Six Notes and the 2032 Six Notes, each of
the Cedar Fair subsidiary guarantors under the 2024 Credit Agreement (the “Cedar Fair Subsidiary Guarantors”) also
entered into certain security agreements, pursuant to which the Cedar Fair Subsidiary Guarantors granted a first priority
security interest in substantially all of their assets (subject to certain exceptions) to secure the 2025 Six Notes and the
2032 Six Notes.

As market conditions warrant, the Combined Company may from time to time repurchase outstanding debt securities in
privately negotiated or open market transactions, by tender offer, exchange offer or otherwise.

Covenants

With respect to the revolving credit facility only, the 2024 Credit Agreement, as amended, includes a maximum Net First
Lien Leverage Ratio (as defined in the 2024 Credit Agreement) financial maintenance covenant, which is required to be
tested as of the last day of each quarter except for the quarter in which the consummation of the Mergers occurred. The
maximum Net First Lien Leverage Ratio following the consummation of the Mergers is 5.25x beginning with the test period
ending on or about December 31, 2024, with step-downs of 25 bps after every four consecutive quarters, culminating at
4.5x beginning with the test period ending on or about December 31, 2027.

The 2024 Credit Agreement, as amended, and fixed rate note agreements include restricted payment provisions, which
could limit the Combined Company’s ability to pay dividends. Under the 2024 Credit Agreement, as amended, if the pro
forma Net Secured Leverage Ratio (as defined in the 2024 Credit Agreement) is less than or equal to 3.00x, the
Combined Company can make unlimited restricted payments so long as no event of default has occurred and is
continuing. If the pro forma Net Total Leverage Ratio (as defined in the 2024 Credit Agreement) is less than or equal to
5.25x%, the Combined Company can make restricted payments up to the then-available Cumulative Credit (as defined in
the 2024 Credit Agreement), so long as no event of default has occurred and is continuing. Irrespective of any leverage
calculations, the Combined Company can make restricted payments not to exceed the greater of 7.0% of Market
Capitalization (as defined in the 2024 Credit Agreement) and $200 million annually.

Pursuant to the terms of the indenture governing the 2027 senior notes, which includes the most restrictive of the
restricted payments provisions under the terms of the Combined Company’s outstanding notes, even if the pro forma
Total Indebtedness to Consolidated Cash Flow Ratio (as defined in the indenture governing the 2027 senior notes) is
greater than 5.25x, the Combined Company can still make restricted payments of $100 million annually so long as no
default or event of default has occurred and is continuing. If the pro forma Total Indebtedness to Consolidated Cash Flow
Ratio is less than or equal to 5.25x, the Combined Company can make restricted payments up to its restricted payment
pool so long as no default or event of default has occurred and is continuing or would occur as a consequence thereof.
The Combined Company’s pro forma Total Indebtedness to Consolidated Cash Flow Ratio was less than 5.25x as of
December 31, 2024.

On November 9, 2023, Cedar Fair entered into supplemental indentures related to the 2025 senior notes, 2027 senior notes,
2028 senior notes and 2029 senior notes (the “Amendments”) following receipt of requisite consents from the holders of the
notes. The Amendments enabled Cedar Fair to select November 2, 2023, the date the Merger Agreement with Former Six
Flags was entered into, as the testing date for purposes of calculating, with respect to the Mergers and related transactions,
any and all ratio tests under those notes, each of which was satisfied when tested on November 2, 2023. To become
operative, the Amendments required a payment, which was made upon the consummation of the Mergers. The payment
related to the 2025 senior notes was still required despite the redemption of those notes in May 2024.
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(7) Non-Controlling Interests:

Substantially concurrently with the closing and in connection with the Mergers, the Combined Company assumed certain
obligations regarding the Partnership Parks. Obligations related to the Partnership Parks continue until 2027, in the case
of SFOG, and 2028, in the case of SFOT. Such obligations include:

(i) Minimum annual distributions of approximately $91.1 million in 2025 (subject to cost of living adjustments) to the limited
partners of the partnership entities (the “Georgia Partnership” with respect to SFOG and the “Texas Partnership” with
respect to SFOT) that own the Partnership Parks. Based on the Combined Company’s ownership of units as of
December 31, 2024, the Combined Company’s share of the distribution will be approximately $40.7 million. When
combined with the minimum annual distributions incurred by Former Six Flags prior to the Mergers, the total minimum
annual distributions for 2024 totaled $88.5 million.

(i) Minimum capital expenditures at each of the Partnership Parks during rolling five-year periods, based generally on
6.00% of the Partnership Parks’ revenues. The capital expenditures at the Partnership Parks is expected to be in excess
of the minimum required expenditures for 2025 and was in excess of the minimum required expenditures for 2024.

(iii) An annual offer to purchase all outstanding limited partnership units at the Specified Price (defined below) to the
extent tendered by the unitholders, which annual offer must remain open from March 31 through late April of each year,
and any limited partnership interest tendered during such time period must be fully paid no later than May 15th of that
year (the “Partnership Park Put”’). The Combined Company is required to repurchase such limited partnership units
through May 15, 2026 in the case of the Georgia Partnership and May 15, 2027 in the case of the Texas Partnership. As
the Combined Company purchases additional units, it is entitled to a proportionate increase in its share of the minimum
annual distributions. As part of the 2024 annual offering, Former Six Flags purchased 0.269 limited partnership units of
the Georgia Partnership for $1.1 million and 0.005 units of the Texas Partnership for a nominal amount.

The agreed price for units tendered in the Partnership Park Put is based on a valuation of each of the respective
Partnership Parks (the “Specified Price”) that is the greater of (a) a valuation for each of the respective Partnership Parks
derived by multiplying such park’s weighted average four-year EBITDA (as defined in the agreements that govern the
partnerships) by a specified multiple (8.0 in the case of SFOG and 8.5 in the case of SFOT) and (b) a valuation derived
from the highest prices previously offered for the units of the Partnership Parks by certain entities. In light of the temporary
suspension of operations of the parks due to the COVID-19 pandemic in March 2020, which would have caused the
specified price of the limited partnership units of the Partnership Parks to decrease in 2021 and thereafter, Former Six
Flags adjusted the annual offer to purchase these units to set a minimum price floor for all future purchases. Pursuant to
the minimum price floor, the implied valuation of the Partnership Parks using the Specified Price, if determined as of
December 31, 2024, is $409.7 million in the case of SFOG and $527.4 million in the case of SFOT. As of December 31,
2024, the Combined Company owned approximately 31.8% and 54.1% of the Georgia limited partner interests and Texas
limited partner interests, respectively.

(iv) Either (a) purchasing all of the outstanding limited partnership interests in the Partnership Parks through the exercise
of a call option upon the earlier of the occurrence of specified events and the end of the term of the partnership that hold
the Partnership Parks in 2027 in the case of SFOG and 2028 in the case of SFOT, or (b) causing each of the partnerships
that hold the Partnership Parks to have no indebtedness and to meet certain other financial tests as of the end of the term
of such partnership.

In January 2027 with respect to the Georgia Partnership and in January 2028 with respect to the Texas Partnership, the
Combined Company will have the option (each an “End-of-Term Option”) to require the redemption of all the limited
partnership units that the Combined Company does not then own in the Partnerships. On December 17, 2024, the
Combined Company provided notice to the Georgia Partnership of its exercise of the End-of-Term Option relating to Six
Flags Over Georgia and Six Flags White Water Atlanta. In addition to the outstanding limited partnership interests, the
Combined Company will acquire certain related entity general partnership and managing member interests.

To exercise the End-of-Term Option for the Texas Partnership, the Combined Company must give the Texas Partnership
notice of its exercise no later than December 31, 2025. If the End-of-Term Option is not exercised, the parties may decide
to renew and extend the arrangements relating to the Texas Partnership. Alternatively, if the End-of-Term Option is not
exercised, the Texas Partnership entities may be sold and the proceeds applied to redeem the outstanding interests in the
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Texas Partnership. If the End-of-Term Option is exercised, the price offered, and required to be accepted by the holders’
of the limited units that the Combined Company does not then own, is based on the agreed upon value of the Texas
Partnership included in the original agreements, multiplied by the change in the Consumer Price Index (“CPI”) between
the beginning and end of the agreement. The decision to exercise, or not exercise, the End-of-Term Option for SFOT wiill
ultimately be made based on numerous factors, including prevailing macro-economic and industry conditions and the cost
and availability of financing to fund the purchase.

The agreements for the Georgia Partnership and Texas Partnership began in 1997 and 1998, respectively. The agreed-
upon value for the partnerships when the agreements were executed was $250.0 million and $374.8 million for SFOG and
SFOT, respectively. As of December 31, 2024, the agreed-upon value, as adjusted for CPI, would be $504.5 million and
$742.6 million for SFOG and SFOT, respectively. The agreed-upon values, if determined as of December 31, 2024,
multiplied by the 68.2% and 45.9% of units held by the limited partner for SFOG and SFOT respectively, represent
$347.2 million and $344.7 million that would be required to be paid to the limited partner of SFOG and SFOT, respectively
at the End-of-Option Term. The actual agreed upon value of the End-of-Term Option will be further adjusted by CPI until
the end of each respective agreement.

Cash flows from operations at the Partnership Parks are used to satisfy the above requirements before any funds are
required from the Combined Company. After the payment of the minimum distribution, the Combined Company is entitled
to a management fee equal to 3% of prior year gross revenues and, thereafter, any additional cash is distributed first to
any management fee in arrears and then towards the repayment of any interest and principal on intercompany loans. Any
additional cash, to the extent available, is distributed 95% to the Combined Company in the case of SFOG and 92.5% to
the Combined Company in the case of SFOT. The Partnership Parks lost approximately $8.8 million of cash in 2024, after
deduction of capital expenditures and excluding the impact of short-term intercompany advances from or payments to
Former Six Flags and the Combined Company primarily due to increased capital spending at both SFOT and SFOG.

Former Six Flags entered into a Subordinated Indemnity Agreement with certain of the Combined Company’s entities,
Time Warner, and an affiliate of Time Warner (an indirect subsidiary of AT&T Inc. as a result of a merger in 2018),
pursuant to which, among other things, Former Six Flags transferred to Time Warner (which has guaranteed all of the
obligations under the Partnership Park arrangements) record title to the corporations that own the entities that purchase
limited partnership units of the Partnership Parks, and Former Six Flags received an assignment from Time Warner of all
cash flow received on such limited partnership units, and the Combined Company otherwise controls such entities. In
addition, Former Six Flags issued preferred stock of the managing partner of the partnerships to Time Warner. In the
event of default by the Combined Company under the Subordinated Indemnity Agreement or of the Combined Company’s
obligations to the partners in the Partnership Parks, these arrangements would permit Time Warner to take full control of
both the entities that own limited partnership units and the managing partner. If the Combined Company satisfies all such
obligations, Time Warner is required to transfer to the Combined Company the entire equity interests of these entities at
the end of the term, which is 2027 for the Georgia Partnership and 2028 for the Texas Partnership.

As of December 31, 2024, redeemable non-controlling interests, representing the non-affiliated parties’ equity interest, of
the Texas Partnership was $241.8 million. Changes in the carrying value of redeemable non-controlling interests for the
Texas Partnership for the year ended December 31, 2024 were:

(In thousands) SFOT

Balance as of December 31, 2023 $ —
Mergers (Note 2) 254,057
Distributions earned by non-controlling interests 12,241
Distributions paid to non-controlling interests (24,482)

Balance as of December 31, 2024 $241,816

The redemption value of the non-controlling partnership units of the Texas Partnership as of December 31, 2024 was
approximately $241.8 million.

Following the notification of the Combined Company’s intent to exercise the End-of-Term Option of the Georgia
Partnership, the redeemable non-controlling interests related to the Georgia Partnership were classified as a non-current
liability within “NCI Call Option Liability” on the consolidated balance sheet. The liability was recorded at the net present
value of the call option price. The difference between the net present value of the call option price and the redemption
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value was recorded as a deemed dividend to retained earnings within the consolidated statement of equity. The liability
will be accreted to the final purchase price over the remaining Georgia Partnership term.

The Combined Company will continue to have the obligation to purchase, at the Specified Price, any units of SFOG that
unitholders elect to put as part of the annual offering during the 2025 and 2026 offering windows. If all put options of the
Georgia Partnership were exercised, the redemption value would be $279.4 million as of December 31, 2024.

Changes in the carrying value of the Georgia Partnership for the year ended December 31, 2024 were:

(In thousands) SFOG
Balance as of December 31, 2023 $ —
Mergers (Note 2) 291,628
Distributions earned by non-controlling interests 12,258
Distributions paid to non-controlling interests (24,515)
Put option redemption value 279,371
Call option premium over put option redemption value 67,797
Total future liability 347,168
Net present value discount 56,778
Balance as of December 31, 2024 $290,390

(8) Income and Partnership Taxes:

Since the completion of the Mergers, the Combined Company has been taxed as a corporation. Prior to the completion of
the Mergers, Former Cedar Fair was taxed as a publicly traded partnership (“PTP”), with a tax levied on partnership gross
income (net revenues less cost of food, merchandise, and games revenues). The PTP was historically not subject to US
federal or state income tax as permanent income tax exemptions are available for qualifying PTPs. In addition, income
taxes are recognized for the amount of income taxes payable by Former Cedar Fair and its corporate subsidiaries for the
current year and for the impact of deferred tax assets and liabilities that represent future tax consequences of events that
have been recognized differently in the financial statements than for tax purposes. As such, the “Provision for taxes”
includes amounts for both the PTP tax and for federal, state, local and foreign income taxes. The Combined Company will
pay PTP tax for the first six months of 2024, when Former Cedar Fair operated as a PTP.

The following table summarizes the domestic and foreign components of the Combined Company’s income taxes for the
years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022 were as follows:

(In thousands) 2024 2023 2022

Domestic $25,541 $114,878 $327,897
Foreign 8,637 57,724 43,760
Total income before taxes $34,178 $172,602 $371,657

The provision for income taxes was comprised of the following for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022:

(In thousands) 2024 2023 2022
Current federal $ 32,126 $35,656 $37,349
Current state and local 12,755 3,754 2,799
Current foreign 15,037 15,390 19,456

Total current 59,018 54,800 59,604
Deferred federal, state and local 184,354  (8,710) 6,113
Deferred foreign (3,429) 1,953 (1,728)

Total deferred 180,925  (6,757) 4,385

Total provision for income taxes $240,843 $48,043 $63,989
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The provision for income taxes for the corporate subsidiaries differed from the amount computed by applying the U.S.
federal statutory income tax rate of 21% to income before taxes. The sources and tax effects of the differences were as
follows:

(In thousands) 2024 2023 2022

Income tax provision based on the U.S. federal statutory tax rate $ 7177 $ 36,246 $ 78,048
Partnership loss (income) not subject to corporate income tax 15,781  (14,624) (38,556)
Effect of non-controlling interest income distribution (5,145) — —
Effect of state and local taxes, net of federal tax benefit 6,365 4,157 8,153
Change in valuation allowance 2,938 9,703 9
Non-deductible employee compensation 1,999 — —
Uncertain tax positions (1,096) — —
Tax credits (including foreign tax credits) (7,525) (16,782) (20,943)
Change in U.S. tax law 441 332 (107)
Foreign currency translation loss (gains) 8,087 (1,821) 7,129
US Federal effects on international inclusions 8,083 11,405 11,337
Foreign rate differential 1,703 3,436 3,484
Change in tax status (1) 194,785 — —
PTP tax 5,344 14,255 14,437
Nondeductible expenses and other 1,906 1,736 998
Total provision for income taxes $240,843 $ 48,043 $ 63,989

(1) Change in tax status includes non-cash tax effects of (a) the conversion of Former Cedar Fair to a corporation as part
of the Mergers, and (b) an internal restructuring that converted a lower-tier partnership into a corporation for tax
purposes on December 31, 2024.

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes.

Significant components of deferred tax assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 were as
follows:

(In thousands) 2024 2023
Deferred tax assets:
Compensation $ 20,630 $ 15,615
Accrued expenses 49,759 4,704
Foreign tax credits 40,003 17,991
Tax attribute carryforwards 153,069 13,570
Foreign currency translation 6,841 3,776
Deferred revenue 56,572 1,557
Lease liabilities 57,188 16,856
Deferred tax assets 384,062 74,069
Valuation allowance (128,192)  (32,143)
Net deferred tax assets 255,870 41,926
Deferred tax liabilities:
Property and equipment (526,711) (69,143)
Intangibles (222,959) (20,495)
Right-of-use assets (48,783) (15,691)
Deferred tax liabilities (798,453) (105,329)
Net deferred tax liabilities $(542,583) $ (63,403)

As of December 31, 2024, the Combined Company had state net operating loss carryforwards of $72.8 million, which
begin to expire in 2025 while others are indefinite lived. In addition, as of December 31, 2024, the Combined Company
had foreign tax credit carryforwards of $40.0 million, which expire in years 2025 through 2034. As of December 31, 2024,
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the Combined Company had foreign net operating losses of $7.0 million which expire in years 2034 through 2043. As of
December 31, 2024, the Combined Company had interest expense limitation carryforwards of $73.0 million which do not
expire.

The Combined Company records a valuation allowance if, based on the weight of available evidence, it is more likely than
not that some portion, or all, of a deferred tax asset will not be realized. The need for this allowance is based on several
factors including the carryforward periods for net operating losses and tax credits, prior experience of tax credit limitations,
and management’s long-term estimates of domestic and foreign source income.

As of December 31, 2024, the Combined Company recorded a $128.2 million valuation allowance consisting of
$37.4 million related to foreign tax credits (“FTCs”), $65.4 million of state net operating loss carryforwards and other state
deferred tax assets, $25.4 million related to Canadian capital loss carryforwards and other Canadian deferred tax assets.
The following table presents the changes to the valuation allowance for the periods presented.

(In thousands) 2024 2023 2022

Beginning valuation allowance $ (32,143) $(24,228) $(24,374)
Change for valuation allowances acquired in the Mergers (91,928) — —
Change in foreign tax credit carryforward allowance (4,116) (6,524) (3,075)
Change in state valuation (4,037) (1,202) 3,065
Change in Canadian capital loss carryforward allowance 4,032 (189) 156

Ending valuation allowance $(128,192) $(32,143) $(24,228)

The Combined Company evaluates its tax positions using a more-likely-than-not threshold, and those tax positions
requiring recognition are measured at the largest amount of tax benefit that is greater than 50% likely of being realized
upon effective settlement with a taxing authority that has full knowledge of all relevant information. As of December 31,
2024, the Combined Company recorded unrecognized tax benefits of $25.6 million, all of which would impact the effective
tax rate if recognized and were included within “Other liabilities” in the consolidated balance sheet. Due to uncertainties
regarding the timing of examination and the amount of any settlements, the Combined Company does not anticipate a
reduction in the unrecognized tax benefits within the next twelve months.. The following table presents the changes to
unrecognized tax benefits for the periods presented.

(In thousands) 2024 2023 2022
Beginning unrecognized tax benefits 58 — & &
Increases related to positions acquired in the Mergers 26,853 — —
Decreases due to expiration of statute of limitations (1,296) — —
Ending unrecognized tax benefits $25,557 $— $—

The Combined Company classifies interest and penalties attributable to income taxes as part of income tax expense.
During the years ended December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the expense recognized for interest and penalties
was not material.

The Inflation Reduction Act was signed into law on August 16, 2022 and created a new 15% corporate alternative
minimum tax (“CAMT”) based on adjusted financial statement income. The effective date of the provision was January 1,
2023. The Combined Company will not be subject to the CAMT as its reported earnings for each of the past three years
did not exceed $1 billion.

The Canadian government has enacted Pillar Two legislation (Global Minimum Tax Act), that includes the Income
Inclusion Rule and Qualified Domestic Minimum Top-Up Tax. The Canadian legislation is effective for fiscal years
beginning January 1, 2024, and thereafter. The Combined Company has performed an assessment of the potential
exposure to Pillar Two income taxes. This assessment is based on the most recent information available regarding the
financial performance of the constituent entities. Based on the assessment performed, the Pillar Two effective tax rates in
all jurisdictions in which the Combined Company operates is above the 15% minimum tax rate. The Combined Company
continues to evaluate the legislation and does not expect an exposure to Pillar Two taxes for 2024.
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The Combined Company is subject to taxation in the U.S., Canada, Mexico and various state and local jurisdictions. Its
tax returns are subject to examination by state and federal tax authorities. With few exceptions, the Combined Company
is no longer subject to examination by the major taxing authorities for tax years before 2020.

The Combined Company has designated the undistributed earnings of its foreign operations as indefinitely reinvested
and, as a result, the Company does not provide for deferred income taxes on unremitted earnings of these subsidiaries.
As of December 31, 2024, the determination of the amount of such unrecognized deferred tax liability is not practicable.

(9) Partners’ and Shareholders’ Equity and Equity-Based Compensation:
Special L.P. Interests

In accordance with the Former Cedar Fair Partnership Agreement, certain partners were allocated $5.3 million of 1987
and 1988 taxable income (without any related cash distributions) for which they received Special L.P. Interests. The
Special L.P. Interests did not participate in cash distributions and had no voting rights. The holders of Special L.P.
Interests received in the aggregate $5.3 million upon liquidation of the Partnership as a result of the Mergers.

Equity-Based Incentive Plan

The 2024 Omnibus Incentive Plan was adopted by CopperSteel HoldCo, Inc. and approved by CopperSteel HoldCo, Inc.’s
shareholders prior to the Mergers, and was effective as of the Closing Date. The 2024 Omnibus Incentive Plan allows the
Combined Company to award up to 8.0 million shares of Combined Company Common Stock as an element of
compensation to any employee, officer, nhon-employee director, or consultant at the discretion of the People, Culture &
Compensation Committee (the “Compensation Committee”) of the Board of Directors. The types of awards available
under the 2024 Omnibus Incentive Plan include stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock awards, restricted
stock units (including performance units), other awards and dividend equivalent rights. Outstanding awards under the
Cedar Fair 2016 Omnibus Incentive Plan and the Former Six Flags Long Term Incentive Plan as converted in the Merger
continue to be in effect and are governed by the terms of those plans, but no new awards may be issued under either
legacy plan.

Equity-based compensation expense recognized in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive (loss)
income within “Selling, general and administrative expense” for the applicable periods was as follows. The results for the
year ended December 31, 2024 include the results of Former Six Flags operations since the Closing Date of the Mergers
(see Note 2).

Years Ended December 31,

(In thousands) 2024 () 2023 2022
Awards Payable in Cash or Equity

Deferred stock / units $ 1,080 $ 473 $ (206)
Awards Payable in Equity

Performance stock / units 1,811 12,963 12,787

Restricted stock / units 58,517 9,548 7,613
Total equity-based compensation expense $61,408 $22,984 $20,194

(1) Includes $23.0 million of expense related to Former Six Flags awards of which $15.1 million was expensed
immediately upon the Closing Date of the Mergers.

Treatment of Equity Awards as a Result of the Mergers

At the time the Cedar Fair First Merger became effective (the “Cedar Fair First Merger Effective Time”), each outstanding
Cedar Fair equity award (other than each Cedar Fair deferred unit) was converted into a corresponding award relating to
shares of Combined Company Common Stock, with the number of shares of Combined Company Common Stock subject
to such converted award based on the Cedar Fair Exchange Ratio. The converted Cedar Fair equity awards remain
outstanding and subject to the same terms and conditions applied under the Cedar Fair 2016 Omnibus Incentive Plan and
the applicable award agreements immediately prior to the Cedar Fair First Merger Effective Time, including vesting
protections for qualifying terminations that occur within a period of 24 months following the closing of the Mergers. Cedar
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Fair Performance Units were converted based on the higher of target performance and actual performance or, in the case
of awards (or portion thereof) related to any performance period that would have begun after the Closing Effective Time,
were converted based on target performance, and are not subject to future performance-based vesting conditions (but
remain subject to service-based vesting conditions). Any outstanding Cedar Fair Deferred Units were settled at the First
Cedar Fair Merger Effective Time in either cash or shares of Combined Company Common Stock in accordance with
such terms.

At the Closing Effective Time, generally and other than as provided in certain employment agreements entered into in
connection with the Mergers, each Former Six Flags equity award was converted into a corresponding award relating to
shares of Combined Company Common Stock, with the number of shares of Combined Company Common Stock subject
to such converted award based on the Six Flags Exchange Ratio. The converted Former Six Flags equity awards remain
outstanding and subject to the same terms and conditions as applied under the Former Six Flags Long Term Incentive
Plan and the applicable award agreements immediately prior to the Closing Effective Time (except that (i) performance-
based awards were converted based on the higher of target and actual performance and will not be subject to future
performance-based vesting conditions (but remain subject to service-based vesting conditions) and (ii) all converted
awards are subject to vesting protections for qualifying terminations that occur within a period of 24 months following the
Closing). Any Former Six Flags Deferred Share Unit Awards were settled at the time of the Closing Effective Time in
shares of Combined Company Common Stock based on the Six Flags Exchange Ratio. Former Six Flags equity awards
were eligible for payment of the Special Dividend; provided, that such amount will not be paid until such time as the
underlying Former Six Flags equity award, as converted, becomes vested or settled pursuant to its terms (if at all).

Deferred Stock | Units

Weighted Average
Grant Date Fair

Number of Value Per
(In thousands, except per share | unit amounts) Shares / Units Share / Unit
Outstanding deferred stock / units at December 31, 2023 61 $47.52
Granted (1) 3 $52.82
Settled @ (64) $47.81
Outstanding deferred stock / units at December 31, 2024 = $ —

(1) Includes 1 forfeitable distribution-equivalent units.

(2) All Cedar Fair Deferred Units were settled as a result of the Mergers.

Deferred unit awards vested over a one-year period and the settlement of the units was deferred until the individual’s
service to the Partnership ended. Settlement occurred upon the Closing Date of the Mergers. The deferred units
accumulated distribution-equivalents upon vesting and were paid when the restriction ended. The effect of outstanding
deferred unit awards has been included in the diluted earnings per share calculation for the year ended December 31,
2024, as a portion of the awards were expected to be settled in limited partnership units during the year. As of
December 31, 2024, there were no deferred unit or stock awards outstanding.

Performance Stock Units | Performance Units

Weighted Average
Grant Date Fair

Number of Value Per
(In thousands, except per share | unit amounts) Shares / Units Share / Unit
Unvested performance stock units / performance units at December 31, 2023 934 $50.00
Granted () 539 $44.82
Forfeited (31) $47.39
Vested (130) $47.28
Converted (1,124) $48.22
Unvested performance stock units at December 31, 2024 188 $48.12

(1) Includes 11 forfeitable distribution-equivalent units.
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(2) All Cedar Fair Performance Units outstanding as of the Closing Date of the Mergers were converted to Combined
Company restricted stock units.

The unvested performance stock units outstanding as of December 31, 2024 includes awards approved by the
Compensation Committee under the 2024 Omnibus Incentive Plan upon the Closing Date of the Mergers for certain
executives and on August 20, 2024 for certain other executives. Based on actual results, each executive will be eligible to
receive between 0% and 200% of the target award. The award will be eligible to vest based on the attainment of specified
Adjusted EBITDA performance goals by the Combined Company during the applicable performance period, which ends
December 31, 2026, and subject to each executives’ continued employment with the Combined Company through the
determination date following the performance period. The awards are not eligible for dividends or dividend equivalent
rights and will be paid in the first quarter following the performance period in Combined Company Common Stock. The
effect of outstanding performance stock unit and performance unit awards has been included in the diluted earnings per
share calculation for the year ended December 31, 2024 to the extent that the performance conditions would have been
met at the end of the reporting period if the end of the reporting period were the end of the performance period.

As of December 31, 2024, unamortized compensation expense related to unvested performance stock unit awards was
$7.2 million, which is expected to be amortized over a weighted average period of 2.0 years. The fair value of the
performance stock units is based on the share price the day before the date of grant. Management assesses the
probability of the performance targets being met and may reverse prior period expense or recognize additional expense
accordingly.

Restricted Stock | Restricted Stock Units

Weighted Average
Grant Date Fair

Number of Value Per
(In thousands, except per share | unit amounts) Shares / Units Share / Unit
Unvested restricted stock / restricted stock units at December 31, 2023 425 $47.41
Granted 487 $40.46
Forfeited (18) $46.40
Vested (1) (617) $48.79
Converted @ 1,124 $48.22
Acquired 606 $52.11
Unvested restricted stock / restricted stock units at December 31, 2024 2,007 $47.18

(1) The quantity vested includes 346 shares of Former Six Flags restricted stock and restricted stock units converted to
Combined Company restricted stock and restricted stock units, of which the majority of this vested amount vested
upon the Closing Date of the Mergers per employment agreements with certain executives.

(2) All Cedar Fair Performance Units outstanding as of the Closing Date of the Mergers were converted to Combined
Company restricted stock units.

Of the restricted stock and restricted stock unit awards outstanding as of December 31, 2024, 0.4 million shares of
restricted stock represented restricted unit awards granted prior to the Mergers that vest evenly over an approximate
three-year period and 0.1 million shares of restricted stock represented restricted unit awards granted prior to the Mergers
that vest following an approximate three-year cliff vesting period. 0.1 million shares of restricted stock units represented
transaction-based awards (“Merger completion awards”) to certain executive officers awarded prior to the Closing Date of
the Mergers in connection with the entry into the definitive merger agreement with Former Six Flags. In general, the
Merger completion awards vested 50% 12 months after December 4, 2023, and the remainder will vest 18 months after
December 4, 2023. 1.1 million restricted stock units represented Cedar Fair Performance Units converted to time-based
restricted stock units upon closing of the Mergers. These restricted stock units will be paid out 0.6 million in the first
quarter of 2025, 0.2 million in the first quarter of 2026 and 0.3 million in the first quarter of 2027. 0.3 million shares of
restricted stock and restricted stock units represented Former Six Flags restricted awards converted to Combined
Company restricted stock and restricted stock units, including converted performance-based awards, of which 0.2 million
restricted stock units will vest during the first quarter of 2025 and 0.1 million of restricted stock units will vest evenly over
an approximate two-year period ending in the first quarter of 2026. Restrictions on restricted stock and restricted stock
unit awards lapse upon vesting. As of December 31, 2024, the amount of forfeitable distribution equivalents accrued on

77



outstanding shares of restricted stock and restricted stock units totaled $1.7 million; $1.4 million of which was classified as
current and recorded within “Other accrued liabilities” within the consolidated balance sheet and $0.3 million of which was
classified as non-current and recorded within “Other Liabilities”. The effect of outstanding restricted stock and restricted
stock unit awards has been included in the diluted earnings per share calculation for the year ended December 31, 2024.

As of December 31, 2024, unamortized compensation expense, determined as the market value of the restricted stock or
restricted stock units on the day before the date of grant, or in the case of Former Six Flags restricted stock and restricted
stock units the market value on the Closing Date of the Mergers, related to unvested restricted unit awards was
$27.2 million, which is expected to be amortized over a weighted average period of 1.4 years.

Stock Options
Weighted Average Aggregate
Weighted Average Remaining Intrinsic

(In thousands, except per stock | unit amounts) Options Exercise Price Contractual Life Value
Options outstanding at December 31, 2023 — $ —

Granted — $ —

Exercised — $ —

Acquired 603 $96.84

Forfeited (55) $78.77
Options outstanding at December 31, 2024 548 $98.67
Options exercisable, end of year 548 $98.67 2.6 years $—

Former Six Flags stock options were converted to Combined Company stock options as a result of the Mergers. The
Combined Company stock options were measured at fair value using the Black-Scholes Option Model. The expected term
was estimated using expected at-the-money life in conjunction with other data in a lattice model to estimate the
sub-optimal exercise factor, which was used to estimate the life of the options. The expected term ranged from zero to five
years. The expected volatility was calculated over a look-back period consistent with the estimated expected term. The
expected volatility ranged from 27% to 54%. The expected dividend was estimated at 0%. The risk-free rate was
estimated using the US Treasury Securities yield as of the measurement date consistent with the estimated expected
term. The risk-free rate ranged from 4.5% to 5.5%. All the acquired stock options are fully vested and have terms expiring
from July 2024 to January 2030.

Unit Repurchase Plan

On August 3, 2022, Former Cedar Fair announced that the Board of Directors of its general partner approved a unit
repurchase program authorizing the Partnership to repurchase units for an aggregate amount of not more than
$250 million. There were 1.4 million limited partnership units repurchased under the August 2022 repurchase program
during the year ended December 31, 2023 at an average price of $44.00 per limited partner unit for an aggregate amount
of $62.5 million. There were 4.5 million limited partnership units repurchased under the August 2022 repurchase program
during the year ended December 31, 2022 at an average price of $41.28 per limited partner unit for an aggregate amount
of $187.4 million. There was no remaining availability under the August 2022 repurchase program following April 2023.

On May 4, 2023, Former Cedar Fair announced that the Board of Directors of its general partner authorized the
Partnership to repurchase additional units for an aggregate amount of not more than $250 million. There were 0.3 million
units repurchased under the May 2023 repurchase program during the year ended December 31, 2023 at an average
price of $38.27 per limited partner unit for an aggregate amount of $12.0 million. Accordingly, there was a total of
1.7 million units repurchased under the August 2022 and May 2023 repurchase programs during the year ended
December 31, 2023 at an average price of $42.97 per limited partner unit for an aggregate amount of $74.5 million. There
were no units repurchased during the year ended December 31, 2024 under either program.

Subiject to applicable rules and regulations, Former Cedar Fair could have repurchased units from time-to-time in the open
market or by negotiated transactions. The amount and timing of such repurchases were based on a variety of factors,
including liquidity, capital needs of the business, market conditions, regulatory requirements, and other business
considerations. No limit was placed on the duration of either repurchase program. Former Cedar Fair was not obligated to
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repurchase any minimum dollar amount or specific number of units, and could modify, suspend, or discontinue the
program at any time.

There are no repurchase programs outstanding related to the Combined Company as of the date of this report.
(10) Pension Benefits and Retirement Plans:
Pension Benefits

Substantially concurrently with the closing and in connection with the Mergers, the Combined Company assumed the
obligations of the Former Six Flags pension plan. Former Six Flags froze its pension plan effective March 31, 2006, and
effective February 16, 2009, the remaining participants in the pension plan no longer earned future benefits. The Former
Six Flags pension plan permits normal retirement at age 65, with early retirement at ages 55 through 64 upon attainment
of 10 years of credited service. The early retirement benefit is reduced for benefits commencing before age 62. Plan
benefits are calculated according to a benefit formula based on age, average compensation over the highest consecutive
5-year period during the employee’s last 10 years of employment and years of service. The Former Six Flags pension
plan assets are invested primarily in fixed income securities. The Former Six Flags pension plan does not have significant
liabilities other than benefit obligations. Under the Combined Company’s funding policy, contributions to the Former Six
Flags pension plan are determined using the project unit credit cost method. This funding policy meets the requirements
under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (“ERISA”).

Obligations and Funded Status
The following table sets forth the changes in the benefit plan obligation and fair value of plan assets of the Former Six

Flags pension plan, and the weighted average assumptions used to determine the benefit obligation for the six months
ended December 31, 2024, or since the Closing Date of the Mergers (see Note 2):

For the six
months ended
(In thousands, except percentage) December 31, 2024
Change in fair value of plan assets:
Beginning balance $164,388
Actual return on assets 2,579
Benefits paid (5,273)
Administrative fees (521)
Ending balance $161,173
Change in benefit obligation:
Beginning balance $155,068
Interest cost 3,919
Actuarial gain (2,159)
Benefits paid (5,273)
Ending balance $151,555
Weighted average benefit obligation assumptions:
Discount rate 5.40%
Rate of compensation increase N/A

Employer contributions and benefits paid in the above table only include those amounts contributed directly to, or paid
directly from, plan assets. As of December 31, 2024, the fair value of the Former Six Flags pension plan assets exceeded
its projected benefit obligation by $9.6 million resulting in a net plan asset position. The net plan asset is presented within
“Other assets” in the consolidated balance sheet.
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Net periodic benefit cost and other comprehensive income (loss)

The following table sets forth the components of net periodic expense (benefit) cost and other comprehensive income
(loss), and the weighted average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost for the six months ended
December 31, 2024:

For the six
months ended

(In thousands, except percentages and years) December 31, 2024
Net periodic expense (benefit) cost:

Service cost $ —

Interest cost 3,919

Expected return on plan assets (4,560)

Administrative fees 450
Total $ (191)
Other comprehensive income (loss)

Current year actuarial gain $ (107)

Total $ (107)
Weighted average net periodic expense (benefit) cost assumptions:

Discount rate 5.25%

Rate of compensation increase N/A

Expected return on plan assets @ 5.75%

Corridor 10.00%

Average future life expectancy (in years) 22.89

(1) The discount rate assumption was developed based on high-quality corporate bond yields as of the measurement
date. High quality corporate bond yield indices on over 500 AA high grade bonds are considered when selecting the
discount rate.

(2) The expected return on plan assets assumption was developed based on consideration of historical market returns,
current market conditions, and the Former Six Flags pension plan’s past experience. Estimates of future market
returns by asset category are reflective of actual long-term historical returns. Overall, it was projected that the Former
Six Flags pension plan could achieve 5.750% net return over time based on a consistent application of the existing
asset allocation strategy and a continuation of the Former Six Flags pension plan’s policy of monitoring manager
performance.

As of December 31, 2024, cumulative actuarial losses of $0.1 million (net of tax benefit of $0.1 million) were recognized in
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) in the consolidated balance sheet. It is not anticipated any net actuarial
loss will be amortized from accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) into net periodic expense (benefit) cost in
2025.

Description of Investment Committee and Strategy

The Investment Committee consists of Combined Company internal resources and external advisors, and is responsible
for managing the investment of the Former Six Flags pension plan assets and ensuring that the Former Six Flags pension
plan’s investment program is in compliance with all provisions of ERISA, other relevant legislation, related Former Six
Flags pension plan documents and the Statement of Investment Policy. The Investment Committee has retained several
mutual funds, commingled funds and/or investment managers to manage the Former Six Flags pension plan assets and
implement the investment process. The investment managers, in implementing their investment processes, have the
authority and responsibility to select appropriate investments in the asset classes specified by the terms of the applicable
prospectus or other investment manager agreements with the Former Six Flags pension plan.

The primary financial objective of the Former Six Flags pension plan is to secure participant retirement benefits. To
achieve this, the key objective in the Former Six Flags pension plan’s financial management is to promote stability and, to
the extent appropriate, growth in funded status. Other related and supporting financial objectives are also considered in
conjunction with a comprehensive review of current and projected Former Six Flags pension plan financial requirements.
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The assets of the fund are invested to achieve the greatest reward for the Former Six Flags pension plan consistent with a
prudent level of risk. The asset return objective is to achieve, as a minimum over time, the passively managed return
earned by market index funds, weighted in the proportions outlined by the asset class exposures in the Former Six Flags
pension plan’s long-term target asset allocation. The Former Six Flags pension plan’s portfolio may be allocated across
several hedge fund styles and strategies.

Plan Assets

The Former Six Flags pension plan’s assets are allocated as follows: 94% fixed income securities; 6% international equity
securities; and a nominal amount to alternative investments. Fixed income securities include bonds and debentures
issued by domestic and foreign private and governmental issuers. Equity securities primarily include investments in
large-cap companies located abroad. Alternative investments are comprised of hedge funds. The following table presents
the categories of plan assets and the related levels of inputs in the fair value hierarchy used to determine fair value, as
defined in Note 1, as of December 31, 2024.

Fair Value Measurements as of December 31, 2024

Quoted Prices in  Significant Significant
Active Markets for Observable Unobservable

(In thousands) Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
Asset Category Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Equity securities:

International equity (M $ 10,317 $ 10,317 $— $—
Fixed income:

Long duration fixed income 150,852 150,852 — —
Alternatives:

Other investments 4 — 4 =
Total fair value of plan assets $161,173 $161,169 $4 $—

(1) This category consists of mutual funds invested primarily in equity securities (common stock, securities that are
convertible into common stock, preferred stock, warrants and rights to subscribe to common stock) of non-U.S.
issuers purchased in foreign markets. The mutual funds are actively traded on U.S. or foreign registered exchanges,
or over-the-counter markets.

(2) This category consists of U.S. Treasury Separate Trading of Registered Interest and Principal of Securities (“U.S.
Treasury STRIPS”) and mutual funds which are actively traded on registered exchanges. The mutual funds are
invested primarily in high quality government and corporate fixed income securities, as well as synthetic instruments
or derivatives having economic characteristics similar to fixed income securities.

(3) This category consists of common/collective trust investments that are measured at fair value using the net asset
value per share practical expedient and has not been classified in the fair value hierarchy. The fair value amounts
presented in this table are intended to permit reconciliation of the fair value hierarchy to the total fair value of plan
assets. The Combined Company has participant redemptions restricted to the last business day of the quarter, with
either a 65 day or 90 day period redemption notice.

Expected Cash Flows

The Combined Company does not plan to make any contributions to plan trusts in 2025. The following table summarizes
expected future benefit payments:

(In thousands)
Expected benefit payments:

2025 $ 11,333
2026 11,499
2027 11,677
2028 11,722
2029 11,740
2030 through 2033 57,131
Total $115,102

81



Retirement Plans

The Combined Company has contributory retirement plans for most of its full-time employees. These plans permit
employees to contribute specified percentages of their salary, matched up to a limit. Employer contributions, net of
forfeitures, approximated $9.4 million, $6.9 million and $5.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and
2022, respectively. Former Cedar Fair had noncontributory retirement plans for most of its full-time employees prior to
2023. Contributions were discretionary and amounts accrued were approximately $4.8 million for 2022.

In addition, as of December 31, 2024, approximately 1,075 employees are covered by union-sponsored, multi-employer
pension plans for which approximately $3.9 million, $2.1 million and $2.1 million were contributed for the years ended
December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively. A union representing approximately 15 employees decertified in 2023.
The related withdrawal liability totaled $0.7 million.

A $1.1 million net defined benefit liability was accrued as of December 31, 2024 for federally mandated post-employment
benefits in Mexico, including legal termination/retirement indemnity and seniority premiums. This liability is accrued at fair
value utilizing an actuarial calculation.

(11) Leases:

The Combined Company’s most significant lease commitments are for amusement and water parks and land. Leased
amusement and water parks include Frontier City, Six Flags Hurricane Harbor Oklahoma City, Six Flags Darien Lake, Six
Flags Hurricane Harbor Concord, Six Flags Hurricane Harbor Phoenix, Six Flags Hurricane Harbor Splashtown and Six
Flags Hurricane Harbor Rockford, all of which were acquired as part of the Mergers. These amusement and water park
leases are for various lengths expiring between 2029 and 2037. Every five years, annual base rent increases by the
lesser of three times CPI or 9% for all parks except for Six Flags Hurricane Harbor Concord which increases by the lesser
of three times CPl or 8% and Six Flags Hurricane Harbor Rockford which is leased from a separate lessor. These
amusement and water park leases include options to renew, which were not included in the calculation of the related
right-of-use assets or lease liabilities.

Leased land includes the land under California’s Great America, Schlitterbahn Waterpark Galveston, La Ronde, Six Flags
Hurricane Harbor Oaxtepec and Six Flags Mexico. The land at California’s Great America was sold on June 27, 2022.
Concurrently with the sale of the land, Cedar Fair entered into a lease contract that allows the Combined Company to
operate the park during a six-year term with an option to extend the term for an additional five years. The lease is subject
to early termination by the buyer with at least two years’ prior notice. Upon termination of the lease, the existing park
operations will close and the rides and attractions will be removed from the land. The annual base rent under the lease
liability initially was $12.2 million and will increase by 2.5% per year. Upon commencement of the lease, Cedar Fair
recognized a right-of-use asset and lease liability equal to the annual base rent for the initial six-year term and estimated
lease payments totaling $12.8 million to dismantle and remove rides and attractions upon termination of the lease. The
Combined Company subleases a portion of the California’s Great America parking lot to the Santa Clara Stadium
Authority during Levi's Stadium events. The lease payments were prepaid, and the corresponding income is being
recognized over the lease term, or through 2027. The annual lease income recognized is immaterial. The Schlitterbahn
Waterpark Galveston land lease has renewal options at the Combined Company’s discretion through 2049, which were
included in the calculation of the related right-of-use asset or lease liability. The La Ronde, Six Flags Hurricane Harbor
Oaxtepec and Six Flags Mexico leases were acquired as part of the Mergers, and primarily include land, but these leases
also include limited buildings and equipment. The La Ronde, Six Flags Hurricane Harbor Oaxtepec and Six Flags Mexico
leases expire in 2065, 2036 and 2034, respectively.

Other significant lease commitments include corporate office space in Charlotte, North Carolina and Arlington, Texas. The
corporate office space is generally leased through 2029 in Charlotte and 2035 in Arlington. The Combined Company has
also entered into various operating leases for office equipment, vehicles, storage and revenue-generating assets. The
discount rate used to determine the present value of the future lease payments is generally the Combined Company’s
incremental borrowing rate. All acquired leases were valued using the Combined Company’s incremental borrowing rate
as of the Closing Date. As part of the valuation of assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the Mergers, the leases at Six
Flags Hurricane Harbor Splashtown and Six Flags Hurricane Harbor Oklahoma City were determined to have unfavorable
lease terms based upon a market rent analysis. This resulted in a reduction of the right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
recorded for Six Flags Hurricane Harbor Splashtown and Six Flags Hurricane Harbor Oklahoma City of $19.2 million and
$6.2 million, respectively, within the preliminary purchase price allocation.
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Total lease cost and related supplemental information for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022 were as
follows:

Years Ended December 31,

(In thousands, except for lease terms and discount rates) 2024 2023 2022
Operating lease expense $ 30,161 $ 19422 $ 9,857
Variable lease expense 4,321 382 972
Short-term lease expense 13,354 9,580 8,769
Sublease income (1,496) (1,436) (715)
Finance lease expense

Amortization of ROU assets 650 — —
Interest on lease liabilities 85 — —

Total lease cost $ 47,075 $ 27,948 $ 18,883

Operating leases

Weighted-average remaining lease term 13.2years 5.8years 6.7 years

Weighted-average discount rate 6.3% 3.9% 3.7%

Operating cash flows for operating leases $ 31237 $ 16,046 $ 9,034

Leased assets obtained in exchange for new operating lease liabilities

(non-cash activity) $ 170,159 $ 4,306 $ 85,789

Finance leases

Weighted-average remaining lease term 2.5 years — —

Weighted-average discount rate 6.1% — —

Operating cash flows for finance leases $ 85 — —

Financing cash flows for finance leases $ 623 — —

Leased assets obtained in exchange for new finance lease liabilities (non-cash

activity) $ 3,152 — —

Future undiscounted cash flows under operating and finance leases and a reconciliation to the operating and finance
lease liabilities recognized as of December 31, 2024 are included below:

December 31, 2024

(In thousands) Operating Leases Finance Leases
Undiscounted cash flows 2025 $ 38,582 $1,257
2026 38,540 960
2027 38,084 336
2028 45,913 110
2029 22,685 35
Thereafter 207,006 —
Total $390,810 $2,698

Present value of cash flows

Current lease liability $ 25,817 $1,143
Lease Liability 229,072 1,371
Total $254,889 $2,514
Difference between undiscounted cash flows and discounted cash flows $135,921 $ 184
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The following table includes supplemental balance sheet information related to operating and finance leases for the
periods presented.

December 31, December 31,

(In thousands) Balance Sheet Location 2024 2023
Operating leases
Right-of-use asset Right-of-use asset $227,284 $81,173
Current lease liability Other accrued liabilities $ 25,817 $13,294
Non-current lease liability Lease liability $229,072 $71,951
Finance leases
Right-of-use asset Property and equipment, net $ 2,481 $ —
Current lease liability Other accrued liabilities $ 1,143 $ —
Non-current lease liability Lease liability $ 1,371 $ —

(12) Fair Value Measurements:

The table below presents the balances of assets and liabilities measured at fair value as of December 31, 2024 and
December 31, 2023 on a recurring basis, as well as the fair values of other financial instruments, including their locations
within the consolidated balance sheets:

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Fair Value
_ Hierarchy Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

(In thousands) Balance Sheet Location Level Value Value Value Value
Assets (liabilities)

measured on a recurring

basis:
Short-term investments Other current assets Level 1 $ 290 $ 290 $ 319 $ 319
Net pension plan asset Other assets  See Note 10
Other financial assets

(liabilities):
Term debt Long-term debt (1)  Level 2 $(995,000) $(999,353) — —
2025 notes at 5.500% Long-term debt (1)  Level 2 — — $(1,000,000) $(996,250)
2027 notes at 5.375% Long-term debt (1)  Level 1 $(500,000) $(493,700) $ (500,000) $(490,000)
2028 notes at 6.500% Long-term debt (1)  Level 1 $(300,000) $(301,161) $ (300,000) $(298,125)
2029 notes at 5.250% Long-term debt (1)  Level 1 $(500,000) $(480,755) $ (500,000) $(472,500)
2025 notes at 7.000% Long-term debt (1)  Level 2 $(200,000) $(199,624) — —
2027 notes at 5.500% Long-term debt (1)  Level 2 $(500,000) $(496,845) — —
2031 notes at 7.250% Long-term debt (1)  Level 2 $(800,000) $(817,288) — —
2032 notes at 6.625% Long-term debt (1)  Level 2 $(850,000) $(861,433) — —

(1) Carrying values of long-term debt balances are before reductions for (1) current maturities of long-term debt of
$210.0 million as of December 31, 2024; (2) debt issuance costs and original issue discount of $49.6 million and
$24.5 million as of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively; and (3) acquisition fair value layers of
$22.6 million as of December 31, 2024.

During the third quarter of 2024, management tested the Schlitterbahn reporting unit’s fair value due to a decline in
estimated future cash flows as a result of shifting investment priorities at those locations following the Mergers.
Management concluded the estimated fair value of the Schlitterbahn reporting unit no longer exceeded its carrying value.
Therefore, a $42.5 million impairment of the goodwill at the Schlitterbahn reporting unit was recorded during the third
quarter of 2024. The impairment charge was equal to the amount by which the carrying amount exceeded the fair value
and was recorded in “Loss on impairment of goodwill” within the consolidated statements of operations and
comprehensive (loss) income.

The fair value of reporting units is established using a combination of an income (discounted cash flow) approach and
market approach and includes numerous assumptions based on Level 3 inputs. The primary assumptions used to
determine the fair value of reporting units includes growth rates in revenues and costs, estimates of future expected
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changes in operating margins and cash expenditures, terminal value growth rates, future estimates of capital
expenditures, changes in future capital requirements, and a weighted-average cost of capital that reflected current market
conditions.

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, revolving credit loans, accounts payable, and
accrued liabilities approximates fair value because of the short maturity of these instruments. There were no assets or
liabilities measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis as of December 31, 2024 or December 31, 2023. The net plan
asset for the Former Six Flags pension plan is measured at fair value annually.

(13) Segments:

The Combined Company generates revenues from sales of (1) admission to amusement parks and water parks, (2) food,
merchandise and games both inside and outside the parks, and (3) accommodations, extra-charge products, and other
revenue sources. The Combined Company’s principal costs and expenses, which include salaries and wages, operating
supplies, maintenance, insurance, advertising and lease payments, are relatively fixed for a typical operating season and
do not vary significantly with attendance.

Each of the parks is overseen by a general manager or park president and operates autonomously. Management reviews
operating results, evaluates performance and makes operating decisions, including allocating resources, on a
park-by-park basis. Discrete financial information and operating results are prepared at the individual park level for use by
the CEO, who is the Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”). All of the parks provide similar products and services
through a similar process to the same class of customer utilizing a consistent method. In addition, the parks share
common economic characteristics, in that they show similar long-term growth trends in key industry metrics such as
attendance, in-park per capita spending, net revenue, operating margin and operating profit. Based on these factors, the
Combined Company has combined its operating segments, which consist of each of the parks’ locations, and operates
within a single reportable segment of amusement and water parks with accompanying resort facilities.

Adjusted EBITDA is the measure of segment profit or loss used by the CODM to assess park-level operating profitability
and to determine resource allocation, including the allocation of capital expenditures. His analysis includes comparisons to
prior period results and annual budgeted and forecasted results. Adjusted EBITDA represents earnings before interest,
taxes, depreciation, amortization, other non-cash items, and adjustments as defined in the Combined Company’s 2024
Credit Agreement, as amended, less net income attributable to non-controlling interests. The table below provides a
summary of significant expense categories regularly provided to the CODM reconciled to Adjusted EBITDA, as well as a
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reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to income before taxes, for the periods presented. The CODM does not review
segment assets at a different asset level or category than those disclosed within the consolidated balance sheets.

Years Ended December 31,

(In thousands) 2024 2023 2022
Net revenues $2,708,926 $1,798,668 $1,817,383
Significant expense categories
Cost of food, merchandise and games revenues 231,894 159,830 164,246
Other revenue driven costs () 76,998 52,897 51,592
Labor @ 878,222 645,476 654,123
Other segment expenses () 646,521 412,793 395,469
Adjusted EBITDA 875,291 527,672 551,953
Add: Net income attributable to non-controlling interests 24,499 — —
Subtract:
Depreciation and amortization 318,113 157,995 153,274
Loss on retirement of fixed assets, net 18,064 18,067 10,275
Loss on impairment of goodwiill 42,462 — —
Gain on sale of land — — (155,250)
Interest expense, net 234,770 138,952 148,319
Net effect of swaps — — (25,641)
Loss on early debt extinguishment 7,974 — 1,810
Non-cash foreign currency (gain) loss 30,557 (5,594) 23,856
Non-cash equity compensation expense 63,809 22,611 20,589
Costs related to the Mergers @ 118,336 22,287 —
Self-insurance adjustment © 14,865 — —
Other ©® 16,662 752 3,064
Income before taxes $ 34178 $ 172,602 $ 371,657

(1) Consists of credit card fees, royalties and other revenue processing costs driven by sales volume.
(2) Consists of wages, benefits and employer taxes on an Adjusted EBITDA basis.

(38) Consists of all other expenses on an Adjusted EBITDA basis, including the cost of operating and maintenance
supplies, advertising, utilities, insurance and lease payments, as well as net income attributable to non-controlling
interests.

(4) Consists of third-party legal and consulting transaction costs, as well as integration costs related to the Mergers.
Integration costs include third-party consulting costs, contract termination costs, retention bonuses, severance related
to the Mergers, integration team salaries and benefits, maintenance costs to update Former Six Flags parks to Cedar
Fair standards, onboarding of new advertising firms, and travel costs. See Note 2 for additional information related to
the Mergers. These costs are added back to net (loss) income to calculate Adjusted EBITDA as defined in the
Combined Company’s credit agreement.

(5) During the third quarter of 2024, an actuarial analysis of Former Cedar Fair's self-insurance reserves resulted in a
change in estimate that increased the IBNR reserves related to these self-insurance reserves by $14.9 million. The
increase was driven by an observed pattern of increasing litigation and settlement costs. See Note 1 for additional
information.

(6) Consists of certain costs as defined in the Combined Company’s credit agreement. These costs are added back to
net (loss) income to calculate Adjusted EBITDA and include enacted cost savings initiatives related to overhead and
administrative costs incurred by Former Six Flags, specifically for insurance premiums, legal costs and information
technology costs; repairs for unusual weather events; certain legal and consulting expenses; Mexican VAT taxes on
intercompany activity; severance and related benefits; payments related to the Partnership Parks; cost of goods sold
recorded to align inventory standards following the Mergers; and contract termination costs. This balance also
includes unrealized gains and losses on pension assets and short-term investments.

All of the Combined Company’s parks are located in the United States with the exception of two parks in Mexico and two
parks in Canada. The Combined Company also recognizes revenue and expense related to the development of Six
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Flags-branded parks outside of North America. These management fees are disclosed as “Domestic” within the below
tables. Prior to the Mergers, Former Cedar Fair did not disclose geographic segment related information as it had only
one foreign park, and management believed disclosure of a single park’s results provided sensitive information to its
competitors. As a result, the below information only includes current year results.

As of December 31, 2024, long-lived assets (which consists of property and equipment, goodwill, intangible assets and
right-of-use assets) by domestic and foreign properties was as follows:

December 31,

(In thousands) 2024

Domestic $7,827,604
Foreign 890,992
Total $8,718,596

For the year ended December 31, 2024, net revenues and income before taxes by domestic and foreign properties were
as follows:

For the year

ended
December 31,

(In thousands) 2024
Net revenues
Domestic $2,450,354
Foreign 258,572
Total $2,708,926
Income before taxes
Domestic $ 25,541
Foreign 8,637
Total $ 34,178
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE.

None.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Combined Company maintains a system of controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to
be disclosed in reports under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, is recorded, processed, summarized and
reported within the time periods specified by the Commission and that such information is accumulated and
communicated to management, including the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to
allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. As of December 31, 2024, management, with the participation of the
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, has evaluated the effectiveness of the Combined Company’s
disclosure controls and procedures. Based upon that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
concluded that the Combined Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of December 31, 2024.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as defined
in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act. The Combined Company’s internal control over financial
reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
Management, with the participation of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, assessed the effectiveness
of the Combined Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2024. In making this assessment,
it used the criteria described in “Internal Control—Integrated Framework” (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations (COSO) of the Treadway Commission. On July 1, 2024, the Combined Company completed the Six Flags
Merger. Management excluded Former Six Flags from its assessment of the effectiveness of the Combined Company’s
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2024. This exclusion is in accordance with SEC guidance that
an assessment of a recently acquired business’s internal control over financial reporting may be omitted from
management’s report on internal control over financial reporting in the year of acquisition. Former Six Flags represented,
in aggregate, approximately 75% of the Combined Company’s consolidated assets as of December 31, 2024 and
approximately 33% of the Combined Company’s consolidated net revenues for the year ended December 31, 2024. As a
result of its assessment, management concluded that, as of December 31, 2024, the Combined Company’s internal
control over financial reporting was effective. Deloitte & Touche LLP, the independent registered public accounting firm
that audited the financial statements included in this Form 10-K, has issued an attestation report on the Combined
Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

The Mergers resulted in changes to the Combined Company’s internal control over financial reporting beginning in July
2024. The Combined Company is currently in the process of integrating, evaluating, and where necessary, implementing
changes in controls and procedures as it relates to the Former Six Flags. Except for the impact of the Mergers, there were
no changes in the Combined Company’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the fourth quarter of
2024 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Combined Company’s internal control
over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION.

During the three months ended December 31, 2024, no director or officer adopted or terminated a “Rule 10b5-1 trading
arrangement” or “non-Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement,” as each term is defined in Item 408 of Regulation S-K.

ITEM 9C. DISCLOSURE REGARDING FOREIGN JURISDICTIONS THAT PREVENT INSPECTIONS.
Not applicable.
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PART Il
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE.
A. Identification of Directors:

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the material in the Combined Company’s definitive
proxy statement pursuant to Regulation 14A and/or an amendment to this Form 10-K under cover of Form 10-K/A to be
filed within 120 days of the end of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 under the captions “Board of Directors”,
“Board Committees”, and, if required, “Delinquent Section 16(a) Reports”.

B. Identification of Executive Officers:

Information regarding executive officers of the Combined Company is included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K under
the caption “Supplemental ltem. Information about Executive Officers” in Item 1 of Part | and is incorporated herein by
reference.

C. Corporate Governance:

In accordance with Section 406 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and Item 406 of Regulation S-K, the Combined
Company has adopted a Code of Conduct and Ethics (the “Code”), which applies to all directors, officers and employees,
including the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Chief Accounting Officer. A copy of the Code is available
free of charge on the Investor Relations website (investors.sixflags.com). The information required by Item 408(b) of
Regulation S-K is incorporated by reference to the material in the Combined Company’s definitive proxy statement
pursuant to Regulation 14A and/or an amendment to this Form 10-K under cover of Form 10-K/A to be filed within
120 days of the end of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 under the caption “Securities Trading Policy”.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the material in the Combined Company’s definitive
proxy statement pursuant to Regulation 14A and/or an amendment to this Form 10-K under cover of Form 10-K/A to be
filed within 120 days of the end of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 under the captions “Executive
Compensation”, “Director Compensation”, “Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation”, and “People,
Culture & Compensation Committee Report”.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND
RELATED SHAREHOLDER MATTERS.

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the material in the Combined Company’s definitive
proxy statement pursuant to Regulation 14A or an amendment to this Form 10-K under cover of Form 10-K/A to be filed
within 120 days of the end of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 under the caption “Security Ownership of Certain
Beneficial Owners and Management”.
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EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

The following table sets forth information concerning shares of common stock authorized or available for issuance under
equity compensation plans (see Note 9) as of December 31, 2024

Number of shares
remaining available for

Number of shares to be  Weighted-average future issuance under
issued upon exercise of  exercise price of equity compensation plans
outstanding options, outstanding options, (excluding units
warrants and rights warrants and rights reflected in column (a))
Plan Category (a)m (b) (c)
Equity compensation plans approved by
shareholders 4,059,527 $98.67 6,495,991
Equity compensation plans not approved by
shareholders — — —
Total 4,059,527 $98.67 6,495,991

(1) The shares in column (a) include performance stock unit awards at the maximum number of shares issuable.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE.

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the material in the Combined Company’s definitive
proxy statement pursuant to Regulation 14A and/or an amendment to this Form 10-K under cover of Form 10-K/A to be
filed within 120 days of the end of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 under the captions “Certain Relationships and
Related Transactions”, “Board Independence”, and “Board Committees”.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES.

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the material in the Combined Company’s definitive
proxy statement pursuant to Regulation 14A and/or an amendment to this Form 10-K under cover of Form 10-K/A to be

filed within 120 days of the end of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 under the caption “Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm Services and Fees”.

PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES.
A. 1. Financial Statements

The following consolidated financial statements of the Registrant, the notes thereto and the related Report of Independent
Registered Public Accounting Firm are filed under Item 8 of this report:

Page

(i) Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 44
(i) Consolidated Balance Sheets - December 31, 2024 and 2023 48
(iii) Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive (Loss) Income - Years ended December 31,

2024, 2023, and 2022 49
(iv) Consolidated Statements of Equity - Years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022 50
(v) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows - Years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022 51
(vi) Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022 53
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A. 2. Financial Statement Schedules

All schedules are omitted as the information is not required or is otherwise furnished.

A. 3. Exhibits

The exhibits listed below are incorporated herein by reference to prior SEC filings by the Registrant or are included as
exhibits in this Form 10-K.

Exhibit
Number

2.1

3.1

3.2

4.1 (i)

4.1 (ii)

4.1 (jii)

4.1 (iv)

4.1 (v)

4.2 (i)

4.2 (i)

Description

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of November 2, 2023, by and among Cedar Fair, L.P., Six Flags
Entertainment Corporation, CopperSteel HoldCo, Inc. and CopperSteel Merger Sub, LLC. Incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Registrant’s Form 8-K (File No. 001-09444) filed November 2, 2023.

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Six Flags Entertainment Corporation. Incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Combined Company’s Form 8-K (File No. 001-42157) initially filed on
July 1, 2024.

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Six Flags Entertainment Corporation. Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 3.2 to the Combined Company’s Form 8-K (File No. 001-42157) initially filed on July 1, 2024.

Indenture, dated as of April 13, 2017, by and among Cedar Fair, L.P., Canada’s Wonderland Company,
Magnum Management Corporation and Millennium Operations LLC, as issuers, the guarantors named therein
and The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation, as trustee (including Form of 5.375% Senior Note due 2027).
Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Cedar Fair's Form 8-K (File No. 001-09444) filed on April 13,
2017.

Registration Rights Agreement, dated April 13, 2017, by and among Cedar Fair, L.P., Canada’s Wonderland
Company, Magnum Management Corporation and Millennium Operations LLC, as issuers, the guarantors
named therein and J.P. Morgan Securities LLC, on behalf of itself and as representative of the initial
purchasers named therein. Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Cedar Fair's Form 8-K (File
No. 001-09444) filed on April 13, 2017.

First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of July 29, 2020, by and among Cedar Fair, L.P., Canada’s
Wonderland Company, Magnum Management Corporation, Millennium Operations LLC, as issuers, the
guarantors named therein and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee, to the Indenture, dated as of April 13,
2017, relating to the 2027 Notes. Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 (iii) to Cedar Fair's Form 10-K
(File No. 001-09444) filed on February 16, 2024.

Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of November 9, 2023, by and among Cedar Fair, L.P., Canada’s
Wonderland Company, Magnum Management Corporation, Millennium Operations LLC, as issuers, the
guarantors named therein and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee, to the Indenture, dated as of April 13,
2017, relating to the 2027 Notes (furnished herewith). Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Cedar
Fair's Form 8-K (File No. 001-09444) filed on November 13, 2023.

Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of July 1, 2024, by and among Six Flags Entertainment Corporation,
Canada’s Wonderland Company, Magnum Management Corporation, Millennium Operations LLC, as issuers,
the guarantors named therein and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee, to the Indenture, dated as of
April 13, 2017, relating to the Cedar Fair 2027 Notes. Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.6 to the
Combined Company’s Form 8-K (File No. 001-42157) initially filed on July 1, 2024.

Indenture, dated as of June 27, 2019, by and among Cedar Fair, L.P., Canada’s Wonderland Company,
Magnum Management Corporation and Millennium Operations LLC, as issuers, the guarantors named therein
and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee (including Form of 5.250% Senior Note due 2029). Incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Cedar Fair's Form 8-K (File No. 001-09444) filed on June 27, 2019.

Registration Rights Agreement, dated June 27, 2019, by and among Cedar Fair, L.P., Canada’s Wonderland
Company, Magnum Management Corporation and Millennium Operations LLC, as issuers, the guarantors
named therein and J.P. Morgan Securities LLC, on behalf of itself and as representative of the initial
purchasers named therein. Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to Cedar Fair's Form 8-K (File
No. 001-09444) filed on June 27, 2019.
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Exhibit
Number

4.2 (iii)

4.2 (iv)

4.2 (v)

4.3 (i)

4.3 (i)

4.3 (iii)

4.3 (iv)

4.4 (i)

4.4 (ji)

4.5 (i)

4.5 (i)

Description

First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of July 29, 2020, by and among Cedar Fair, L.P., Canada’s
Wonderland Company, Magnum Management Corporation, Millennium Operations LLC, as issuers, the
guarantors named therein and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee, to the Indenture, dated as of
June 27, 2019, relating to the 2029 Notes. Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.2 (iii) to Cedar Fair’s
Form 10-K (File No. 001-09444) filed on February 16, 2024.

Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of November 9, 2023, by and among Cedar Fair, L.P., Canada’s
Wonderland Company, Magnum Management Corporation, Millennium Operations LLC, as issuers, the
guarantors named therein and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee, to the Indenture, dated as of
June 27, 2019, relating to the 2029 Notes (furnished herewith). Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1
to Cedar Fair's Form 8-K (File No. 001-09444) filed on November 13, 2023.

Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of July 1, 2024, by and among Six Flags Entertainment Corporation,
Canada’s Wonderland Company, Magnum Management Corporation, Millennium Operations LLC, as issuers,
the guarantors named therein and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee, to the Indenture, dated as of
June 27, 2019, relating to the Cedar Fair 2029 Notes. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.7 to the
Combined Company’s Form 8-K (File No. 001-42157) initially filed on July 1, 2024.

Indenture, dated as of October 7, 2020, by and among Cedar Fair, L.P., Canada’s Wonderland Company,
Magnum Management Corporation and Millennium Operations LLC, as issuers, the guarantors named therein
and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee (including Form of 6.500% Senior Note due 2028). Incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Cedar Fair's Form 8-K (File No. 001-09444) filed on October 7, 2020.

Registration Rights Agreement, dated October 7, 2020, by and among Cedar Fair, L.P., Canada’s Wonderland
Company, Magnum Management Corporation and Millennium Operations LLC, as issuers, the guarantors
named therein and J.P. Morgan Securities LLC, on behalf of itself and as representative of the initial
purchasers named therein. Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to Cedar Fair's Form 8-K (File
No. 001-09444) filed on October 7, 2020.

First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of November 9, 2023, by and among Cedar Fair, L.P., Canada’s
Wonderland Company, Magnum Management Corporation, Millennium Operations LLC, as issuers, the
guarantors named therein and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee, to the Indenture, dated as of
October 7, 2020, relating to the 2028 Notes (furnished herewith). Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 4.1 to Cedar Fair's Form 8-K (File No. 001-09444) filed on November 13, 2023.

Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of July 1, 2024, by and among Six Flags Entertainment
Corporation, Canada’s Wonderland Company, Magnum Management Corporation, Millennium Operations
LLC, as issuers, the guarantors named therein and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee, to the Indenture,
dated as of October 7, 2020, relating to the Cedar Fair 2028 Notes. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.8 to
the Combined Company’s Form 8-K (File No. 001-42157) initially filed on July 1, 2024.

Indenture, dated as of April 13, 2017, by and among Six Flags Entertainment Corporation, each of the
guarantors party thereto and U.S. Bank National Association as trustee (including Form of 5.500% Senior
Notes due 2027). Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit A to Exhibit 4.3 to Former Six Flags’s Form 8-K
(File No. 001-13703) filed on April 13, 2017.

Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of July 1, 2024, by and among Six Flags Entertainment Corporation,
the guarantors party thereto and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee, to the Indenture, dated as of
April 13, 2017. Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Combined Company’s Form 8-K (File
No. 001-42157) initially filed on July 1, 2024.

Indenture, dated as of April 22, 2020, by and among Six Flags Theme Parks Inc., the Guarantors party thereto
and U.S. Bank National Association as trustee and as collateral agent (including Form of 7.000% Senior
Secured Notes due 2025). Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Former Six Flags’s Form 8-K (File
No. 001-13703) filed on April 23, 2020.

First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of July 1, 2024, by and among Six Flags Entertainment Corporation,
Six Flags Theme Parks Inc., the guarantors party thereto and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee and
collateral agent, to the Indenture, dated as of April 22, 2020. Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to
the Combined Company’s Form 8-K (File No. 001-42157) initially filed on July 1, 2024.
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Exhibit
Number

4.6 (i)

4.6 (ii)

4.7 (i)

4.7 (i)

4.8
10.1 (i)

10.1 (ii)

10.1 (iii)

10.1 (iv)

10.1 (v)

10.2 (i)

10.2 (ii)

10.2 (iii)

10.3

Description

Indenture, dated as of May 3, 2023, among Six Flags Entertainment Corporation, each of the guarantors party
thereto and U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, as trustee (including Form of 7.250% Senior
Note due 2031). Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Former Six Flags’s Form 8-K (File
No. 001-13703) filed on May 4, 2023.

First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of July 1, 2024, by and among Six Flags Entertainment Corporation,
the guarantors party thereto and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee, to the Indenture, dated as of
May 3, 2023. Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to the Combined Company’s Form 8-K (File
No. 001-42157) initially filed on July 1, 2024.

Indenture, dated as of May 2, 2024, among Six Flags Entertainment Corporation, Six Flags Theme Parks Inc.,
each of the guarantors party thereto and U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, as trustee and
collateral agent (including Form of 6.625% Senior Secured Note due 2032). Incorporated herein by reference
to Former Six Flags’s Form 8-K (File No. 0001-13703) filed on May 2, 2024.

First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of July 1, 2024, by and among Six Flags Entertainment Corporation,
Six Flags Theme Parks Inc., the guarantors party thereto and U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association,
as trustee and notes collateral agent, to the Indenture, dated as of May 2, 2024. Incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 4.5 to the Combined Company’s Form 8-K (File No. 001-42157) initially filed on July 1,
2024.

Description of Registrant’s Securities.

Credit Agreement, dated as of May 1, 2024, by and among Cedar Fair, L.P., Canada’s Wonderland Company
and Millennium Operations LLC, as borrowers, the other subsidiary borrowers party thereto, the guarantors
party thereto, the lenders party thereto and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as administrative agent
and collateral agent. Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Cedar Fair's Form 8-K (File
No. 001-09444) filed on May 2, 2024.

First Amendment and Incremental Assumption Agreement, dated as of July 1, 2024, by and among Six Flags
Entertainment Corporation, Millennium Operations LLC, Canada’s Wonderland Company and Six Flags
Theme Parks Inc., as borrowers, the other subsidiary borrowers party thereto, the guarantors party thereto, the
lenders party thereto and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as administrative agent and collateral agent
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Combined Company’s Form 8-K (File No. 001-42157) initially
filed on July 1, 2024.

New Holdco Joinder Agreement, dated as of July 1, 2024, between Six Flags Entertainment Corporation and
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as administrative agent and collateral agent. Incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Combined Company’s Form 8-K (File No. 001-42157) initially filed on July 1,
2024.

Additional Subsidiary Borrower Agreement, dated as of July 1, 2024, by and among Six Flags Entertainment
Corporation, Six Flags Theme Parks Inc. and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as administrative agent
and collateral agent. Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Combined Company’s Form 8-K
(File No. 001-42157) initially filed on July 1, 2024.

Subsidiary Guarantor Joinder Agreement, dated as of July 1, 2024, by and among the guarantors party thereto
and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as administrative agent and collateral agent. Incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Combined Company’s Form 8-K (File No. 001-42157) initially filed on July 1,
2024.

Cedar Fair L.P., 2016 Omnibus Incentive Plan. Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Cedar Fair's
Form 8-K (File No. 001-09444) filed on June 14, 2016. (+)

Six Flags Entertainment Corporation 2024 Omnibus Incentive Plan. Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to the Combined Company’s Form 8-K (File No. 001-42157) initially filed on July 1, 2024. (+)

Six Flags Entertainment Corporation Long-Term Incentive Plan. Incorporated herein by reference to
Appendix A to Former Six Flags’s Definitive Proxy Statement (File No. 001-13703) filed on March 21, 2017. (+)

Form of Indemnification Agreement. Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Combined
Company’s Form 8-K (File No. 001-42157) initially filed on July 1, 2024. (+)
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Exhibit
Number

10.4 (i)

10.4 (i)

10.4 (iii)

10.4 (iv)

10.4 (v)

10.4 (vi)

10.4 (vii)

10.4 (viii)

10.4 (ix)

10.4 (x)

10.4 (xi)

10.5 (i)

10.5 (ii)

10.5 (iii)

Description

Employment agreement, dated July 1, 2024, by and among Six Flags Entertainment Corporation and Selim A.
Bassoul. Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Combined Company’s Form 10-Q (File
No. 001-42157) filed on November 6, 2024. (+)

Employment agreement, dated July 1, 2024, by and among Six Flags Entertainment Corporation and Gary
Mick. Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Combined Company’s Form 10-Q (File
No. 001-42157) filed on November 6, 2024. (+)

Employment agreement, dated October 8, 2024, by and among Six Flags Entertainment Corporation and
Richard A. Zimmerman. Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the Combined Company’s
Form 10-Q (File No. 001-42157) filed on November 6, 2024. (+)

Employment agreement, dated October 8, 2024, by and among Six Flags Entertainment Corporation and Brian
Witherow. Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to the Combined Company’s Form 10-Q (File
No. 001-42157) filed on November 6, 2024. (+)

Employment agreement, dated October 8, 2024, by and among Six Flags Entertainment Corporation and Tim
Fisher. Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to the Combined Company’s Form 10-Q (File
No. 001-42157) filed on November 6, 2024. (+)

Employment agreement, dated October 8, 2024, by and among Six Flags Entertainment Corporation and Brian
Nurse. Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to the Combined Company’s Form 10-Q (File
No. 001-42157) filed on November 6, 2024. (+)

Employment agreement, dated October 8, 2024, by and among Six Flags Entertainment Corporation and
Monica Sauls. Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to the Combined Company’s Form 10-Q (File
No. 001-42157) filed on November 6, 2024. (+)

Employment agreement, dated October 8, 2024, by and among Six Flags Entertainment Corporation and
Christian Dieckmann. Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to the Combined Company’s
Form 10-Q (File No. 001-42157) filed on November 6, 2024. (+)

Employment agreement, dated October 8, 2024, by and among Six Flags Entertainment Corporation and
David Hoffman. Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to the Combined Company’s Form 10-Q
(File No. 001-42157) filed on November 6, 2024. (+)

Employment agreement, dated October 8, 2024, by and among Six Flags Entertainment Corporation and Ty
Tastepe. Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to the Combined Company’s Form 10-Q (File
No. 001-42157) filed on November 6, 2024. (+)

Employment agreement, dated October 8, 2024, by and among Six Flags Entertainment Corporation and
Robert White. Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to the Combined Company’s Form 10-Q (File
No. 001-42157) filed on November 6, 2024. (+)

Overall Agreement, dated February 15, 1997 by and among Six Flags Fund, Ltd. (L.P.), the Salkin Family
Trust, SFG, Inc., SFG-Il, LLC, SFG-Il, LLC, Six Flags Over Georgia, Ltd., SFOGII, Inc., SFOG Acquisition A,
Inc., SFOG Acquisition B, LLC, Six Flags Over Georgia, Inc., Six Flags Theme Parks, Inc. and Six Flags
Entertainment Corporation. Incorporated herein by reference to Former Six Flags’s Form 10-K filed on
March 23, 1998. (P)

Subordinated Indemnity Agreement, dated February 9, 1998 among Registrant, the subsidiaries of Registrant
named therein, Time Warner, Inc., the subsidiaries of Time Warner Inc. named therein, Six Flags
Entertainment Corporation and the subsidiaries of Six Flags Entertainment Corporation named therein.
Incorporated herein by reference from Exhibit 2(b) to Former Six Flags’s Registration Statement on Form S-3
(No. 333-45859) declared effective on March 26, 1998. (P)

Amendment No. 1 Subordinated Indemnity Agreement, dated November 5, 1999, among Registrant, the
subsidiaries of Registrant named therein, Time Warner Inc., the subsidiaries of Time Warner Inc. named
therein, Six Flags Entertainment Corporation, and the subsidiaries of Six Flags Entertainment Corporation
named therein. Incorporated herein by reference from Exhibit 10 (bb) to Former Six Flags’s Form 10-K (File
No. 001-13703) filed on March 12, 2004.
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Exhibit
Number

10.5 (iv)

10.5 (v)

10.5 (vi)

10.5 (vii)

10.5 (viii)

10.5 (ix)

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9 (i)

10.9 (ii)

10.9 (iii)

10.9 (iv)

10.9 (v)

Description

Amendment No. 2 Subordinated Indemnity Agreement, dated June 12, 2004, among Registrant, the
subsidiaries of Registrant named therein, Time Warner Inc., the subsidiaries of Time Warner Inc. named
therein, Six Flags Entertainment Corporation, and the subsidiaries of Six Flags Entertainment Corporation
named therein. Incorporated herein by reference from Exhibit 10 (cc) to Former Six Flags’s Form 10-K (File
No. 001-13703) filed on March 12, 2004.

Amendment No. 3 to Subordinated Indemnity Agreement, dated as of April 13, 2004, among Six Flags
Operations Inc., Six Flags Theme Parks Inc., SFOG Il, Inc., SFT Holdings, Inc., Time Warner Inc., Time
Warner Entertainment Company, L.P., TW-SPV Co., Six Flags, Inc. and GP Holdings Inc. Incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Former Six Flags’s Form 10-Q (File No. 001-13703) filed on August 14, 2009.

Amendment No. 4 to Subordinated Indemnity Agreement, dated as of December 8, 2006, among Six Flags
Operations Inc., Six Flags Theme Parks Inc., SFOG I, Inc., SFT Holdings, Inc., Time Warner Inc., Time
Warner Entertainment Company, L.P., TW-SPV Co., Six Flags, Inc. and GP Holdings Inc. Incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Former Six Flags’s Form 10-Q (File No. 001-13703) filed on August 14, 2009.

Amendment No. 5 to Subordinated Indemnity Agreement, dated as of April 2, 2007, among Six Flags
Operations Inc., Six Flags Theme Parks Inc., SFOG I, Inc., SFT Holdings, Inc., Time Warner Inc., Warner
Bros. Entertainment Inc., TW-SPV Co., Six Flags, Inc. and GP Holdings Inc. Incorporated herein by reference
to Exhibit 10.6 to Former Six Flags’s Form 10-Q (File No. 001-13703) filed on August 14, 2009.

Amendment No. 6 to Subordinated Indemnity Agreement, dated as of May 15, 2009, among Six Flags
Operations Inc., Six Flags Theme Parks Inc., SFOG II, Inc., SFT Holdings, Inc., Historic TW Inc., Time Warner
Entertainment Company, L.P., TW-SPV Co., Six Flags, Inc. and GP Holdings Inc. Incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.7 to Former Six Flags’s Form 10-Q (File No. 001-13703) filed on August 14, 2009.

Amendment No. 7 to Subordinated Indemnity Agreement, dated as of April 30, 2010, among Six Flags
Operations Inc., Six Flags Theme Parks Inc., SFOG I, Inc., SFT Holdings, Inc., Historic TW Inc., Warner Bros.
Entertainment Inc., TW-SPV Co., Six Flags Entertainment Corporation, the other subsidiaries of Six Flags
Entertainment Corporation and GP Holdings Inc. Incorporated herein by reference from Exhibit 10.7 to Former
Six Flags’s Form 10-Q (File No. 001-13703) filed on May 17, 2010.

Cedar Fair, L.P. Executive and Management Severance Plan dated November 10, 2022. Incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 10.31 to Cedar Fair's Form 10-K (File No. 001-09444) filed on February 17, 2023. (+)

Cedar Fair, L.P. Executive Officer Acknowledgment and Agreement to Clawback Policy As Adopted
October 23, 2023. Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.25 to Cedar Fair's Form 10-K (File
No. 001-09444) filed on February 16, 2024. (+)

Contract of Sale, dated June 27, 2022, by and between California’s Great America, LLC and Prologis, L.P.
Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Cedar Fair's Form 8-K (File No. 001-09444) filed on
June 27, 2022.

2016 Omnibus Incentive Plan Form of Performance Unit Award Agreement (Spring 2021 Version).
Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Cedar Fair's Form 8-K (File No. 001-09444) filed on
March 30, 2021. (+)

2016 Omnibus Incentive Plan Form of Restricted Unit Award Declaration (Spring 2021 Version). Incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Cedar Fair's Form 8-K (File No. 001-09444) filed on March 30, 2021. (+)

2016 Omnibus Incentive Plan Form of Restricted Unit Award Declaration (2022 Employment Agreement
Version). Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Cedar Fair's Form 10-Q (File No. 001-09444) filed
on May 4, 2022. (+)

2016 Omnibus Incentive Plan Form of Restricted Unit Award Declaration (2022 Non-Employment Agreement
Version). Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Cedar Fair's Form 10-Q (File No. 001-09444) filed
on May 4, 2022. (+)

2016 Omnibus Incentive Plan Form of Performance Unit Award Agreement (2022 Employment Agreement
Version). Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Cedar Fair's Form 10-Q (File No. 001-09444) filed
on May 4, 2022. (+)
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Exhibit
Number

10.9 (vi)

10.9 (vii)

10.9 (viii)

10.9 (ix)

10.9 (x)

10.9 (xi)

10.9 (xii)

10.9 (xiii)

10.9 (xiv)

10.9 (xv)

10.9 (xvi)

Description

2016 Omnibus Incentive Plan Form of Performance Unit Award Agreement (2022 Non-Employment
Agreement Version). Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Cedar Fair's Form 10-Q (File
No. 001-09444) filed on May 4, 2022. (+)

2016 Omnibus Incentive Plan Form of Restricted Unit Award Declaration (2023 Employment Agreement
Version). Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Cedar Fair's Form 10-Q (File No. 001-09444) filed
on May 4, 2023. (+)

2016 Omnibus Incentive Plan Form of Restricted Unit Award Declaration (2023 Severance Plan Version).
Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Cedar Fair's Form 10-Q (File No. 001-09444) filed on
May 4, 2023. (+)

2016 Omnibus Incentive Plan Form of Performance Unit Award Agreement (2023 Employment Agreement
Version). Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Cedar Fair's Form 10-Q (File No. 001-09444) filed
on May 4, 2023. (+)

2016 Omnibus Incentive Plan Form of Performance Unit Award Declaration (2023 Severance Plan Version).
Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Cedar Fair's Form 10-Q (File No. 001-09444) filed on
May 4, 2023. (+)

2016 Omnibus Incentive Plan Form of Performance-Based Phantom Unit Award Agreement. Incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.26 to Cedar Fair's Form 10-K (File No. 001-09444) filed on February 16,
2024. (+)

2016 Omnibus Incentive Plan Form of Restricted Unit Award Declaration (2024 Employment Agreement
Version). Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Cedar Fair's Form 10-Q (File No. 001-09444) filed
on May 9, 2024. (+)

2016 Omnibus Incentive Plan Form of Restricted Unit Award Declaration (2024 Severance Plan Version).
Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Cedar Fairs Form 10-Q (File No. 001-09444) filed on
May 9, 2024. (+)

2016 Omnibus Incentive Plan Form of Performance Award Agreement (2024 Employment Agreement
Version). Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Cedar Fair's Form 10-Q (File No. 001-09444) filed
on May 9, 2024. (+)

2016 Omnibus Incentive Plan Form of Performance Award Declaration (2024 Severance Plan Version).
Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Cedar Fair's Form 10-Q (File No. 001-09444) filed on
May 9, 2024. (+)

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement Pursuant to the Six Flags Entertainment Corporation Long-Term
Incentive Plan. Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Former Six Flags’s Form 10-Q (File
No. 001-13703) filed on April 28, 2021. (+)

10.9 (xvii) Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement and Dividend Equivalent Rights Agreement pursuant to the Six

Flags Entertainment Corporation Long-Term Incentive Plan. Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.30
to Former Six Flags’s Form 10-K (File No. 001-13703) filed on February 27, 2013. (+)

10.9 (xviii)Form of Performance Stock Unit Agreement Pursuant to the Six Flags Entertainment Corporation Long-Term

10.9 (xix)

10.9 (xx)

19
21
22

Incentive Plan. Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Former Six Flags’s Form 10-Q (File
No. 001-13703) filed on May 12, 2022. (+)

Form of Performance Unit Award Agreement for Certain Executive Officers under the 2024 Omnibus Incentive
Plan. (+)

Form of Amended and Restated Performance Unit Award Agreement for Selim Bassoul and Gary Mick under
the 2024 Omnibus Incentive Plan. (+)

Insider Trading Policy.

Subsidiaries of the Combined Company.

Subsidiary Guarantors and Issuers of Guaranteed Securities. Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 22 to
the Combined Company’s Form 10-Q (File No. 001-42157) filed on November 6, 2024.
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Exhibit
Number

23
31.1
31.2
32

97
101

104

Description

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certifications of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Clawback Policy as effective October 2, 2023. (+)

The following materials from the Combined Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2024 formatted in Inline XBRL: (i) the Consolidated Statements of Operations and
Comprehensive (Loss) Income, (ii) the Consolidated Balance Sheets, (iii) the Consolidated Statements of
Cash Flows, (iv) the Consolidated Statements of Equity, and (v) related notes, tagged as blocks of text and
including detailed tags.

The cover page from the Combined Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2024, formatted in Inline XBRL (included as Exhibit 101).

(+) Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.

(P) Filed paper copy only.

ITEM 16. FORM 10-K SUMMARY.

None.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

SIX FLAGS ENTERTAINMENT CORPORATION

/S/ Richard A. Zimmerman

Richard A. Zimmerman
President and Chief Executive Officer

DATED: March 3, 2025 By:

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following
persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/S/__Richard A. Zimmerman Director, President and Chief Executive Officer
Richard A. Zimmerman (Principal Executive Officer) March 3, 2025
/S/ Brian C. Witherow
Brian C. Witherow Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer) March 3, 2025
/SI__David R. Hoffman Chief Accounting Officer March 3, 2025
David R. Hoffman (Principal Accounting Officer)
/S/  Selim Bassoul
Selim Bassoul Executive Chairman March 3, 2025
/S/  Daniel J. Hanrahan
Daniel J. Hanrahan Lead Independent Director March 3, 2025
/S/  Esi Eggleston Bracey
Esi Eggleston Bracey Director March 3, 2025
/S/ Louis Carr
Louis Carr Director March 3, 2025
/S/ Michelle M. Frymire
Michelle M. Frymire Director March 3, 2025
/S/  Chieh Huang
Chieh Huang Director March 3, 2025
/S/  Jennifer Mason
Jennifer Mason Director March 3, 2025
/S/  Enrique Ramirez Mena
Enrique Ramirez Mena Director March 3, 2025
/S/  D. Scott Olivet
D. Scaott Olivet Director March 3, 2025
/S/ Arik Ruchim
Arik Ruchim Director March 3, 2025

/S/ Marilyn Spiegel
Marilyn Spiegel Director March 3, 2025
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Directors of Six Flags Entertainment Corporation

The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) is currently comprised of 12 directors. The
directors are divided into three (3) classes: Class |, Class Il, and Class lll, and each class consists of
four (4) directors. As previously disclosed in our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on
March 10, 2025, pursuant to the Cooperation Agreement by and between the Company and Dendur
Capital LP, the Company has agreed to nominate Felipe Dutra and Steven Hoffman as Class |
directors for election to the Board at the 2025 annual meeting of stockholders of the Company (the
“2025 Annual Meeting”) and will nominate, recommend, support and solicit proxies for the election of
each of Mr. Dutra and Mr. Hoffman at the 2025 Annual Meeting in the same manner as for the
Company’s other nominees at the 2025 Annual Meeting. Separate from the agreements made in the
Cooperation Agreement, the Company will also nominate Sandra Cochran and Michael Colglazier for
election to its Board at the Company’s 2025 Annual Meeting as Class | directors. Effective immediately
prior to the 2025 Annual Meeting, each of Michelle Frymire (Class Il), Esi Eggleston Bracey (Class II),
D. Scott Olivet (Class Il), and Enrique Ramirez Mena (Class 1) will resign from the Board. Each of
Chieh Huang, Louis Carr and Jennifer Mason will be re-classified from Class | directors to Class I
directors, along with continuing Class Il director Marilyn Spiegel, to serve for a term expiring at the
2026 annual meeting of stockholders of the Company. No changes are anticipated with respect to the
Class Il directors.

Class I Directors serving until 2025:

Louis Carr is president of Media Sales for BET Media Group, a leading provider of quality
entertainment, music, news and public affairs television programming for the African-American
audience and a subsidiary of Paramount Global (NASDAQ: PARA). He has more than 37 years of
experience as an entertainment, media and advertising executive.

Chieh Huang is the president of the World Economic Forum’s Global Collaboration Village. He
has an extensive background in information technology, spatial computing, gaming and artificial
intelligence and an entrepreneurial mindset.

Jennifer Mason is global officer, treasurer and risk management at Marriott International, Inc.
(NASDAQ: MAR), a hospitality company with over 30 brands and nearly 9,100 properties in 142
countries and territories. She has more than 30 years of experience within the hospitality sector,
including experience in financial and risk management leadership positions.

Enrique Ramirez Mena is the president of Buff City Soap, a rapidly expanding retailer of
handmade, plant-based soaps, laundry, bath and body products with over 250 locations across the
country. He has years of experience as an executive in multi-unit retail and global restaurant
operations.

Class Il Directors serving until 2026:

Esi Eggleston Bracey is chief growth and marketing officer of Unilever USA. She has significant
strategic management and marketing experience in the retail and consumer goods industry.

Michelle M. Frymire is a travel and hospitality executive with more than 30 years of experience,
including extensive financial experience across a number of public and private companies.

D. Scott Olivet is chief executive officer of Renegade Brands, an investment company that
primarily invests in apparel and other consumer companies; chief executive officer of DSO Advisors,
which provides strategic, brand and organizational effectiveness consulting and executive coaching



services; an operating partner at Altamont Capital Partners, a private equity firm; and the executive
chairman of RED Digital Cinema, an American manufacturer of digital cinematography tools. He has
more than 35 years of experience in the consumer goods and retail industries.

Marilyn Spiegel is a hospitality executive with more than 30 years of leadership and operational
experience, including revenue management and human resources experience.

Class lll Directors serving until 2027:

Selim Bassoul is the Executive Chairman of Six Flags Entertainment Corporation and the former
president and chief executive officer of legacy Six Flags. He has extensive operational expertise in
multiple geographies with a strong focus on customer experience, culinary and food service, and global
expansion.

Daniel J. Hanrahan is a consumer-facing brands, retail, travel and hospitality executive with more
than 40 years of experience. He is the Lead Independent Director of the Six Flags Entertainment
Corporation Board of Directors.

Arik Ruchim is a partner at H Partners Management, an investment management firm and one of
Six Flags Entertainment Corporation’s largest stockholders. He has a strong business acumen and
extensive investment experience, as well as a vigorous record of stockholder value creation.

Richard A. Zimmerman is the President and Chief Executive Officer of Six Flags Entertainment
Corporation and also serves on the Board of Directors. Previously, he served as legacy Cedar Fair's
president and chief executive officer from January 2018 to the Merger. Prior to becoming CEO of
legacy Cedar Fair, he served as president and chief operating officer of Former Cedar Fair from
October 2016 through December 2017 and served as chief operating officer of Former Cedar Fair from
October 2011 through October 2016. He has more than 35 years of industry experience.

Available Information

Upon written request, and without charge, we will provide a copy of our Annual Report on
Form 10-K and Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the most recent fiscal year. Please write or
call us at the following address or phone number: Six Flags Entertainment Corporation, 2851
Cleveland Road, Sandusky, Ohio 44870, Telephone (419) 627-2233, Attention: Investor
Relations.



	2024 FORM 10- K CONTENTS
	PART I
	Item 1. Business
	Item 1A. Risk Factors
	Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
	Item 1C. Cybersecurity
	Item 2. Properties
	Item 3. Legal Proceedings
	Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

	PART II
	Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Shareholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
	Item 6. Reserved
	Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
	Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
	Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
	Index for Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

	Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
	Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
	Item 9B. Other Information
	Item 9C. Disclosure Regarding Foreign Jurisdictions that Prevent Inspections

	PART III
	Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance
	Item 11. Executive Compensation
	Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Shareholder Matters
	Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence
	Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

	PART IV
	Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
	Item 16. Form 10- K Summary

	Signatures



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Off
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.1000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /LeaveColorUnchanged
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams true
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments false
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Preserve
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 2.00000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 2.00000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 800
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile (None)
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /Unknown

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /FRA <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /PTB <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /ENU (RRD High Resolution \(Letter Page Size\))
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


